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PART |
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this Annual Report the words or plerésl likely result”, “are expected to”, “will cotinue”, “is anticipated”, “estimate”, "project” @imilar expression are intended to identify “forddooking statementsiithin
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatioridRa Act of 1995. Such statements are subjecettam risks and uncertainties. By identifying #adsrwardiooking statements for you in this manner, the Camypis alertin
you to the possibility that its actual results dindncial condition may differ, possibly materialfyom the anticipated results and financial cdndiindicated in these forwe-looking statements. Important factors that coulase
the Company'’s actual results and financial conditmdiffer from those indicated in the forward4ang statements include, among others:

Credit quality and the effect of credit quality e adequacy of our allowance for loan los

Deterioration in financial markets that may resulimpairment charges relating to our securitiegfptio

Competition in our primary market are

Significant government regulations, legislation @otential changes there

A reduction in our ability to generate or origina¢eenu-producing assets as a result of compliance witHtened capital standar

Increased cost of operations due to greater regylatersight, supervision and examination of baarkd bank holding companies, and higher depositamee premium
Limitations on our ability to expand consumer pradand service offerings due to anticipated stricamsumer protection laws and regulati

Other risks described herein and in the other tsord statements we file with the S

These risks and uncertainties should be considaeredaluating forwardeoking statements and undue reliance should ngldmed on such statements. The Company wishesuteon readers not to place undue reliance ol
such forward-looking statements, which speak oslpfahe date made. The Company wishes to ade@ters that the factors listed above could affeeGompany’s financial performance and could célusé€Companys actue
results for future periods to differ materially fincany opinions or statements expressed with respdature periods in any current statements. Acldally, all statements in this document, inclugfiorwardiooking statement
speak only as of the date they are made, and thgo&@uy undertakes no obligation to update any seiem light of new information or future events.

ITEM 1 : BUSINESS

GENERAL

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a fedlgrchartered midier holding company headquartered in Oswego, NerkY The primary business of the Company is itesment in Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). *
Company is majority owned by Pathfinder BancorpHNE., a federallychartered mutual holding company (the "Mutual HaddCompany"). At December 31, 2013, the Mutualdihg Company held 1,583,239 shares o
Company’s common stock (“Common Stock”), the pulilicl the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESO&3)ectively, held 1,039,943 shares (the "Minotpckholders”). At December 31, 2013, Pathfindendrp, Inc. ar

subsidiaries had total assets of $503.8 milliotaltdeposits of $410.1 million and shareholdersitgopf $42.7 million plus nomontrolling interest of $358,000, which represehts49% not owned by the Company as a res
the acquisition detailed in Note 23 to the Note€tmsolidated Financial Statements contained herein
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The Company's executive office is located at 2140Fast Street, Oswego, New York and the telephumaber at that address is (315) 343-0057. legriet address is www.pathfinderbank.conmformation on our website
not and should not be considered to be a parti®féport.

Pathfinder Bank

The Bank is a New York-chartered stock savings kamkits deposit accounts are insured up to afgidanits by the FDIC through the Deposit Insuraund (“DIF”). The Bank is subject to extensive regulation byNe&
York State Department of Financial Services (thepBrtment”)as its chartering agency, and by the FDIC, asepmsit insurer and primary federal regulator. Baek is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bankenf Nork
(“FHLBNY") and is subject to certain regulations the Federal Home Loan Bank System.

The Bank is primarily engaged in the business wheiing deposits from the general public in thelBa market area, and investing such depositsthiegevith other sources of funds, in loans secimgdne- to foufamily
residential real estate, commercial real estatalldmsiness loans, and consumer loans. The Bamsis a portion of its assets in securities isfyetthe United States Government and its agenciésponsored enterprises, s
and municipal obligations, corporate debt secwitieutual funds, and equity securities. The Bdsd mvests in mortgagleacked securities primarily issued or guaranteedijed States Government sponsored enterprisie
Bank's principal sources of funds are depositsicjpal and interest payments on loans and invedtmas well as borrowings from correspondent fiferinstitutions. The principal source of inconseimterest on loans a
investment securities. The Bank's principal expsrase interest paid on deposits, employee compemsend benefits, data processing and facilities.

Pathfinder Bank also operates through a limiteghpse commercial bank subsidiary, Pathfinder ComialeBank, which serves the depository needs of mipalities and public entities in its market area.

The Bank has Pathfinder REIT, Inc., a New York cogtion, as its whollypwned real estate investment trust subsidiaryDétember 31, 2013, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. held $iilfion in mortgages and mortgage rele
assets. All disclosures in this Form 10-K relatioghe Bank's loans and investments include leadsinvestments that are held by Pathfinder REIg,, |

The Bank also has 100% ownership in Whispering @akeelopment Corp., a New York corporation, whighdtained in case the need to operate or deveteplésed real estate emerges.

Additionally, the Bank has 100% ownership in Pattiér Risk Management Company, Inc. which was estedl to record the 51% controlling interest upue December 2013 purchase of the Fitzgibbons Agentysweg
County property and casualty and life and heakiriance brokerage business with $500,000 in ameuahues. Additional details can be found in Negeo the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesnemtained herein.

Finally, the Company has a nepnsolidated Delaware statutory trust subsidiagthfthder Statutory Trust Il, of which 100% of themmon equity is owned by the Company. Pathfirsatutory Trust Il was formed
connection with the issuance of $5.2 million irstrpreferred securities.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank had 101 full-temployees and 23 part-time employees. The emgdogee not represented by a collective bargainiitgand we consider our relationship with our engples to be good.
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MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION

The economy in the Bank's market area is manufagtariented and is also significantly dependent ugenState University of New York College at Oswedde major manufacturing employers in the Bank'sketaarea ai
Entergy Nuclear Northeast, Novelis, ConstellatidRG and Huhtamaki. The Bank is the largest depsitstitution headquartered in Oswego Countye Bank's business and operating results are signtfiy affected by tr
general economic conditions prevalent in its maskets. Our lending and deposit generating areanisentrated in Oswego County and surrounding @siniWe are in the process of opening a brandtitotin Syracuse, Ne
York, (our second branch in Onondaga County) ampeetthat Syracuse will become a growing portionwfbusiness and deposit generation.

The Bank encounters strong competition both iraetiing deposits and in originating real estateathdr loans. Its most direct competition for défsosomes from commercial banks, savings banksnganassociations and cre
unions in its market area. Competition for loaomes from such financial institutions as well agtgage banking companies. The Bank competes fovgits by offering depositors a high level of peedcservice, a wide ran
of competitively priced financial services, andtraisg network of branches, ATMs, and electronickimg. The Bank competes for real estate loansailynthrough the interest rates and loan feedidrges and advertising,
well as by originating and holding in its portfolimortgage loans which do not necessarily conformmetmondary market underwriting standards. The dilrim the residential mortgage sector of the Uitates economy t
caused certain competitors to be less effectiteeénmarket place. While Central New York did noperience the level of speculative lending and dwimg in residential real estate that has advera#gcted other regions ol
national basis, certain mortgage brokers and fieaoemnpanies in our area are either no longer dpgrair have limited aggressive lending practicadditionally, as certain money centers and laegianal banks grapple w
current economic conditions and the related creis, their ability to compete as effectively Hamen reduced. As the economy has improved, andhéld for loan growth has increased, competitiom fbanks for th
residential, commercial and business loans haeased. Of course, there are others, includingxarapt credit unions, which continue to compete wihaggressively.

LENDING ACTIVITIES

General

Our loan portfolio is comprised of one- to four-fiymesidential real estate loans, the majoritymich have fixed rates of interest. In additiorote- to four-family residential real estate loans, loan portfolio includes of multi-
family residential and commercial real estate lpansnmercial, consumer and municipal loans. Oumany lending area is within a five mile radiuseoPathfinder Bank Branch. Pathfinder Bankécondary focus is all remain
areas within the Bank’s CRA designated area mapetisas Onondaga County.

We try to reduce our interest rate risk by makingloan portfolio less interest rate sensitive.céwlingly, we offer adjustable-rate residential @achmercial mortgage loans, short-and mediarm mortgage loans, and float

rate commercial loans. In addition, we offer seetérm consumer loans and home equity lines of creitlit adjustable interest rates. However, in thegent and prolonged low interest rate environmarsignificant portion ¢
our loan portfolio consists of fixed-rate loanshwierms in excess of 15 years.
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Residential Real Estate Loans

Our primary lending activity consists of originaimne- to four-family, owneoccupied, first and second residential mortgagadpairtually all of which are secured by propestiecated in our market area. The average
balance of our one- to four-family residential resfate loans was $80,000 at December 31, 2013.

We currently offer one- to four-family residentrakl estate loans with terms up to 30 years. \i& ofir one- to four-family residential loans witjustable or fixed interest rates. Our fixate loans include loans that genet
amortize on a monthly basis over periods betweeto BD years. One- to fodiamily residential real estate loans often remaits@nding for significantly shorter periods thhaeit contractual terms because borrowers hay
right to refinance or prepay their loans. We aiffer home equity loans on which we take a secoordgage.

We currently offer adjustable-rate mortgage loaith @an initial interest rate fixed for one, three five years, and annual adjustments thereafteedan changes in a designated market index. @ustablerate mortgage loa
generally have an interest rate adjustment limR@ basis points per adjustment, with a maximdetifile interest rate adjustment limit of 600 bamitts. Our adjustable-rate mortgages are pritedlevel tied to the ongeal
United States Treasury bill rate. We do not offdjustablerate mortgages that offer the possibility of negatamortization. In the current low interest rateironment we have not originated a significantadcaamount ¢
adjustable-rate mortgage loans. We have not otigihaor have we invested in, interest-only, negagimortization or payment option ARM loans.

Regulations limit the amount our Bank may lendtiedato the appraised value of the real estatersegthe loan, as determined by an appraisal optbperty at the time the loan is originated. &bfirst lien position mortgac
loans we utilize outside independent appraises.sEcond position mortgage loans, for existindifrater Bank first Mortgages, we will use the lesskthe existing appraisal used in underwriting first mortgage or asses
value. A service which gathers all data from Reabperty Tax offices and gives the property a lovidde and high value, together with comparable proes for comparison, will be used for all othecand mortgage loans. 1
middle value from the service will be the valuedigeunderwriting. If the valuation method for tlean amount requested does not provide a valuheovalue is not sufficient to support the loanuest and it is determined t
the borrower(s) are credit worthy, a full appraisdl be ordered.

For borrowers who do not obtain private mortgagiiance, our lending policies limit the maximumnlda-value ratio on both fixed-rate and adjustable- mortgage loans to 90% of the appraised véditleeoproperty that
collateral for the loan. For most one- to four-figmesidential real estate loans with loanviedue ratios of between 80% and 95%, we requirddneower to obtain private mortgage insurancer fiFst mortgage loan products,
require the borrower to obtain title insurancer §econd mortgage type products, we order a laseptitle search from local title companies. Wesoalequire homeownergisurance, fire and casualty, and flood insuraifi
necessary, on properties securing real estate.loans

Commercial Lending
Commercial loans consist of the following produeisses: real estate, other commercial and indydinies of credit and municipal loans, with virtiyaall of the outstandings located in the counté®swego and Onondaga.

December 31, 2013, the average loan balance afammercial loans, commercial lines of credit anthomrcial real estate loans was $178,000. At thtg,dur largest borrower had outstandings of #8llfon, and the loar
were performing in accordance with their terms.




The Bank performs a credit evaluation to deterntiveeoverall transaction risk of any extension @&dir (extensions of credit includes all loans, diré credit, mortgages and exposure limits estagtisor customers) the Be
undertakes and to assign a proper risk rating.saetion risk may be defined as the probability hdefault will take place under proposed termsamdiitions, which could then result in a neeforming loan or a potential Ic
to the Bank. When evaluating transaction risk tilefing factors are always considered (unlessrsetand properly margined by liquid collateral):

Financial risk- are the borrower's financial condition, profitayiliand cash flow strong enough and stable enocogtiidw for the repayment of the loan under itspmsed terms and conditions in the normal cour
business and are the proposed terms and condiasenable. We typically require a debt servicermye ratio of 120% or highe

Industry risk- is the borrower's industry subject to cyclical sygror obsolescence, which may impair the borrovedility to service the dek

Management risl- can the borrower's management successfully mansggfairs, is there adequate second line managemed is management of sound moral character.éthése are all subjective evaluatio
negative answer to any of them strongly impliesgh ldegree of default risk. Except in rare casesaiso require personal guarantees by the prirscgfahe borrowet

Collateral risk- if a default takes place and restructure is eitttfeasible or desirable can the collateral baidigted in a reasonable time frame and in an amshich would preclude a principal loss to the Be

Prior to funding a loan secured by mudkinily, mixed use or commercial property, we geltgrabtain an environmental assessment to ascettainexistence of any environmental risks that roayassociated with t
property. The level of the environmental assessiepends on the facts and circumstances relatitigetspecific loan.

The commercial loan segment is impacted by gersm@homic conditions but, more specifically, theusitly segment in which each borrower participatdsique competitive changes within a borrowespecific industry, «
geographic location could cause significant charigeahe borrowers revenue stream, and therefore, impact its aliityepay its obligations. Commercial real estatalso subject to general economic conditionsdhainge
within this segment typically lag changes seeniwithe consumer and commercial segment. Includédnthis portfolio are both owner occupied reslate, in which the borrower occupies the majafitihe real estate prope
and upon which the majority of the sources of repayt of the obligation is dependent upon, and mener occupied real estate, in which several tenaomprise the repayment source for this portfetigment. The compositi
and competitive position of the tenant structurg weuse adverse changes in the repayment of défpatdins for the non-owner occupied class witlhis segment.

Municipal Loans

We offer municipal loans to local municipalities iai are term loans and typically unsecured.

Consumer Loans

We are authorized to make loans for a variety oéqueal and consumer purposes. Our procedure figramiting consumer loans includes an assessmeheddpplicans credit history and ability to meet existing ohligns an
payments of the proposed loan, as well as an ei@tuaf the value of the collateral security, ifyanConsumer loans generally entail greater rigk ttesidential mortgage loans, particularly indhee of loans that are unsecure

are secured by assets that tend to depreciatdug,\&ich as automobiles. In these cases, repessesllateral for a defaulted consumer loan maypnawvide an adequate source of repayment for thstanding loan, and t
remaining value often does not warrant further gutigl collection efforts against the borrower.
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Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales and Servicing

Pathfinder Bank originates residential, commeraia consumer loans. Pathfinder Bank’s primary niaakea is customers that reside or work withinva fhile radius of a Pathfinder Bank Branch. Pad#inBanks secondal
market area includes the remaining areas withinbtinks CRA designated area map as well as Onor@agaty. It is the preference of the bank thatti@iships be solicited and extended to customevénbaan econom
interest in our area. However, if it is determinedt a potential customer not having an econontérd@st in our area but is interested in a loarticglship and the bank has the ability to deliverless than three bank product
services, these relationships will also be consitler

Our loan portfolio is comprised primarily of one- four-family residential real estate loans and em@rtial loans made to businesses. The majorithefesidential % family loans are owner occupied and have fixeédsra
interest. The commercial loans made to businessesuily have adjustable interest rates. In additio one- to foufamily residential real estate and commercial lpaus loan portfolio also consists of second mageggaecure
home equity lines of credit and home improvemean#oas well as other consumer loans such as ars &nd personal loans.

Our ability to generate each type of loan depensiborrower demand, market interest rates, bomr@neference for fixed- versus adjustatd¢e loans, and the interest rates offered on ggehof loan by other lenders in
market area. Although the bank has a diversified lportfolio, a substantial portion of our borrosiebilities to honor their contracts is dependgsin the counties’ employment and economic conubtio

Pathfinder Bank benefits from a number of sourcesté loan originations, including real estateKanoreferrals, existing customers, borrowers, teugd attorneys, and “walk-irfustomers. Pathfinder Bank also employs
residential mortgage originators and four commeteiaders who actively market the baslgroducts and services and are responsible farggmng the bulk of the loan originations. Ourrlazigination activity may be affect
adversely by a rising interest rate environment tyyzcally results in decreased loan demand. Ofdetors such as the overall health of the locahemy and competition from other financial insiibas can have an impact on
volume of originations. Accordingly, the profitéiyi of this activity may vary from period to pedo The majority of the fixed rate residential leahat are originated each year meet the undemgrguidelines established
Fannie Mae. In the past, we have originated resimenortgage loans for sale in the secondary niagrel we may do so in the future, although weinastto service them once they are sold.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority

The directors and management of Pathfinder Bank daveloped policies that outline general goalssaaxdards regarding commercial, residential amdwwer lending activities consistent with the ollestaategic objectives
the Bank.

Providing credit is an essential element of locaromic development and of the healthy growth efBank. The policies are designed to provide engdsywith guidelines on acceptable levels of riskerya broad range
factors. Although the documents enable a certagnegieof autonomy by lenders, all exceptions toifipdoan policy must be justified by circumstandlat warrant consideration of the exception. Eamiployee who participat
in the lending decision process must be familighyand understand, the contents of the policydpaties to them.
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Each loan policy sets forth the rules, guidelined general procedures, which must be followed énpifactice of granting credit and fulfilling thdlfaving responsibilities:

Generate earnings for the Ba

Protect deposit’s funds

Ensure all loan decisions, actions and recommentatire based on an accurate and thorough und#irgfari each custom’s financial needs and conditiol
Promote community, economic growth and developn

Properly administer credit worthiness and docuntamtaf all loans the lender originates or is assif

Promote and maintain a favorable image for the B

Identify problems in the lend's portfolio as early as possible so that theseslean be placed on the watch list and can be &fflspecial care if require

Individual Lending Authority is granted by the Bdaof Directors to approve an extension of cred#cl recipient of lending authority is charged witle responsibility of achieving high credit starfaand accepts t
accountability for his/her credit decisions. Theethmethods of authorizing an extension of crewdit a

« Qualified lenders are individually granted loanheuity;
« The Officer Loan Committee has a specified limitgl

« The Executive Loan Committee reviews all loans a&bine authority granted the Officers Loan Commit

The Board of Directors has approved and delegaeddministration of lending authority to the Ldafficers based on an underwriting matrix score éwedborrower’s total related credit.

Loans over a lender’s authority are referred toféiner with the required authority level. Loansenthese limits must be referred to the Officerai.@ommittee for approval or recommendation takecutive Loan Committee.
Lending authority can be increased, suspendechuoved by the Board of Directors, as recommendetth@yresident or Senior Vice President and Chietli€Officer.

Loans to One Borrower

The legal lending limit for Pathfinder Bank to agle borrower is calculated by the Accounting D&peant consistent with law and reviewed by the CRieaincial Officer and is communicated to lendifficers. In no case w
Pathfinder Bank intentionally exceed the legal iegdimit established by the FDIC and NYS DepartingFinancial Services. At December 31, 2013 eggl lending limit was $7.3 million.

Pathfinder Banls internal loan policies limits the total relatedit (TRC) to be extended to any one borrowere(adpplication of the rules of attribution), witespect to any and all loans with the Bank to $4ilsom. The
indebtedness includes all credit exposure whetiectcor contingent, used or unused.
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ASSET QUALITY

Loan Delinquencies and Collection Procedures

When a loan becomes delinquent, we make attempsritact the borrower to determine the cause ofigiayed payments and seek a reasonable solutiperiait the loan to be brought current within asmeeable period
time. The outcome can vary with each individuarbeer. In the case of mortgage loans and consimaes, a late notice is sent 15 days after anumtdmecomes delinquent. If delinquency persistetteer notice is sent at 1
30 day delinquency mark and the 45 day delinquemask and the 60 day delinquency mark as well. rAftedays, we attempt to establish telephone contitic the borrower. Included in every late notise letter that includ:
information regarding homewnership counseling. As part of a workout agregmee will accept partial payments during the ndntorder to bring the account current. If attésrtp reach an agreement are unsuccessful a
customer is unable to comply with the terms ofwliekout agreement, we will review the account teedwmine if foreclosure is warranted, in which casmsistent with New York law, we send a 90 dayaeoof foreclosure ar
than a 20 day notice before legal proceedings@rerenced. A consumer final demand letter is sefitdrcase of a consumer loan. In the case of coomhéans and commercial mortgage loans, we foBosimilar notificatio
practice with the exception of the previously menéd information on homewnership counseling. In addition, commercial bdo not require 90 day notices of foreclosurendBally commercial borrowers only receive 10
notices before legal proceedings can be commen€ethmercial loans may experience longer workouesinvhich may trigger a need for a loan modificatieat could meet the requirements of a trouble dedtructure
loan. Residential mortgages in excess of $300ed@0commercial lending relationships that excedDFID0 are evaluated individually for impairment.

Foreclosed real estate

Fair values for foreclosed real estate are injtiedicorded based on market value evaluations log fiarties, less costs to sell (“initial cost bgsigny write-downs required when the related loan receivabéxéhanged for tt
underlying real estate collateral at the time ahsfer to foreclosed real estate are charged tallibvwance for loan losses. Values are derivenhfeppraisals, similar to impaired loans, of undagycollateral or discounted c¢
flow analysis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valustiare updated periodically and assets are maokeaftent fair value, not to exceed the initialtdessis. In the determination of fair value sulosex to foreclosure, managenm
also considers other factors or recent developmenth as, changes in absorption rates and maskeltions from the time of valuation and anticighsales values considering managensepiins for disposition. Either chal
could result in adjustment to lower the propertiueaestimates indicated in the appraisals. Thesgsorements are classified as Level 3 within tmevédue hierarchy.

Loan delinquencies together with properties withim Foreclosed Real Estate portfolio are reviewedtily at the Board of Director level.
Impaired Loans, Non-performing Loans and Troubled Debt Restructurings

The policy of Pathfinder Bank is to provide a contius assessment of the quality of its loan paotfibirough the maintenance of an internal and e&tdoan review process. The process incorporateararisk grading syste
designed to recognize degrees of risk on individoaimercial and mortgage loans in the portfolionkgement is responsible for strict monitoring afeagjuality and risk grade designations.

An existing loan is considered impaired when ipisbable that the bank will be unable to collettatounts due (including both interest and pringipacording to the contractual terms of the logreament. Loans are non-
performing and placed on nonaccrual when the coniahpayment of principal and interest has bec8fdays past due or management has serious dddasfarther collectability of principal or intetegven though the lo.
may be currently performing. Some loans may be idensd non performing and impaired, whereas otbend may only be included in one category. Speoiserve allocations are made for loans that erermiined to £
impaired. Our Allowance for Loan and Lease Logs#iky (“ALLL") establishes criteria for selectiigans to be measured for impairment based on tlewiag:

-10
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Residential and Consumer Loans:

« All loans rated substandard or worse, on nonaccamal above our TRC threshold balance of $300,
« All Troubled Debt Restructured Loans with a thrédhmlance of $300,00!

« Any other loans the Bank will be likely unable wllect all amounts of contractual interest and gipal as scheduled in the loan agreeme

Commercial leases Lines and Loans, Commercial Bstalte and Municipal Loans:

« All loans rated substandard or worse, on nonaccamal above our TRC threshold balance of $100,

« All Troubled Debt Restructured Loans threshold hegaof $100,00C

« Any other loans the Bank will be likely unable wllect all amounts of contractual interest and gipal as scheduled in the loan agreeme
Impairment is measured by determining the presafutevof expected future cash flows or, for collatelependent loans, the fair value of the collatedaisted for market conditions and selling experssesompared to the lo
carrying value.
Troubled Debt Restructurings (“TDR”) are loan resturings in which the bank, for economic or legedsons related to an existing borrowdimancial difficulties, grants a concession te ttebtor that it would not otherw
consider. Typically a TDR involves a modificatiohterms of a debt, such as reduction of the stetiedest rate for the remaining original life o&ttiebt, extension of the maturity date at a statedest rate lower than the curt
market rate for new debt with similar risk, redoaotiof the face amount of the debt, or reductioaasfrued interest.

Classifications of Assets

Loans inherently contain credit risk. A key to naiize credit losses is being able to manage theke effectively. Pathfinder Bank has a risk gradimgtem for our loan assets that is designed asldar management and
Board of Directors to assure that Pathfinder Bankoit taking unnecessary and/or unmanageable risk.

The primary objective of the loan risk grading systis to establish a method of assessing crekitaienable management to measure loan portfobditgiand the adequacy of the allowance for lo@sés.

Loan Grades are assigned a numerical value of eetwehrough 8. Most loans within the lending palitf receive a grade of one through four, as thepeesent accounts with manageable risk. Loansgwitties of 5 through
have been identified to have credit weaknessesettiise the bank to a potential loss. These lazosire special monitoring and, depending on the sfzthe loan, will require a written action plamoving the loan from tl
bank’s portfolio or strengthening the credit to an atakle level. All loans that receive a risk grad® @nd above are placed on the Watchlist Reportdatinuous monitoring. Loans on the Watchlisp&¢ have additional lo:
loss reserve allocations assigned to them by ggadeaccount type and may also have specific resesggned to individual loans. The administratibthe loan grade assignments and the WatchlisoRépthe responsibility «
the Chief Credit Officer.
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Grades for commercial and municipal loans are assigrimarily upon current documented informatiorthe credit and/or legal files. It is the commardan officers responsibility to properly support credit extensi with al
necessary documentation, financial statementsiramegtigation required by Pathfinder Bank. Subsatigeades are suggested by the officer assigneddo commercial relationship. Grades for residéatid consumer loans
assigned primarily upon current documented infoimaiNo loan grade is assigned to a residentiatgage or consumer loan unless the loan has deratetsigns of weakness.

Pathfinder Bank contracts with an external loanemfirm to complete a Credit Risk Assessment efltian portfolio on a regular basis to determireedtirrent level and direction of the bagmkredit risk. The loan review proc
incorporates a risk based approach that sepatadsan portfolio in to High, Moderate, and Lowkrisuckets. The goal is to cover 100% of the Higf6 of the Moderate, and 10% of the Low risk loemthe portfolio. Th
external loan review firm communicates the resofttheir findings to the Executive Loan Committeeviriting and by periodically attending the ExewatlLoan Committee meetings. Any serious issuedéesed in an exterr
loan review are communicated to the President tifflhder Bank immediately.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents manag&smestimate of losses inherent in the loan portfaoof the date of the statement of condition ansl iecorded as a reduction of loans. The all@eas increased by t
provision for loan losses, and decreased by chaifgenet of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uectitile are charged against the allowance for losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, aréexdd the allowance. All,
part, of the principal balance of loans receivatrke charged off to the allowance as soon as etisrohined that the repayment of all, or part, efghincipal balance is highly unlikely. Naasidential consumer loans are gene
charged off no later than 120 days past due omaamiual basis, unless productive collection ¢ffare providing results. Consumer loans may leegei off earlier in the event of bankruptcy, othiére is an amount thai
deemed uncollectible. No portion of the allowafardoan losses is restricted to any individuanigmoduct and the entire allowance is availableltsorb any and all loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel leonsidered adequate to provide for lossesdédmatbe reasonably anticipated. Management perfarquarterly evaluation of the adequacy of thevadlice. The allowance
based on three major components which are; specifipponents for larger loans, recent historicadgsand several qualitative factors applied toreige pool of loans, and an unallocated component.

The first component is the specific component thkites to loans that are classified as impaifeat. these loans, an allowance is established wiediscounted cash flows or collateral value ofithgaired loan are lower th
the carrying value of that loan.

The second or general component covers pools of)day loan class, not considered impaired, smbiéance homogenous loans, such as residentiaéseste, home equity and other consumer loansseTpeols of loans &
evaluated for loss exposure first based on hisiblass rates for each of these categories of IoEms ratio of net chargeffs to loan outstandings within each product clas®r the most recent eight quarters, lagged &
quarter, is used to generate the historical lagsran addition, qualitative factors are addeth®historical loss rates in arriving at the tatidwance for loan loss need for this general pbdbans. The qualitative factors inclt
changes in national and local economic trendstatesof growth in the portfolio, trends of delinqeées and nonaccrual balances, changes in loatypalid changes in lending management experienteetated staffing. Ea
factor is assigned a value to reflect improvingpkt or declining conditions based on managersdygst judgment using relevant information avadadt the time of the evaluation. These qualitatactors, applied to ea
product class, make the evaluation inherently stibje, as it requires material estimates that maysisceptible to significant revision as more imfation becomes available. Adjustments to the facape supported throu
documentation of changes in conditions in a nareadiccompanying the allowance for loan loss amabysd calculation.

The third or unallocated component is maintainedaeer uncertainties that could affect managersesdtimate of probable losses. The unallocategonent of the allowance reflects the margin of ieefgion inherent in tt
underlying assumptions used in the methodologiesgtimating specific and general losses in thé@ar and generally comprises less than 10% oft¢ite allowance for loan loss.
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A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuiméormation and events, it is probable that tleenPany will be unable to collect the scheduled payts of principal or interest when due accordinthecontractual terms
the loan agreement. Factors considered by managemeletermining impairment include payment statdlateral value and the probability of collegtischeduled principal and interest payments when dians th:
experience insignificant payment delays and payrsieottfalls generally are not classified as imphirManagement determines the significance of payuielays and shortfalls on a cdseease basis, taking into consideratio
of the circumstances surrounding the loan and thitver, including the length and reason for thiaylethe borrowes prior payment record and the amount of shoriffiatelation to what is owed. Impairment is meadug
either the present value of the expected futurh flaws discounted at the loan’s effective intemasé or the fair value of the underlying collatéf¢he loan is collateral dependent. The majoat the Companyg loans utilize th
fair value of the underlying collateral.

An allowance for loan loss is established for apaired loan if its carrying value exceeds its eated fair value. The estimated fair values of tariiglly all of the Companyg’ impaired loans are measured based on the esd
fair value of the loan’s collateral. For loanswsed by real estate, estimated fair values aredeted primarily through thirgharty appraisals. When a real estate secureddeeomes impaired, a decision is made rega
whether an updated certified appraisal of the es#dte is necessary. This decision is based @ougaconsiderations, including the age of the mesent appraisal, the loan+adue ratio based on the original appraisal, ae
condition of the property. Appraised values asedinted to arrive at the estimated selling priddecollateral, which is considered to be thénested fair value. The discounts also includenested costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by mreah-estate collateral, such as accounts receiviabvientory and equipment, estimated fair valuesdatermined based on the borrowdimancial statements, inventory repc
account receivable agings or equipment appraisafs/oices. Indications of value from these sosraee generally discounted based on the age dihtinecial information or the quality of the assets.

Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectigefluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Compalnes not separately identify individual residdntirtgage loans less than $300,000, home equityodimer consum
loans for impairment disclosures, unless such leaaselated to borrowers with impaired commergiahs or they are the subject to a troubled dedttueturing agreement for those with a carryingieah excess of $300,000.

Commercial loans whose terms are modified are iiledss troubled debt restructurings if the Compgrants such borrowers concessions and it is déénaé those borrowers are experiencing finandgféitdlty. Concessior
granted under a troubled debt restructuring gelyarallude but are not limited to a temporary retitutin the interest rate or an extension of a lsatated maturity date. Commercial loans claské&troubled debt restructurii
with a carrying value in excess of $100,000 arégesed as impaired and evaluated as discussee abov

The allowance calculation methodology includeshiertsegregation of loan classes into risk ratinggm@ies. The borrowes’overall financial condition, repayment sourcesrgntors and value of the collateral, if apprdpriar
evaluated not less than annually for commerciaidaar when credit deficiencies arise on all loa@sedit quality risk ratings include regulatorysdiications of special mention, substandard, dauhnd loss.

-13




Table of Contents

In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral pitheir examination process, periodically revithe Companys allowance for loan losses and may require thepaomto recognize additions to the allowance basethei
judgments about information available to them atttme of their examination, which may not be catifeavailable to management. Based on manag¢s comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, agament believes t
current level of the allowance for loan lossesdscuate.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Our investment policy is established by the bodrdiectors. This policy dictates that investmertidions will be made based on the safety of thesiment, liquidity requirements, potential returcash flow targets, a
consistency with our interest rate risk managenieme. board of directors, as a whole, acts in thpaciéy of an investment committee and is respoediin overseeing our investment program and evialgi@n an ongoing ba:
our investment policy andbjectives. Our president and chief financial @fibave the authority to purchase securities wispiecific guidelines established by the investnpatity. All transactions are reviewed by the boaf
directors at its regular meeting.

All investment securities must meet regulatory gliites and be permissible bank investments, inetudinited States Government obligations, securiifegarious federal agencies and of state and npaligovernment
deposits at the Federal Home Loan Bank of New YBHLBNY), certificates of deposit at federally imed institutions, and federal funds. Within certeegulatory limits, we may also invest a portidroar assets in mutt
funds, equity securities and investment grade catpalebt securities. We are also required to taaian investment in FHLBNY stock.

All securities purchased will be classified at tinee of purchase as either a held-to-maturity @ilable-forsale. The bank does not maintain a trading acc@enurities purchased with the intent and abibtyold until maturit
may be classified as held-to-maturity. Securitiesed in the held-to-maturity category will be asated for at amortized cost.

Securities that do not qualify or are not categatias held to maturity are classified as availélesale. This classification includes securities thay be sold in response to changes in interedt, ridte security's prepayment r
liquidity needs, the availability of and the yiedd alternative investments, and funding sourcestamms. These securities are reported at fair yathech will be determined on a monthly basis imjeaction with the preparatit
of board report financial statements. Unrealizeédgyand losses are reported as a separate compfreapital, net of tax. The aggregate change inevaf the portfolio will be reported to the BoafiDirectors monthly.

The general objectives of the investment portfalie to provide for the overall asset/liability mgement of the bank, generate a reasonable ragtushrconsistent with the safety of principal, pdeva source of liquidity, provic
adequate capital where needed, minimize the baak'Sability, and minimize the bank's interesteraind credit risk. We purchase securities to peviecessary liquidity for day-ttay operations, and when investable ft
exceed loan demand. The effect that the proposedigewould have on our credit and interest rék and risk-based capital is also considered.

Our securities classified as available-for-saléeptthan mortgagbacked securities, consisted of Federal agencgatins, primarily Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFGites, FHLBNY notes, Federal National Mortg
Association (FNMA) and Federal Home Loan Mortgagep@ration (FHLMC) obligations with remaining matigs of one to six years. Mortgage backed seesrére discussed in the next section.
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Included within the security portfolio are threetmal fund positions. The first is a mutual fundked by adjustable rate mortgalgeeked securities and cash equivalents. The senatetial equity security listed is a mutual
consisting primarily of investment grade divideralimg common stocks of large capitalization comesyi.e., companies with market capitalizationxioess of $5 billion. The third fund, Financial Institutions Fund, LLGrést:
primarily in equity securities issued by commurbignks and thrift institutions and holding comparaésuch banks and thrifts located principally lve Northeastern United States. The fund seekbankts and thrifts with le
than $5.0 billion in assets that are high perfogrinones that represent M&A values or are stragdlyilocated in a market where a major competitas recently acquired by a larger institution.

We also have a $2.4 million investment in FHLBN®al at December 31, 2013, which is classified sephr from securities due to the restrictions de sa transfer. For further information regardimg securities portfolio, s
Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES AND COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

We purchase mortgage-backed securities and callated mortgage obligations guaranteed by Fannie, eeddie Mac and Ginnie Mae. We invest in mortgaacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs to achie\
positive interest rate spreads with minimal adntiats/e expense, and to lower our credit risk. \&gutarly monitor the credit quality of this porifml

Mortgagebacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs are created by the pooling of mortgagestlamdssuance of a security with an interest ratehvis less than the interest rate on the undeglymortgages. The
securities typically represent a participation iegt in a pool of single-family or multi-family mgages, although we focus our investments on mgetgelated securities backed by one- to fanmily mortgages. The issuers
such securities pool and resell the participatigerests in the form of securities to investorshsas Pathfinder Bank, and in the case of governmgency sponsored issues, guarantee the paymeninoipal and interest
investors. Mortgage-backed securities and collitedimortgage obligations generally yield lessttize loans that underlie such securities becale @ost of payment guarantees, if any, and textiancements. These fixed-
rate securities are usually more liquid than irdginal mortgage loans.

SOURCES OF FUNDS

General

Deposits have traditionally been our primary sowft&inds for use in lending and investment adgsit We also rely on advances from the FHLBNY.ddi#ion to deposits and borrowings, we derive fufidm scheduled lo¢
payments, investment maturities, loan prepaymeetsined earnings and income on earning assetde \8tieduled loan payments and income on earnBejsaare relatively stable sources of funds, depdkiws and outflow
can vary widely and are influenced by prevailingke&interest rates, economic conditions and coitimefrom other financial institutions.

Deposits

A majority of our depositors are persons who warkeside in Oswego and Onondaga Counties. We aféedection of deposit instruments, including ciegksavings, money market deposit accounts, artificates of deposi

Deposit account terms vary, with the principal eliéinces being the minimum balance required, thaiatraf time the funds must remain on deposit aedrlerest rate. We establish interest rates, rityaterms, service fees a
withdrawal penalties on a periodic basis. Managemetermines the rates and terms based on rag®paompetitors, our need for funds or liquidéyd overall growth goals.
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The Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Senft8DARS") is a form of brokered deposit program in which Bemk has been a participant since 2009. In addttooffering depositors enhanced FDIC insuranceecamye
being a participant in CDARS allows the Bank toduts balance sheet through their Qftey Buy program. This program uses a competiticepobcess to allocate funding. Management beliéivissarrangement is a vial
source of funding provided that the Bank maintéimsvell-capitalized status. The Bank may paratgpin CDARS up to 15% of reported total asset®7ar6 million as of December 31, 2013.

Borrowings

We may obtain advances from the FHLBNY utilizing thecurity of the common stock we own in the FHLBBIYd our qualifying residential mortgage, providesmitain standards related to creditworthiness ae hes
advances are made pursuant to several credit pnegeach of which has its own interest rate andeari maturities. Federal Home Loan Bank advancegenerally available to meet seasonal and otftadmwals of depos
accounts and to permit increased lending.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
General

The Company and the Mutual Holding Company (“MHGi)e federally chartered and, up until July 21, 20d&re subject to regulation by the Office of Thi8upervision (“OTS")as savings and loan hold
companies. However, under the Dodd-Frank WallestReform and Consumer Protection Act (the “DodarkrAct”), which is discussed further below, the X8 functions relating to savings and loan holdinpanies wet
transferred to the Board of Governors of the Fddeeaerve System (“Federal Reserve”). The Compaythe MHC therefore became regulated by the BeReserve as of the above date.

Regulatory requirements applicable to the BankGbmpany and the Mutual Holding Company are retetoebelow or elsewhere herein. This descriptibstatutory and regulatory provisions does not ptirfp be a comple
description of all such statutes and regulatiorgiegble to the MHC, the Company, or the Bank. Aiange in these laws or regulations, whether hyg@ss or the applicable regulatory agencies, deaNg a material adve!
impact on the Bank, the Company or the Mutual H@dCompany.

Dodd-Frank Act

The Dodd-Frank Act is significantly changing theremt bank regulatory structure and affecting #reing, investment, trading and operating activitiéfinancial institutions and their holding comjes. The Doddrrank Ac
changed the current primary federal regulator ef@mpany and the Mutual Holding Company from tA&S@o the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reservesnpervises and regulates all savings and loarirfgplmmpanie:
such as the Company and the Mutual Holding Compdime DoddFrank Act requires the Federal Reserve to set mimimapital levels for depository institution holginompanies that are as stringent as those redfairede
insured depository subsidiaries, and the comporeniser 1 capital will be restricted to capitaktruments that are currently considered to be Tieapital for insured depository institutions. éndhe Dodd-rank Act, th:
proceeds of trust preferred securities are excléiced Tier 1 capital unless such securities wesaes prior to May 19, 2010 by bank or savings aad holding companies with less than $15 billiomsdets. The legislation a
establishes a floor for capital requirements ofited depository institutions, which cannot be lo#hemn the standards in effect when the legislatias enacted and directs the federal banking rexysl&t implement new levere
and capital requirements. These new leverage apitt requirements must take into accountbaffance sheet activities and other risks, includisks relating to securitized products and deivest The required regulatic
were issued in 2013 and are discussed later.
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The Dodd-Frank Act also created a new ConsumemEiabProtection Bureau with broad powers to suiserand enforce consumer protection laws. The @uoas Financial Protection Bureau has broad nuéédng authority fc
a wide range of consumer protection laws that applgll banks and savings institutions such asfiPalr Bank, including the authority to prohibitrifair, deceptive or abusivedcts and practices. The Consumer Fina
Protection Bureau has examination and enforcemehbety over all banks and savings institutionshwhore than $10 billion in assets. Banks andmggvinstitutions with $10 billion or less in assetsitinue to be examined
their applicable bank regulators. The Dodd-Frackaiso provides for regulations requiring origovatof certain securitized loans to retain a peeagmof the risk for transferred loans, establistegilatory r ing for certai
debit and interchange fees, repealed restrictiorth® payment of interest on commercial demand sitpand contained a number of reforms relatedddgage originations. The legislation also weakiethe federal preempti
available for national banks and federal savings@ations, and gives state attorneys generalditieydo enforce applicable federal consumer petiten laws.

The DoddFrank Act broadened the base for Federal Depositrémce Corporation insurance assessments. Assmssare now being based on the average consdlitiat® assets less tangible equity capital ofnarfcia
institution. The legislation also permanently Eased the maximum amount of deposit insurance dokd) savings institutions and credit unions toO$2B0 per depositor, and nérerest bearing transaction accounts
unlimited deposit insurance through December 31220rhe Dodd-Frank Act increased stockholder arflte over boards of directors by requiring compmatoegive stockholders a ndmrding vote on executive compensa
and so-called “golden parachute” payments, andoaiathg the Securities and Exchange Commissiomramplgate rules that would allow stockholders tonimate and solicit votes for their own candidateisg a companyg owr
proxy materials. These particular requirements weteimposed on the Company in 2012. The legastatilso directs the Federal Reserve to promulgéés prohibiting excessive compensation paid tckbeoiding compan
executives, regardless of whether the companyh#igbytraded or not.

New York State Banking Law and FDIC Regulation

The Bank derives its lending, investment and othehority primarily from the applicable provision$ New York State Banking Law and the regulatiofgshe N ew York State Banking Departmenas limited by FDI(
regulations. In particular, the applicable prouisiof New York State Banking Law and regulationgegning the investment authority and activitiesanfFDIC insured statehartered savings bank, and its subsidiary comial
bank, have been substantially limited by the Fddeeposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Actl&d1 (“FDICIA”) and the FDIC regulations issued pursuant therdtwder these laws and regulations, savings b
including the Bank, may invest in real estate magts, consumer and commercial loans, certain typeebt securities, including certain corporatetdsdrurities and obligations of federal, state mudl governments ai
agencies, certain types of corporate equity seesiréind certain other assets. New York State efeattsavings banks may also invest in subsidiarieer their service corporation investment autiiorA savings bank may u
this power to invest in corporations that engageainous activities authorized for savings bankss @ny additional activities, which may be authed by the Banking Board. Under FDICIA and the EBlimplementation ¢
regulations, the Bank’s investment and service@®on activities are limited to activities persilde for a national bank unless the FDIC otheryaisenits it.

The FDIC and the Superintendent have broad enfameauthority over the Bank. Under this authotig FDIC and the Superintendent have the abiifggue formal or informal orders to correct vimas of laws or unsafe
unsound banking practices.
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FDIC Insurance on Deposits

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FIX€ures deposits at FDIC insured financial insitiis such as the Bank. Deposit accounts in thek Bam insured by the FDIC generally up to a maximafr$250,000 pe
depositor and up to a maximum of $250,000 for dieéicted retirement accounts. The FDIC chargeintheed financial institutions assessments to tagirthe Deposit Insurance Fund.

Under the FDIC's current risk-based assessmenemsysnsured institutions are generally assigneal‘tisk category’based on supervisory evaluations, regulatory dapitels and certain other risk factors. Assessmare base
on the risk category to which an institution isigsed and certain risk adjustments assigned by FBglations.

In February 2011, the FDIC published a final ruteler the Dodd=rank Act to reform the deposit insurance assesssystem. The rule redefined the assessment Isasefor calculating deposit insurance assessméatgiee
April 1, 2011. Under the new rule, assessmentdased on an institutios'average consolidated total assets minus avesagéle equity rather than total deposits. Sitertew base is much larger than the former bae
FDIC also lowered assessment rates so that theawaunt of revenue collected from the industry wmas significantly altered. The new range is 2%idaoints to 45 basis points of total consolidassdets less tangil
equity. The new rule benefitted smaller finanamatitutions, which typically rely more on deposits funding, and shifts more of the burden for onping the insurance fund to larger institutiomsjch have greater acces:
non-deposit sources of funding. As a result ofdii@nge in the assessment base, the Company exqeetian approximate 50% reduction in its quar@ssessment charges effective with the second qu#2611.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the FinanCioigoration (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the apatof the FDIC, assessments for anticipated paysnésuance costs and custodial fees on bondsc
by the FICO in the 1980s to recapitalize the forfederal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporatioa.bbmds issued by the FICO are due to mature i #0bugh 2019. During the year ended Decembe2@®13, the Bank pa
$29,000 in fees related to the FICO.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Ripiéh a finding that an institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe asumtscondition to continue operations or has vémlaany applicable la
regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by BHC. We do not currently know of any practicendition or violation that may lead to terminatiohooir deposit insurance.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The FDIC has adopted rigkased capital guidelines to which the Bank is sutbjEhe guidelines establish a systematic analytieenework that makes regulatory capital requireteenore sensitive to differences in risk pro
among banking organizations. The Bank is requioethaintain certain levels of regulatory capitatéfation to regulatory risk-weighted assets. Thim raf such regulatory capital to regulatory riskighted assets is referred tc
the Bank’s “risk-based capital ratio.” Risk-basegpital ratios are determined by allocating assetsspecified off-balance sheet items to four rahghted categories ranging from 0% to 100%, wighér levels of capital beil
required for the categories perceived as represggtieater risk.

These guidelines divide a savings bank’s capit@ fwo tiers. The first tier (“Tier I”) includes oumon equity, retained earnings, certain eomulative perpetual preferred stock (excludingtiancrate issues) and minor
interests in equity accounts of consolidated sudses, less goodwill and other intangible assexs€pt mortgage servicing rights and purchasedtarard relationships subject to certain limitaspnSupplementary (“Tier I)”
capital includes, among other items, Tier 1 capiamulative perpetual and long-term limitiife- preferred stock, mandatory convertible se@sitcertain hybrid capital instruments, term sdbwted debt and the allowance
loan and lease losses, subject to certain limitatitess required deductions. Savings banks atéreelto maintain a total risk-based capital rafiat least 8%, and a Tier | risk based capitatlef at least 4%.
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In addition, the FDIC has established regulatioresgribing a minimum Tier | leverage ratio (Tierdpital to adjusted total average assets as spetdifithe regulations). These regulations provateafminimum Tier | levera(
ratio of 3% for banks that meet certain specifigténa, including that they have the highest exaation rating and are not experiencing or antigigasignificant growth. All other banks are requdit® maintain a Tier | levera
ratio of at least 4%.

The FDIC may set higher leverage and tisised capital requirements on individual institusiovhen particular circumstances warrant. Saviegg$ experiencing or anticipating significant griowte expected to maintain car
ratios, including tangible capital positions, watlove the minimum levels.

In July 2013, the FDIC and the other federal bagutatory agencies issued a final rule that wilise their leverage and risk-based capital requeremand the method for calculating riskighted assets to make them consi
with agreements that were reached by the Basel Gib@enon Banking Supervision and certain provisiofishe DoddFrank Act. Among other things, the rule estabkshenew common equity Tier 1 minimum caj
requirement (4.5% of risk-weighted assets), in@edlse minimum Tier 1 capital to risk-based assisirement (from 4% to 6% of riskeighted assets) and assigns a higher risk weldii%) to exposures that are more tha
days past due or are on nonaccrual status andt@irceommercial real estate facilities that finane acquisition, development or constructioneafl property. The final rule also requires unealigains and losses on cer
“available-for-sale” securities holdings to be im#d for purposes of calculating regulatory capitdess a one-time optit is exercised and requires more stringent treatrof mortgage servicing assets and certain defee
assets. The rule limits a banking organizatiomjpital distributions and certain discretionary b®payments if the banking organization does nai hdlcapital conservation buffeconsisting of 2.5% of common equity Tie
capital to risk-weighted assets in addition todh#unt necessary to meet its minimum fislsed capital requirements. The final rule becceffestive for the Bank on January 1, 2015. Thetahponservation buffer requirem:
will be phased in beginning January 1, 2016 andngndanuary 1, 2019, when the full capital consgamebuffer requirement will be effective.

SBLF Participation

On September 1, 2011, the Company entered intezariBes Purchase Agreement with the Secretarp@fTreasury (“Treasury”) pursuant to which the Campsold to the Treasury 13,000 shares of its $&no-Cumulative
Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series B (“Series Belred Stock”), having a liquidation preference bfd0 per share for aggregate proceeds of $13,000,Dhis transaction was entered into as pati@flreasurys Small Busine:
Lending Fund Program (“SBLF"). In connection theith, the Company redeemed all 6,771 shares &fixisd Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred StockeS@ (“Series A Preferred Stockspld to the Treasury on Septen
11, 2009 in connection with the Treasury’s Capatchase Program (“CPP"Y.he Company paid $6,786,000 to the Treasury toemadiie Series A Preferred Stock, which includedotfiginal investment of $6,771,000, ¢
accrued dividends. In connection with its partipn in SBLF, the Company repurchased from Trgasumarrant (the “Warrant”) to purchase 154,354reh of the Company’common stock at an exercise price per she
$6.58. The Warrant was previously issued to Trgaisuconnection with the Company’s participatiorthe CPP. The repurchase price of the Warranewagreed upon price of $537,633.

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject strietions of the CPP program. The SBLF programsduave its own requirements, which are summalieémiv:
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The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to recatmecumulative dividends payable quarterly, on eacludanl, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginningdber 1, 2011. The dividend rate, which is calmdaon the aggreg:
Liquidation Amount, was initially set at 4.2% pemaim based upon the current level of “Qualified BBasiness Lending”, or “QSBL"ds defined in the Securities Purchase AgreementhéyBank. The dividend rate
dividend periods subsequent to the initial perisdsét based upon the “Percentage Change in Qdaliading” (as defined in the Securities PurchageeAment) between each dividend period and the€lBes QSBL
level. Such dividend rate may vary from 1% perwuanrto 5% per annum for the second through tenthdeind periods, from 1% per annum to 7% per annunthfe eleventh through the first half of the niretih dividen
periods. If the Series B Preferred Stock remairtstanding for more than four-and-one-half yetirs,dividend rate will be fixed at 9%. Prior t@thime, in general, the dividend rate decreasebeakevel of the Bank' QSBL
increases. The Compasydividend rate as of the date of this report @%. Such dividends are not cumulative, but the @ may only declare and pay dividends on its comstock (or any other equity securities junic
the Series B Preferred Stock) if it has declaretiaid dividends for the current dividend perioctios Series B Preferred Stock, and is subjecthteraestrictions on its ability to repurchase afeem other securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series Brieef8tock, in whole or in part, at any time aedemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidafdnount per share and the p#rare amount of any unpaid dividends foi
then-current period, subject to any required pajgproval by the Company’s primary federal bankiegutator.

The Companys ability to pay common stock dividends is condiéibon payment of the Series B Preferred Stockdeivils described above. In addition, the SBLF progrequires the Company to file quarterly repontQSBL
lending, which must be audited annually. The Camypaust also outreach and advertise the availglfitQSBL to organizations and individuals who es@nt minorities, women and veterans. The Compaumst annuall
certify that no business loans are made to pritgipbusinesses who have been convicted of ars@e @gainst a minor. Finally, the SBLF programuiees the Company to file quarterly, annual arftepteports provided
shareholders concurrently with the Treasury.

Limitations on Bank Dividends and Other Capital Digributions

The FDIC has the authority to use its enforcememigus to prohibit a savings bank from paying divide if, in its opinion, the payment of dividendsulbconstitute an unsafe or unsound practice. faétiev also prohibits tt
payment of dividends by a bank that will resulttie bank failing to meet its applicable capitaluieements on a pro forma basis. New York law a¢stricts the Bank from declaring a dividend thatid reduce its capital belc
the amount that is required to be maintained bted&@w and regulation. The Bank is also subjectlitadend notification requirements to the FeddRalserve by virtue of the Company being a savingslaan holdin
company. The Federal Reserve may object to a peapdividend if the Bank will become undercapitdior the dividend is deemed to be unsafe or umsouniolate a law, regulation or order. An inalyilof the Bank to pe
dividends may inhibit the Company’s ability to pdiyidends.

Prompt Corrective Action

The federal banking agencies have promulgated aégo$ to implement the system of prompt correctiotion required by federal law. Under the redofe, a bank is deemed to be (i) “well capitalizédt has total riskbase:
capital of 10% or more, has a Tier | risk-basedtehmatio of 6% or more, has a Tier | leverageitdpatio of 5% or more and is not subject to amitten capital order or directive; (ii) “adequatalapitalized"if it has a total ris
based capital ratio of 8% or more, a Tier | rislsdzh capital ratio of 4% or more and a Tier | legeraapital ratio of 4% or more (3% under certaicwnstances) and does not meet the definition @fl“eapitalized”; {i)
“undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based itapratio that is less than 8%, a Tier | risksed capital ratio that is less than 4% or a IMleverage capital ratio that is less than 4% (3%dex certain circumstances); |
“significantly undercapitalized” if it has a totask-based capital ratio that is less than 6%,ea Tiisk-based capital ratio that is less thand@% Tier | leverage capital ratio that is lesstB&o; and (v) “critically undercapitalized”
if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assttat is equal to or less than 2%. Federal ladwagulations also specify circumstances under lwhitederal banking agency may reclassify a welitalized institution as adequat
capitalized and may require an adequately capi@linstitution to comply with supervisory actiorsifit were in the next lower category (excepttitiee FDIC may not reclassify a significantly unchgsitalized institution ¢
critically undercapitalized).
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The regulations require that savings banks that fresufficient capital take certain corrective anti. For example, a savings bank that is categmhas “undercapitalized$ subject to growth limitations, may generally nwmke
capital distributions, including paying dividen@sid would be required to submit an acceptable alagistoration plan. A holding company that coistsuch a savings bank would be required to gueeathtat the savings be
complies with the restoration plan in an amounipto the lesser of 5% of the institution’s totssets or the amount of capital needed for thetinisth to achieve compliance with regulatory cdpiéguirements. Asignificantly
undercapitalized” savings bank is subject to addél restrictions. Savings banks deemed by theCRDIbe “critically undercapitalizediould be subject to the appointment of a receivecamservator within specified tir
frames.

The Bank currently meets the criteria to be classifis a “well capitalized$avings institution. The previously mentioned firegulatory capital rule that will increase redaly capital requirements will adjust the proi
corrective action categories accordingly. Additiodetails can be found in Note 18 to the Notesdosdlidated Financial Statements contained herein.

Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders

Under current federal law, transactions betweerosiepry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reskevand its implementing regulations. An affiliaté a savings bank is a
company or entity that controls, is controlled byjs under common control with the savings barkeothan a subsidiary of the savings bank. Inldihg company context, at a minimum, the parentdimgi company of a savin
bank, and any companies that are controlled by gacént holding company, are affiliates of the sgsibank. Generally, Section 23A limits the extentvhich the savings bank or its subsidiaries mayage in toveret
transactions” with any one affiliate to an amouqua to 10% of such savings basicapital stock and surplus and contains an aggrédigat on all such transactions with all affiket to an amount equal to 20% of such ce
stock and surplus. The term “covered transactinoludes the making of loans or other extensionsreflit to an affiliate, the purchase of assetmfam affiliate, an investment in the securitiesofaffiliate, the acceptance
securities of an affiliate as collateral for a laarextension of credit, the issuance of a guaearteceptance, or letter of credit on behalf offiiate and certain other transactions resultingredit exposure to an affiliate. Sec
23A also establishes specific collateral requireiéor certain transactions such as loans or extes®f credit to, or guarantees, acceptancestterdeof credit issued on behalf of an affiliatecon 23B requires that cove
transactions and a broad list of other specifiadgactions be on terms substantially the samey tss favorable, to the savings bank or its sidogics similar transactions with nonaffiliates.

Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act and ifglementing regulations restrict a savings bank wetpect to loans to directors, executive officarg] principal stockholders. Under Section 22(@nk to directors, execut
officers and stockholders who control, directlyirmirectly, 10% or more of voting securities ofavimgs bank and certain related interests of artheforegoing, may not exceed, together with gieooutstanding loans to st
persons and affiliated entities, the savings bamétal unimpaired capital and unimpaired surpfection 22(h) also prohibits loans above amourgsquibed by the appropriate federal banking agémajirectors, executi
officers, and stockholders who control 10% or mafr@oting securities of a stock savings bank, dveirtrespective related interests, unless suchibapproved in advance by a majority of the baxrdirectors of the savin
bank. Any “interestedtlirector may not participate in the voting. Furth@irsuant to Section 22(h), loans to directorscative officers and principal stockholders mustegally be made on terms substantially the sanuéferec
in comparable transactions to other persons. $e2fig) of the Federal Reserve Act places additiiméations on loans to executive officers.
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Qualified Thrift Lender Test

In order for the Company and the Mutual Holding @amy to be regulated as savings and loan holdingpaaies (rather than as bank holding companiesf)fiR@er Bank must qualify as a Qualified Thriftider. To qualify &
a Qualified Thrift Lender, Pathfinder Bank mustdé&domestic building and loan associatioas’ defined in the Internal Revenue Code, or comjily the Qualified Thrift Lender test. Under thei&)fied Thrift Lender test,
savings bank is required to maintain at least 65%sd‘portfolio assets” tptal assets less: (1) specified liquid assetsoup0fb of total assets; (2) intangibles, includirmpdwill; and (3) the value of property used to aati
business) in certain “qualified thrift investmen{gtimarily residential mortgages and related imvests, including certain mortgage-backed and edlaecurities) in at least nine months out of edzmonth period. As «
December 31, 2013 Pathfinder Bank met the Qualifiedft Lender test.

Supervisory Agreement

During May 2009, the Company entered into a SuperyiAgreement with the OTS. The agreement waeé connection with the identification of centaiolations of applicable statutory and regulat@strictions on capit
distributions and transactions with affiliates.

On November 26, 2013, the Company was informedbyFederal Reserve that the Supervisory Agreemasihereby terminated, indicating that the Compasydomplied with the terms of the Agreement.
Federal Holding Company Regulation

General . The Company and the Mutual Holding Company teleeted to be regulated as savings and loan hotdimgpanies within the meaning of the Home Ownkosin Act. The Company and the Mutual Holding Cony
are registered with the Federal Reserve and aijeciub Federal Reserve regulations, examinatisagervision and reporting requirements. As suoh,Rederal Reserve has enforcement authority tee€Cbmpany and t
Mutual Holding Company, and their nsavings institution subsidiaries. Among other disinthis authority permits the Federal Reservessirict or prohibit activities that are determirtecbe a serious risk to the subsid
savings institution. The Federal Reserve assuegulatory authority over savings and loan holdiampanies from OTS on July 21, 2011, pursuant tdihed-Frank Act. See “The Dodd-Frank Act” above.

Permitted Activities. Under federal regulation and policy, a mutudtiing company and a federally chartered riéa-holding company, such as the Company, maygmgathe following activities: (i) investing inehstock of
savings association; (ii) acquiring a mutual assam through the merger of such association intavangs association subsidiary of such holdingpamy or an interim savings association subsidifisuch holding compan
(iii) merging with or acquiring another holding cpemy, one of whose subsidiaries is a savings asmti (iv) investing in a corporation, the capisébck of which is available for purchase by asgsiassociation under fede
law or under the law of any state where the sulsidsavings association or associations share kiveire offices; (v) furnishing or performing managermservices for a savings association subsidiarguoh compan:
(vi) holding, managing or liquidating assets owoedcquired from a savings subsidiary of such campgvii) holding or managing properties used otuggied by a savings association subsidiary of sechpany; (viii) acting ¢
trustee under deeds of trust; (ix) any other dgtithiat (A) has been deemed to be permissiblédok holding companies under Section 4(c) of thekBdolding Company Act of 1956, unless the FedBeserve, by regulatic
prohibits or limits any such activity for savingsdaloan holding companies; or (B) in which multigiavings and loan holding companies were authorfegdegulation) to directly engage in March 5, 798) any activit
permissible for financial holding companies undect#®n 4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act (prostiticertain criteria are met), including securitiesl insurance underwriting; and (xi) purchasindding, or disposing ¢
stock acquired in connection with a qualified steeduance if the purchase of such stock by sudngsand loan holding company is approved by thieFd Reserve. If a mutual holding company acguiremerges with anott
holding company, the holding company acquired erttblding company resulting from such merger ougsition may only invest in assets and engage fiviéies listed in (i) through (xi) above, and haperiod of two years
cease any nonconforming activities and divest gfrmnconforming investments.
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Federal Law Act prohibits a savings and loan hgdinmpany, directly or indirectly, or through onenaore subsidiaries, from acquiring another saviemsociation or holding company thereof, withouompwritten approval ¢
the Federal Reserve. It also prohibits the actiprisor retention of, with certain exceptions, mtiran 5% of a nonsubsidiary savings associationsubsidiary holding company, or a nonsubsidiarygany engaged in activit
other than those permitted by federal law; or awogior retaining control of an institution thatrist federally insured. In evaluating applicatidnysholding companies to acquire savings assodigtithe Federal Reserve n
consider factors such as the financial and marelgessources and future prospects of the compaghyssociation involved, the effect of the acquasiton the risk to the deposit insurance fundsctivvenience and needs of
community and competitive factors.

The Federal Reserve is prohibited from approvingagquisition that would result in a multiple saysnand loan holding company controlling saving®eissions in more than one state, subject to twaeptions: (i) the approv
of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savingd ban holding companies, and (i) the acquisitadna savings institution in another state if thev$ of the state of the target savings instituspecifically permit suc
acquisitions. The states vary in the extent tacvithey permit interstate savings and loan holdmgpany acquisitions.

Unlike bank holding companies, savings and loamlihgl companies are not currently subject to specifinsolidated regulatory capital requirementse DioddFrank Act, however, requires the promulgation afhsuapite
requirements for depository institution holding gmmies, including savings and loan holding compmartieat are no less stringent, both quantitatieelgt in terms of components of capital, than thggsi@able to institutior
themselves. The previously discussed final rujmding regulatory capital requirements implemémésDodd-Frank Acs directive as to savings and loan holding companiehe consolidated regulatory capital requireseuill
apply to savings and loan holding companies asifidry 1, 2015. As is the case with institutidresmselves, the capital conservation buffer wilpbased in between 2016 and 2019.

The Dodd-Frank Act extended the “source of strehddttrine to savings and loan holding compani€kse Federal Reserve has promulgated regulationiememting the “source of strengthblicy that require savings and Ic
holding companies to act as a source of strengtieio subsidiary depository institutions by praxgl capital, liquidity and other support in timesfinancial stress.

The Federal Reserve has issued a policy statemgatding the payment of dividends and other cagdisatibutions by bank holding companies that & h#de applicable to savings and loan holding coiepas well. In gener
the policy provides that dividends should be paily @ut of current earnings and only if the progjsecrate of earnings retention by the holding ceampappears consistent with the organizasiar@pital needs, asset quality
overall financial condition. Regulatory guidanamyides for prior regulatory consultation as to it@pdistributions in certain circumstances suchavere the compang’net income for the past three years, net of ek
previously paid over that period, is insufficieatftlly fund the dividend or the company’s overalte of earnings retention is inconsistent withabmpanys capital needs and overall financial conditiome Bbility of a holdin
company to pay dividends may be restricted if asilidry depository institution becomes undercaiziéal. The guidance also provides for regulatomiese prior to a holding company redeeming or repasing capit
instruments in certain situations. These regulapaticies could affect the ability of the Companypay dividends, repurchase shares of common stostherwise engage in capital distributions.
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Since the Company has chosen to participate iffteasurys SBLF program, it is permitted to pay dividendsitsrcommon stock provided certain Tier 1 capitalimums are exceeded and SBLF dividends have beelare:
and paid to Treasury as of the most recent divigemibd.

Waivers of Dividends by Mutual Holding Company. The Dodd-Frank Act requires federadlizartered mutual holding companies to give the fédeserve notice before waiving the receipt ofddinds, and provides that in
case of “grandfathered” mutual holding companigs the Mutual Holding Company, the Federal Resémay not object’to a dividend waiver if the board of directors bétmutual holding company waiving divide
determines that the waiver: (i) would not be degriial to the safe and sound operation of the siaingidavings bank; and (ii) is consistent with Hwards fiduciary duties to members of the mutual holdingipany. To qualil
as a grandfathered mutual holding company, a mtilding company must have been formed, issued stod waived dividends prior to December 1, 200Be DoddFrank Act further provides that the Federal Resemag no
consider waived dividends in determining an appederexchange ratio upon the conversion of a gehdfed mutual holding company to stock form. épt8mber 2011, however, the Federal Reserve issuaderim final rul
that also requires, as a condition to waiving divids, that each mutual holding company obtain fipFoaal of a majority of the eligible votes of itsembers within 12 months prior to the declaratibrthe dividend bein
waived. The Federal Reserve has requested comoretite interim final rule, and there can be nasstce that the rule will be amended to eliminatmodify the member vote requirement for divideraiwers by grandfather
mutual holding companies, such as the Mutual Hgldiompany in the future, or as to what conditidresEederal Reserve may place on any dividend waivEne Mutual Holding Company has not requestedrgent dividen
waiver and, is not planning to waive future dividerat this time.

Conversion of the Mutual Holding Company to Stock Form . Federal regulations permit the Mutual Holdingn@any to convert from the mutual form of organiaatto the capital stock form of organization @ohversiol
Transaction”). There can be no assurance wheweif, a Conversion Transaction will occur. In a@osion Transaction a new holding company woulfbbaed as the successor to the Company (the “Neldify Companyy,
the Mutual Holding Compang’corporate existence would end, and certain depssif the Bank would receive the right to sulizeifior additional shares of the New Holding Compalmya Conversion Transaction, each sha
common stock held by stockholders other than théukliHolding Company (“Minority Stockholderstyould be automatically converted into a number ladres of common stock of the New Holding Compantgrdenec
pursuant to an exchange ratio (determined by agpieident valuation) that ensures that Minority Biolders own the same percentage of common stottieiflew Holding Company as they owned in the Camppamediatel
prior to the Conversion Transaction. The totahber of shares held by Minority Stockholders aét€onversion Transaction also would be increagezhl purchases by Minority Stockholders in thelstoffering conducted .
part of the Conversion Transaction. Under a prowisif the Dodd-rank Act applicable to the Mutual Minority Stocktiers should not be diluted because of any dividemdived by the Mutual Holding Company (and wa
dividends should not be considered in determinimgpropriate exchange ratio), in the event theulslutiolding Company converts to stock form. Anyrs@onversion Transaction would require various memaind stockhold
approvals, as well as regulatory approval.
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Federal Securities Law

The common stock of the Company is registered thihSEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1884mended (“Exchange Act"The Company is subject to the information, proxic#tation, insider trading restrictio
and other requirements of the SEC under the ExehAng

The Company Common Stock held by persons who ditatafs (generally officers, directors and pringiistockholders) of the Company may not be resattowt registration or unless sold in accordancth wertain resa
restrictions. If the Company meets specified aurpeiblic information requirements, each affiliatehe Company is able to sell in the public markeéthout registration, a limited number of shaireany three-month period.

Securities and Exchange Commission Reporting

The Company maintains an Internet website locatesivav.pathfinderbank.com on which, among other geinthe Company makes available, free of chargéouareports that it files with or furnishes teetBecurities ar
Exchange Commission, including its Annual ReportFamm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, andrenir reports on Form B: These reports are made available as soon asnahly practicable after filing with t
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Compasiylsa made available on its website its Audit Catteen Charter, Compensation Committee Charter, @aree Guidelines (which serve as the Nominati@gvernanc
Committee’s charter) and Code of Ethics.

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K may beessed on the Company’s website at www.pathfindérbam/annualmeeting

Federal Reserve System

The Federal Reserve requires all depository initita to maintain noninterebearing reserves at specified levels against thaisaction accounts (primarily checking, money ageament and NOW checking accounts)
December 31, 2013, the Bank was in compliance thigee reserve requirements.

Federal Community Reinvestment Regulation

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as amendeal “€RA”), as implemented by FDIC regulations, a savings lieska continuing and affirmative obligation, cotesis with its safe and sound operation, to helptrties
credit needs of its entire community, including lamd moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA doiesstablish specific lending requirements or paows for financial institutions nor does it limit arstitution’s discretion t
develop the types of products and services thalieves are best suited to its particular commueidnsistent with the CRA. The CRA requires tiiHE, in connection with its examination of a sawsrigstitution, to assess
institution’s record of meeting the credit need#®tommunity and to take such record into accauits evaluation of certain applications by simstitution.

The CRA requires the FDIC to provide a written eagibn of an institution’s CRA performance utiligia four-tiered descriptive rating system. ThelBafatest CRA rating was “satisfactory.”

New York State Community Reinvestment Regulation

The Bank is also subject to provisions of the NewrkYState Banking Law which impose continuing affitraative obligations upon banking institutionsganized in New York State to serve the credit nesfdss loca
community (“NYCRA") which are substantially similar to those imposedh®s/CRA. Pursuant to the NYCRA, a bank mustditeannual NYCRA report and copies of all federalddBports with the Department. The NYC
requires the Department to make a biennial writesessment of a bank’s compliance with the NYCR#izing a fourtiered rating system and make such assessmenalaeatb the public. The NYCRA also requires

Superintendent to consider a bank’s NYCRA ratingmteviewing a bank’application to engage in certain transactiorgduding mergers, asset purchases and the establlohbranch offices or automated teller machiaas
provides that such assessment may serve as ddrasis denial of any such application. The Bak¥CRA rating as of its latest examination was isfactory.”
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Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes Oxley} wigned into law on July 30, 2002. Sarbabeley is a law that addresses, among other issogsorate governance, auditing and accounting,gx@ccompensation, a
enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate inftiona As directed by Section 302(a) of Sarbanekefxhe Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Ghienancial Officer are each required to certifattthe Companyg’
quarterly and annual reports do not contain anyuenstatement of a material fact. The rules haversl requirements, including having these officeertify that: they are responsible for estabtighimaintaining and regula
evaluating the effectiveness of our internal cdetrthey have made certain disclosures to our arsdind the audit committee of the Board of Direct@bout our internal controls; and they have idetliinformation in ot
quarterly and annual reports about their evaluadioth whether there have been significant changeariinternal controls or in other factors that ldosignificantly affect internal controls subsequemthe evaluation. As part
the DoddFrank Act, the outside auditor attestation requéeton internal controls of companies with less1t8&5 million in market capitalization, like the @pany, was rescinded. Disclosure of managemesgtations o
internal control over financial reporting will camtie to be required for smaller reporting companiesiuding the Company. We have existing policig®cedures and systems designed to comply wétbethegulations, a
continue to further enhance and document our pasligrocedures and systems to ensure continuediaan®with these regulations.

FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION
Federal Taxation

The following discussion of federal taxation iseintled only to summarize certain pertinent fedeme tax matters and is not a comprehensive géscriof the tax rules applicable to the CompantherBank.

Bad Debt Reserves. Prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1996 (“the 1996tActhe Bank was permitted to establish a reséovédad debts and to make annual additions togkerve. The Bank has chosen to be on the diracgeh
off method, net of recoveries, in its calculatidriaxable income.

Taxable Distributions and Recapture . Prior to the 1996 Act, bad debt reserves creptent to January 1, 1988 were subject to recapnicetaxable income should the Bank fail to mestain thrift asset and definitional
tests. New federal legislation eliminated thest#tttelated recapture rules. However, under mirtaw, pre-1988 reserves remain subject to recatinould the Bank cease to retain a bank or tti#irter or make certain non-
dividend distributions.

Minimum Tax . The Internal Revenue Code imposes an altematinimum tax ("AMT") at a rate of 20% on a baseegfular taxable income plus certain tax prefereift@ternative minimum taxable income" or "AMTI"Yhe
AMT is payable to the extent such AMTI is in exce$san exemption amount. Net operating lossesoffset no more than 90% of AMTI. Certain paymesitglternative minimum tax may be used as credjtsrest regular te
liabilities in future years.

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. A financial institution may carry back net opérg losses to the preceding two taxable yearsamehrd to the succeeding 20 taxable years.
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State Taxation

New York Taxation . The Company is subject to the New York Statenéhnese Tax on Banking Corporations in an annualuarhequal to the greater of (i) 7.1% of the Barikistire net income" allocable to New York S
during the taxable year, or (ii) the applicables@iative minimum tax. The alternative minimum tsugenerally the greater of (a) 0.01% of the valtiéhe Bank's assets allocable to New York Staté wertain modification
(b) 3% of the Compang'“alternative entire net income" allocable to Néwvk State, or (c) $1,250. Entire net income isikir to federal taxable income, subject to certagtifications and alternative entire net incomedsal tc
entire net income without certain modificationsetMperating losses arising in the current peralee carried forward to the succeeding 20 taxpddes.

Neither the Internal Revenue Service nor New YdgteShas examined our federal or state tax retwithin the past 5 year

ITEM 1A : RISK FACTORS

Not required of a smaller reporting compa

ITEM 1B : UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2 : PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business through its maicefbcated in Oswego, New York, six branch offitezated in Oswego County, a branch location in1@aga County. The Bank anticipates opening a bram8lyracuse, Ne
York in the second quarter of 2014. Managemeli¢wes that the Bank' facilities are adequate for the business condu@tee following table sets forth certain inforneaticoncerning the main office and each branch effi
the Bank at December 31, 2013. The aggregateonétmlue of the Bank's premises and equipment®4ass million at December 31, 2013. For additidnérmation regarding the Bank's properties, setebl8 and 16 to t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

LOCATION OPENING DATE OWNED/LEASED

Main Office 1874 Owned
214 West First Stre«
Oswego, New York 1312

Plaza Brancl 1989 Owned (1
Route 104, Ames Pla:
Oswego, New York 1312

Mexico Branct 1978 Owned
Norman & Main Street
Mexico, New York 1311:

Oswego East Branc 1994 Owned
34 East Bridge Stre:
Oswego, New York 1312

Lacona Brancl 2002 Owned
1897 Harwood Drive
Lacona, New York 1308

Fulton Branck 2003 Owned (2
5 West First Street Sou
Fulton, New York 1306'

Central Square Branc 2005 Owned
3025 East Avt
Central Square, New York 130

Cicero Branct 2011 Owned
6194 State Route &
Cicero, New York 1303

Syracuse Branc 2014 Leased (3
302-310 South Salina Stre
Syracuse, New York 132(

(1) The building is owned; the underlying land is lehgéth an annual rent of $22,01
(2) The building is owned; the underlying land is lehgéth an annual rent of $33,0!
(3) The premises will be leased upon opening in 2Q 2@tan annual rent of $58,01
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ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various claims and lawsuits to whichGbmpany is periodically involved that are incidémtethe Company's business. In the opinion of ag@ment, such claims and lawsuits in the aggregataot expected to hav
material adverse impact on the Company's conselidi@ancial condition and results of operations
ITEM 4: MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

PART I
ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RE LATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF E QUITY SECURITIES

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock curremtiges on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symiBEIHC". There were 420 shareholders of recordfddarch 14, 2014. The following table sets fattte high and lo
closing bid prices and dividends paid per shamoaimon stock for the periods indicated:

Dividenc
Quarter Endec High Low Paic
December 31, 201 $ 14.0: $ 1276 $ 0.0¢
September 30, 201 $ 16.0C $ 1247 $ 0.0z
June 30, 201 $ 1578 $ 114C % 0.0¢
March 31, 201! $ 13.0¢0 $ 103 $ 0.02
December 31, 201 $ 1100 $ 10.0C $ 0.0z
September 30, 201 $ 1068 $ 9.0 $ 0.0z
June 30, 201 $ 1000 $ 88l $ 0.02
March 31, 201: $ 9.7t  $ 8.8: $ 0.0%

Dividends and Dividend History

The Company has historically paid regular quartedgh dividends on its common stock. The Boardictors presently intends to continue the paynsénegular quarterly cash dividends, subject toriked for those funds
debt service and other purposes. Payment of didislen the common stock is subject to determinaiwhdeclaration by the Board of Directors and délpend upon a number of factors, including capialirements, regulatc
limitations on the payment of dividends, PathfinBank and its subsidiarieggsults of operations and financial condition, tarsiderations, and general economic conditiorree Gompany's mutual holding company, Pathfi
Bancorp, M.H.C., may elect to waive or receive dirids each time the Company declares a dividemddeDd waivers must receive the non-objectionhef Federal Reserve and the approval of the Mutoldify Companys
members who are comprised of the Bank’s depositdistorically, the Federal Reserve has not pravide nonebjection to the waiver of dividends by mutual hiegficompanies. The Mutual Holding Company did waive the
right to receive its portion of the cash divided@éslared during 2013 or 2012.

The Company has confirmed that there were no sekrchases in the three month period ending DeeeBth 2013.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Company is the parent company of the Bank atldfieder Statutory Trust Il. The Bank has foueming subsidiaries Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, IfRathfinder Risk Management Company, Inc.
Whispering Oaks Development Corp.

The following selected consolidated financial dagds forth certain financial highlights of the Caang and should be read in conjunction with the ctidated financial statements and related notes] #re "Managemer
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition delsults of Operations" included elsewhere inahisual report on Form I-K.

2012 201z 2011 201(C 200¢

Year End (In thousands)
Total asset $ 503,79¢ $ 477,79¢ $ 442,98( $ 408,54! $ 371,69:
Investment securities (AF! 80,95¢ 108,33¢ 100,39¢ 85,321 72,75¢
Investment securities (HTM 34,41 - - - -
Loans receivable, n: 336,59: 329,24 300,77( 281,64¢ 259,38
Deposits 410,14( 391,80! 366,12¢ 326,50: 296,83¢
Advances or borrowing 40,85: 34,96« 26,07« 41,00( 36,00(
Equity 43,07( 40,74 37,84: 30,59: 29,23¢
For the Year (In thousands)
Net interest incom $ 15,61¢ $ 14,857 $ 14,26 $ 13,33 $ 11,777
Core noninterest income ( 2,581 2,627 2,451 2,85¢ 2,72¢
Net gains on sales, redemptions

impairment of investment securiti 36E 37t 791 211 112
Net gains (losses) on sales of loans

foreclosed real esta 47C 61 (50) (45) 54
Noninterest expense ( 14,33¢ 13,200 12,75¢ 11,27« 10,38:
Regulatory assessmel 41t 311 39C 51t 74E
Interest incomi 18,88t 18,76¢ 18,60¢ 18,13¢ 17,80¢
Interest expens 3,26¢ 3,90¢ 4,341 4,80¢ 6,02¢
Provision for loan losse 1,032 82t 94C 1,05(C 87¢
Net income attributable to the Compe 2,40¢ 2,64¢ 2,32¢ 2,50¢ 1,61¢
Per Share
Net income (basic $ 09 $ 08¢ $ 05 $ 08z $ 0.61
Net income (diluted 0.9t 0.87 0.52 0.8z 0.61
Book value per common she 11.3t 10.6C 9.4¢ 9.81 9.31
Tangible book value per common share 10.1€ 9.12 8.0z 8.2¢ 7.71
Cash dividends declart 0.1z 0.12 0.12 0.1z 0.1z
Performance Ratios
Return on average ass 0.48% 0.57% 0.55% 0.64% 0.45%
Return on average equi 5.8¢ 6.6¢ 6.7t 8.07 7.04
Return on average tangible equity 6.417 7.4C 7.5¢ 9.2C 8.4t
Return on average common eqt 8.5¢ 8.2¢ 5.0¢ 8.2C 7.1C
Average equity to average ass 8.24 8.4t 8.21 7.8¢ 6.4C
Equity to total assets at end of per 8.5 8.5 8.54 7.4¢ 7.87
Dividend payout ratio (d 12.47 11.37 12.81 11.9C 18.4%
Net interest rate sprei 3.32 3.3¢ 3.62 3.5¢ 3.4C
Net interest margi 3.4: 3.5C 3.7¢ 3.7¢ 3.5€
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201 201Z 2011 201( 200¢
Year End (In thousands)
Average intere-earning assets to average inte-bearing liabilities 115.8¢ 113.8¢ 112.2% 110.8¢ 109.0¢
Noninterest income to average as: 0.6¢ 0.6€ 0.7€ 0.77 0.81
Noninterest expense to average as 2.9€ 2.8¢ 3.14 3.0C 3.1C
Efficiency ratio (e) 79.1« 75.5% 77.5¢€ 71.9¢ 76.3¢
Asset Quality Ratios
Nonperforming loans as a percent of total lc 1.57% 1.6€% 1.55% 2.08% 0.8&%
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total a 1.1¢ 1.2t 1.1¢ 1.54 0.67
Allowance for loan losses to loans receive 1.4¢ 1.3t 1.31 1.2¢ 1.17
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of nonperifoy loans 94.2% 81.1: 84.1¢ 61.5¢ 133.0%
Regulatory Capital Ratios (Bank Only)
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets 14.1% 14.2% 14.%% 13.5% 14.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets 12.¢ 12.¢ 13.7 12.2 12.7
Tier 1 Capital (to Assett 8.7 8.8 9.4 8.1 8.4
Number of:
Banking offices 8 8 8 7 7
Fulltime equivalent employet 112 11C 11C 10% 99

(a) Exclusive of net gains (losses) on sales and imymit of investment securities and net gains (I9szesales of loans and foreclosed real es

(b) Exclusive of regulatory assessmel

(c) Tangible equity excludes intangible ass

(d) The dividend payout ratio is calculated using divids declared and not waived by the Mutual Hol@ogpany, divided by net inconr

(e) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noninterestemse, including regulatory assessments, divigetidosum of taxab-equivalent net interest income and noninterestnmeexcluding net gains on sales, redemption
impairment of investment securities and net gdimssés) on sales of loans and foreclosed reake

ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
INTRODUCTION

Throughout Management’s Discussion and AnalysisO®&A”) the term, “the Company’refers to the consolidated entity of Pathfinder &ap, Inc. Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder Stayuforust Il are wholly owne
subsidiaries of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., howePathfinder Statutory Trust Il is not consolidated feporting purposes (see Note 11 of the congelitiinancial statements). Pathfinder CommercailB Pathfinder REIT, Inc
Pathfinder Risk Management Company, Inc., and Wisg Oaks Development Corp. are wholly owned glibses of Pathfinder Bank. At December 31, 2(R&thfinder Bancorp, M.H.C, the Compasiyhutual holdin
company parent, whose activities are not includetié consolidated financial statements or the MD&&ld 60.4% of the Company’s outstanding commooksand the public held 39.6% of the outstandingmon stock.

The Company's business strategy is to operatenedl-gapitalized, profitable, and independent comityubank dedicated to providing valaelded products and services to our customers. rélgpehe Company has sough
implement this strategy by emphasizing retail, bess, and municipal deposits as its primary soofrfends. These funds are redeployed in locatiginated residential first mortgage loans, loambusiness enterprises opera
in its markets, and, to a lesser extent, in investnsecurities. Specifically, the Company's busirssategy incorporates the following elementsoofierating as an independent communitignted financial institution; (i
maintaining capital in excess of regulatory requieets; (iii) emphasizing investment in oneféow family residential mortgage loans, loans tcairbusinesses, and investment securities; andn{aintaining a strong rete
business and municipal deposit base.
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The Company's net income is primarily dependeritonet interest income, which is the differenceneen interest income earned on its investmemtsarigage and other loans, investment securitieo#rat assets, and its ¢
of funds consisting of interest paid on deposit$ borrowings. The Company's net income is alsecédfl by its provision for loan losses, noninteirgstme (service charges and servicing rightsgaéts and losses on sales
redemptions of securities, loans and foreclosedestate), noninterest expense (employee compensatid benefits, occupancy and equipment costa,ptatessing costs), and income taxes. Earningseofompany are al
affected significantly by general economic and cetitive conditions, particularly changes in marketerest rates, government policies, and actionsegtilatory authorities. These events are beybedcontrol of th
Company. In particular, the general level of maikeerest rates tend to be highly cyclical.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statementpeepared in accordance with accounting princigleserally accepted in the United States and fofioactices within the banking industry. Applicatiohthese principl
requires management to make estimates, assumpiimhfidgments that affect the amounts reportetiénconsolidated financial statements and accompgnydtes. These estimates, assumptions and judgraenbased
information available as of the date of the finahsitatements; accordingly, as this informationngfes, the financial statements could reflect dffierestimates, assumptions and judgments. Certdicies inherently hawe
greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumspdind judgments and as such have a greater pigsibproducing results that could be materiadifferent than originally reported. Estimates,uasptions and judgments
necessary when assets and liabilities are reqtirée recorded at fair value or when an assefabilily needs to be recorded contingent upon aréuvent. Carrying assets and liabilities at value inherently results in m
financial statement volatility. The fair valuesydainformation used to record valuation adjustmdntscertain assets and liabilities, are based ootefl market prices or are provided by other thady sources, wt
available. When third party information is not éatle, valuation adjustments are estimated in da@d by management.

The most significant accounting policies followegdthe Company are presented in Note 1 to the cinfset financial statements. These policies, alwitly the disclosures presented in the other firrstatement notes anc
this discussion, provide information on how sigrdfit assets and liabilities are valued in the dafeted financial statements and how those valuesiatermined. Based on the valuation technigsed and the sensitivity
financial statement amounts to the methods, assongptand estimates underlying those amounts, neanaigt has identified the allowance for loan losdefgrred income taxes, pension obligations, tfauetion of investme
securities for other than temporary impairment, ahaual evaluation of the Compasygoodwill for possible impairment, and the estiorabf fair values for accounting and disclosurepmses to be the accounting areas
require the most subjective and complex judgmentese areas could be the most subject to revasamew information becomes available. Managemenfibipes an annual evaluation of the Compangbodwill for possibl
impairment. Based on the results of the 2013 ewimln, management has determined that the carwghg of goodwill is not impaired as of Decembey 3113. The evaluation approach is described ite df the consolidat
financial statements.
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The allowance for loan losses represents managenestimate of probable loan losses inherent iraduwe portfolio. Determining the amount of theoalance for loan losses is considered a criticabaeting estimate becaus
requires significant judgment on the use of estmatlated to the amount and timing of expectegréutash flows on impaired loans, estimated lossepools of homogeneous loans based on histooesal éxperience, a
consideration of current economic trends and camdif all of which may be susceptible to significehange. The Company establishes a specific atioa/for all commercial loans in excess of the tefated credit threshold
$100,000 and single borrower residential mortgagad in excess of the total related credit thresb6I$300,000 identified as being impaired whicl an nonaccrual and have been risk rated undeCahepanys risk rating
system as substandard, doubtful, or loss. In auiditin accruing substandard loan could be idedtigbeing impaired. The measurement of impagadd is generally based upon the present valugwfef cash flows discount
at the historical effective interest rate, excéat @ll collateral-dependent loans are measuretinipairment based on the fair value of the colktdess costs to sell. The majority of the Conymimpaired loans are collateral-
dependent. For all other loans and leases, thep@aynuses the general allocation methodology ttabéshes an allowance to estimate the probableried loss for each risiating category. The loan portfolio also repres
the largest asset type on the consolidated statemh@ondition. Note 1 to the consolidated finahctatements describes the methodology used éondieie the allowance for loan losses and a disoossi the factors drivir
changes in the amount of the allowance for loasesss included in this report.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeted using the liability method. Under this nmththe net deferred tax asset or liability is ggiped for the future tax consequences. Thistithatable to the differenc
between the financial statement carrying amounexisiting assets and liabilities and their respediax bases as well as net operating and cap#saldarry forwards. Deferred tax assets and ili@silare measured using ena
tax rates applied to taxable income in the yeanstiich those temporary differences are expectdaktoecovered or settled. The affect on deferredassets and liabilities of a change in tax rate¢ognized in income t
expense in the period that includes the enacteast df current available evidence about the Bitaises doubt about the likelihood of a defereedasset being realized, a valuation allowancstasbéished. The judgment ab
the level of future taxable income, including thetich is considered capital, is inherently subjextand is reviewed on a continual basis as regylaod business factors change. A valuation alfmeaof $458,000 w:
maintained at December 31, 2013, as managemerveslit may not generate sufficient capital gainsftset its capital loss carry forward. The Compa effective tax rate differs from the statutoage due primarily to non-
taxable income from investment securities and lwmked life insurance.

Pension and postretirement benefit plan liabiliied expenses are based upon actuarial assumefititare events, including fair value of plan @ssenterest rates, and the length of time the Gomgpwill have to provide tho
benefits. The assumptions used by managementsaresded in Note 12 to the Notes to Consolidatedrigial Statements contained herein.

The Company carries all of its available-gate investments at fair value with any unrealigaihs or losses reported net of tax as an adjusttmeshareholders’ equity and included in accuredlather comprehensive inca
(loss), except for the credit-related portion dtdeecurity impairment losses and other-than-teamyampairment (“OTTI")of equity securities which are charged to earnirijse Company's ability to fully realize the valfets
investments in various securities, including cogperdebt securities, is dependent on the underlgieditworthiness of the issuing organization.elraluating the debt security (both available-fdesand held-tanaturity
portfolio for other-than-temporary impairment losssanagement considers (1) if we intend to sellsécurity before recovery of its amortized ca};if(it is “more likely than not'we will be required to sell the security bet
recovery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) if gresent value of expected cash flows is not sefficto recover the entire amortized cost basiseihe fair value of a held-to-maturity or avaitdibrsale security is less than
amortized cost basis, an assessment is made dsether other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTi8)present. The Company considers numerous faatoes determining whether a potential OTTI existd ¢he period ovi
which the debt security is expected to recovere fitincipal factors considered are (1) the lendttinee and the extent to which the fair value hasrbless than the amortized cost basis, (2) teedial condition of the issue &
(guarantor, if any) and adverse conditions spelfiaelated to the security, industry or geograpdiea, (3) failure of the issuer of the secuntynake scheduled interest or principal paymenjsarf# changes to the rating of
security by a rating agency, and (5) the preseficeedit enhancements, if any, including the gusramwf the federal government or any of its agencie
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The estimation of fair value is significant to selef our assets; including investment securigiesilable for sale, interest rate derivative (dssad in detail in Note 19 to the Notes to Constdidi&inancial Statements contai
herein), intangible assets, foreclosed real estete,the value of loan collateral when valuing baihese are all recorded at either fair valueherlower of cost or fair value. Fair values aetedmined based on third pe
sources, when available. Furthermore, accountiiigiples generally accepted in the United Stagegiire disclosure of the fair value of financiadtiuments as a part of the notes to the consotidatancial statements. F
values on our available-for-sale securities mainfieenced by a number of factors; including marikét¢rest rates, prepayment speeds, discount eatdshe shape of yield curves.

Fair values for securities available for sale d@raimed from an independent third party pricing/mer. Where available, fair values are based aregliprices on a nationally recognized securitiehange. If quoted prices :
not available, fair values are measured using guetarket prices for similar benchmark securitidanagement made no adjustments to the fair valogeguhat were provided by the pricing source. fBlitevalues of foreclose
real estate and the underlying collateral valuéngfaired loans are typically determined based caiuaiions by third parties, less estimated costsetb When necessary, appraisals are updateeflext changes in mart
conditions.

RECENT EVENTS

On December 4, 2013, the Company announced thatghrits subsidiary, Pathfinder Bank, and its glibsy, Pathfinder Risk Management Inc. (“Risk Masagnt”),a Purchase and Sale Agreement was executed ta@e
majority interest in the Fitzgibbons Agency, LLG-{zgibbons”), a local insurance agency servingsémae geographic area as Pathfinder Bank. Deftitss transaction are included in Note 23 testhénancial statements.

On December 19, 2013, the Company announced shRbdrd of Directors declared a quarterly divideh®.03 per common share. The dividend is payablEebruary 7, 2014 to shareholders of record poalg 15, 2014.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Most earnings performance metrics for 2013 genedatlined from those reported for 2012. Whileibasd diluted earnings per share improved ove226&t income, return on average assets, retuaverage equity, and 1
interest margin all decreased in 2013.

Net income for 2013 was $2.4 million, a $242,006rdase from 2012.Return on average assets and i@isverage equity were 0.48% and 5.86%, respégtias compared to 0.57% and 6.68% in 2012. iNetest incom
increased $762,000 in 2013 as compared to 2012cdae increase in earning assets and a reductitireinates paid on interest bearing liabilitiesidionally, increases in personnel costs, an am®en the provision for lo.
losses and increases in other expenses all cotetrilta the decrease in net income. Partially dffspthese year over year increases in expensesheagceipt of $395,000 from the sale of $8.8ionillof residential loans
2013. The reasons for these changes are providée isections titled “Noninterest Income” and “Naarest Expense”.
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Total assets increased $26.0 million to $503.8ioni]lpartially funded by deposits which grew by RLAnillion during 2013 primarily as a result of irases in money market deposit accounts and CDASRBsits. These fun
were invested in the loan portfolio and the invesitrsecurities portfolio, with the remainder inttaGrowth of the loan portfolio was limited by theeviously mentioned residential loan sale as giaemss grew 2.4% to $34:
million. The Company’s opening of its downtown Syuae branch office is expected to enhance its camiah@nd consumer loan business within Onondaganyo

Asset quality continues to report mixed resultsietsloan charge-offs as a percentage of periodaarts for 2013 were 0.15% as compared to 0.1099122 Net chargeffs for 2013 were $492,000 as compared to $304ifi
2012 with the increase residing in all major pradsegments. The chargéfs were previously provided for within the allome for loan losses. Management continues to adbezonservative underwriting policies and wi
closely with borrowers who have experienced difficin order to mitigate loss to the Bank. The gatf the allowance for loan losses to year endddacreased slightly to 1.48% at December 31, 218 mpared to 1.35%
December 31, 2012 and 1.31% at December 31, Z0fi4.increase in 2013 was caused, in part, by ted fe a specific reserve established in the fjtsirter of 2013 for one large commercial borrowdeonperforming loans
year end loans declined modestly to 1.57% at Deee®ib, 2013 from 1.66% at December 31, 2012. Qebncy trends worsened modestly when comparingpatt due loans as a percent of total loans aémber 31, 2013
compared to December 31, 2012, with the largesease within the 60-89 day past due category amiti@l in the commercial segment.

The Company's shareholdersjuity increased $2.0 million to $42.7 million a¢é@mber 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The $ifidmincrease in retained earnings between thesetime periods resulted largely from
generation of earnings less dividends declared.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the Company's primary soofagperating income for payment of operating exgesnand providing for possible loan losses. tliésamount by which interest earned on int-earning deposits, loans ¢
investment securities exceeds the interest paideposits and borrowed money. Changes in net Bttereome and the net interest margin ratio refsoih the interaction between the volume and conijpwsdf earning asse
interest-bearing liabilities, and their respectjiedds and funding costs.

The following comments refer to the table of Aver&plances and Rates and the Rate/Volume Anabyiis,of which follow below.

Net interest income, on a ~equivalent basis, increased $788,000, or 5.2%16o1$million for the year ended December 31, 2@k3compared to $15.3 million for the year endedeldser 31, 2012. The increase in net int
income is principally due to the increase in averegmmercial loan balances and the decrease s paié on time deposits and Federal Home Loan B&HLBNY”) borrowings. When comparing 2013 against 2012yiblel
on average earning assets declined by 27 basispainereas the rates paid on interest beariniitied declined by 21 basis points. The Compangsinterest margin for 2013 decreased to 3.43%h 8%0% in 2012.

The average balance of interest-earning assetsased $31.5 million, or 7.2%, during 2013 and trerage balance of interelsearing liabilities increased by $20.7 million,%4%. The increase in the average balance ofeis
earning assets primarily resulted from a $24.9ionilincrease in the average balance of the loatiigtior This was funded by the increase in intete=aring liabilities primarily in NOW, money martk¢‘MMDA”) and saving
and club accounts. Interest income, on ag@uivalent basis, increased $144,000, or 0.8%nd@d13. The decrease in yield on interest earagsgts to 4.13% in 2013 from 4.40% in 2012 wasrtian offset by the increase
average volume. This increase in average volungosatered in the commercial loan products. Istezgpense on interelsearing liabilities decreased $644,000, or 16.58he rates paid dropped 21 basis points to 0.8
2013 from 1.02% in 2012. Maturing time depositgewveither replaced at current lower market ratesibthe customes’ option, invested in MMDA. FHLBNY advances wesplaced with advances of a shorter term a
current lower market rates.

-35




Table of Contents
Average Balances and Rates

The following table sets forth information concempiaverage interest-earning assets and interestgdabilities and the yields and rates therelmerest income and resultant yield informatiorthie table is on a fully tax-
equivalent basis using marginal federal incomerédgs of 34%. Averages are computed on the dadyage balance for each month in the period dividethe number of days in the period. Yields and amm earned inclut
loan fees. Nonaccrual loans have been includeatémest-earning assets for purposes of these atitms.

For the Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average
Average Yield / Average Yield / Average Yield /
(Dollars in thousands Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cos! Balance Interest Cost
Interest-earning assets
Real estate loans residen’ $ 172,29:  $ 7,81( 45% $ 168,35 $ 8,23 48% $ 153,73! $ 8,02¢ 5.22%
Real estate loarcommercia 90,042 4,72¢ 5.25% 72,89« 4,194 5.7%% 70,05( 4,372 6.22%
Commercial loan 51,21¢ 2,441 4.71% 45,59¢ 2,161 4.75% 38,53! 1,90¢ 4.90%
Consumer loan 25,17¢ 1,41¢ 5.62% 26,95¢ 1,53¢ 5.6% 28,46¢ 1,72¢ 6.06%
Taxable investment securiti 94,597 1,74¢ 1.85% 93,35: 1,927 2.0€% 79,23¢ 2,231 2.82%
Tax-exempt investment securiti 25,97 1,152 4.4% 23,71¢ 1,10 4.6%% 11,71¢ 571 4.81%
Interes-earning time depos 1,612 1c 1.1¢% 1,99« 24 1.2(% 17¢ 2 1.1%%
Interes-earning deposit 6,901 7 0.1(% 3,42¢ 4 0.12% 4,14 5 0.12%
Total interes-earning asse’ 467,81« 19,32: 4.13% 436,29( 19,17¢ 4.4% 386,06 18,84( 4.8t%
Noninterest-earning assets
Other asset 33,80¢ 32,59: 35,64
Allowance for loan losse (4,86%) (4,22¢) (3,872
Net unrealized gair
on available for sale securiti 1,08¢ 2,59/
Total asset $ 497,84t $ 467,25! $
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW account: $ 37,73:  $ 8C 021% $ 31,81¢ % 82 0.2¢% $ 87 0.2%
Money management accoul 13,96: 2€ 0.1%% 14,39t 43 0.3(% 43 0.3%%
MMDA accounts 81,73¢ 364 0.45% 77,40: 427 0.55% 43¢ 0.68%
Savings and club accour 69,28¢ 54 0.08% 63,96: 54 0.0¢% 78 0.19%
Time deposit: 160,82¢ 1,954 1.22% 159,28! 2,290 1.42% 139,29¢ 2,59 1.8€%
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 162 3.14% 5,15t 16¢ 3.2¢% 5,15¢ 162 3.16%
Borrowings 35,12¢ 62£ 1.7¢% 31,07¢ 842 2.71% 31,25¢ 942 3.01%
Total interes-bearing liabilities 403,81¢ 3,26¢ 0.81% 383,09¢ 3,90¢ 1.02% 344,01: 4,341 1.2€%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposit 48,81« 40,75¢ 35,97
Other liabilities 4,18¢ 3,76t 4,72%
Total liabilities 456,81¢ 427,61¢ 384,70!
Shareholders' equi 41,02¢ 39,63t 34,42«
Total liabilities & shareholder
equity $ 497,84t $ 467,25! $ 419,12
Net interest incom $ 16,05¢ $ 15,27( $ 14,49¢
Net interest rate sprei 3.32% 3.3% 3.62%
Net interest margi 3.4% 3.5(% 3.7¢%
Ratio of average intere-earning
asset:
to average intere-bearing
liabilities 115.81% 113.8% 112.22%
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Interest Income

Changes in interest income result from changeberaverage balances of loans, securities, ancesttearning deposits and the related yields orethatances. Interest income on a ¢axivalent basis increased $144,00(
0.8%.

Average interest earning asset balances increae8 fillion, or 7.2% in 2013, with yields decreap7 basis points to 4.13%. The Company's aversigential mortgage loan portfolio increased nstlgieby $3.9 million, o
2.3%, due principally to the previously mentionedr sale. The average yield on this portfolio desed 36 basis points to 4.53% in 2013 as higherarabrtizing mortgages were replaced with new oaiipns reflecting curre
market rates. The average balance of commeraibestate loans increased $17.1 million, or 23.884, the yield decreased 50 basis points to 5.252018. Average commercial loans increased $5.omilor 12.3%, while th
yield increased 3 basis points to 4.77% in 2018is increase in average commercial loans refléetsCompan’s plan to continue to diversify its loan portfalio

Interest income on consumer loans decreased $X1B @13 from the prior year period due to a 6di86line in average balances and a 7 basis poireaee in yield.

Interest income on taxable investment securitiesedesed 9.3% from 2012 as the average yield dexteésbasis points from 2012 to 2013. Interegirime on taxexempt securities increased $52,000, or 4.7%, wherpared t
the prior year as tax-equivalent yields on theseds continued to be attractive investment alteest

Interest Expense

Changes in interest expense result from changtreiaverage balances of deposits and borrowingshenctlated interest costs on those balancesrebttexpense decreased $644,000, or 16.5%, incigared to 2012. T
average rate paid on all interdsaring liabilities was 0.81% in 2013 as compaed.02% in 2012, a 21 basis point decrease. Theedse in interest expense was largely due toeheedse in rates paid on time deposi
maturing certificates of deposit were either repthat lower current market rates or invested in MMDAdditionally, interest expense on FHLBNY borriogs declined as higher rate maturing advances vegrlaced wit
advances of a shorter duration and lower ratemaAllsr but noteworthy component of the decreasatérest expense was the $63,000 decrease in yeayear expenses on MMDA as the company succéssfathered hight
average balances of MMDA at lower rates paid.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

Net interest income can also be analyzed in terfniseoimpact of changing interest rates on int-earning assets and interéstaring liabilities, and changes in the volume mpant of these assets and liabilities. The follg
table represents the extent to which changes émeast rates and changes in the volume of inteeesirg assets and interest-bearing liabilities reffected the Company’interest income and interest expense during ¢nedgs
indicated. Information is provided in each categwith respect to: (i) changes attributable to cteanig volume (change in volume multiplied by priate); (ii) changes attributable to changes in (at@nges in rate multiplied
prior volume); and (iii) total increase or decreaghanges attributable to both rate and volume Ih@en allocated ratably.

Years Ended December 31

2013 vs. 201! 2012 vs. 201:
Increase/(Decrease) Due t Increase/(Decrease) Due t
Total Total
Increase Increase
(In thousands Volume Rate (Decrease Volume Rate (Decrease
Interest Income:
Real estate loans residen $ 18  $ 612 $ (429 $ 73z $ (52¢) $ 204
Real estate loans commerc 924 (389 585 il (35)) a7¢)
Commercial loan 26¢ 12 28C 337 (80) 257
Consumer loan (100) (19 (119 (89 (102) (197)
Taxable investment securiti 25 (204) (179 35¢ (662) (304)
Tax-exempt investment securiti 10z (50) 52 557 (28) 52¢
Interes-earning time deposi (5) - (5) 22 - 22
Interes-earning deposit 3 - 3 (3) 2 (1)
Total interest incom 1,40€ (1,26%) 144 2,087 (1,749) 33¢
Interest Expense:
NOW account: 14 (16) 2) 4 9 (5
Money management accoul (1) (16) 17) 4 4) -
MMDA accounts 23 (86) (63) 81 (92) (11)
Savings and club accour 4 4) - 4 (29 (24)
Time deposit: 22 (35¢) (33€) 33¢ (63¢€) (300)
Junior subordinated debentu - ) ) - 6 6
Borrowings 99 (31€) (21¢) (5) (94) (99)
Total interest expens 161 (805) (644) 42€ (859) (437)
Net change in net interest incol $ 1248  $ (457 $ 78¢ 3 1661 $ 890 $ 771

Provision for Loan Losses

The Company recorded $1.0 million in provision lfsein losses as compared to $825,000 recorded ipritveyear. This year over year increase refla@ber levels of net chargsfs in 2013, the need for an additional spe
reserve on one large commercial borrower and aigplean portfolio. The Company views the currevdl of the allowance for loan losses as adeqoaabgorb the probable and estimable losses withinan portfolio.
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Noninterest Income

The Company's noninterest income is primarily casgat of fees on deposit account balances and témss, loan servicing, commissions and net gairiesses on securities, loans, and foreclosedestate.
The following table sets forth certain informatiom noninterest income for the years indicated.

Twelve Months Ended December !

(Dollars In thousands 201: 2012 Change

Service charges on deposit accot $ 1178 $ 1112 $ 63 5.7%
Earnings and gain on bank owned life insure 224 30¢ (85) -27.5%
Loan servicing fee 14€ 211 (65) -30.8%
Debit card interchange fe 46¢ 42€ 43 10.1%
Other charges, commissions and { 567 56¢ (2) -0.4%
Noninterest income before gai 2,581 2,621 (46) -1.8%
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentites 36& 37t (10 -2.7%
Net gains on sales of loans and foreclosed reale 47C 61 40¢ 670.£%
Total noninterest incomr $ 341 $ 3,06 $ 35z 11.5%

As indicated in the above table, total noninteiesbme for the twelve months ended December 313 2dreased from the prior year due principallgteater net gains on sales of loans and foreclessdstate. The Compe
recorded a gain of $395,000 from the sale of $8lBomin residential loans in the second quarttR013. Service charges on deposit accountsaserkin 2013 reflecting insufficient funds and advaft fee activity. Earning
and gains on bank owned life insurance reportetindgetas compared with 2012 when we recorded aaaiife insurance proceeds due to the death ofradr Company director. Loan servicing fees dedim 2013 due to tl
previously mentioned residential loan sale andeiasing FNMA guarantee charges which are netteshstjaan servicing fees. Debit card interchangs facreased in 2013 over the prior year refledtigher levels of use.
Noninterest Expense

The following table sets forth certain informatiom noninterest expense for the years indicated.

Twelve Months Ended December !

(Dollars In thousands 201: 2012 Change

Salaries and employee bene $ 8,081 $ 7,49% % 58t 7.€%
Building occupanc 1,47¢ 1,427 49 3.4%
Data processin 1,44¢ 1,437 7 0.5%
Professional and other servic 65¢ 654 5 0.8%
Amortization of intangible asse 1 - 1 NM @
Advertising 537 45z 84 18.5%
FDIC assessmen 41t 311 104 33.4%
Audits and exam 21¢ 24¢ (29) -11.7%
Other expense 1,91¢ 1,492 427 28.€%
Total noninterest expens $ 1475. $ 1351¢ $ 1,23¢ 9.1%

(1) Not meaningfu
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As indicated above, total noninterest expense @ir32increased over the prior year due largely eititrease in salaries and employee benefits tieftpavage increases, increased costs under the &uyispself insuranc
program, and ESOP compensation expenses. Othengegincreased due to additional community seddcations, charitable contributions, the write-davf a repossessed asset, and fraud losses. Toesesged asset write-
down was related to a $65,000 loss on a repossbksseand fraud losses in the amount of $77,000pniasipally due to a merchant security breach twaurred in December 2013.

Income Tax Expense

In 2013, the Company reported income tax expen$84f,000 compared with $929,000 in 2012. As ffecgve tax rate was 26.0% for both years, therelese in income tax expense was due to the dedreas®mme before te
between 2012 and 2013. See Note 15 to the coasatidinancial statements for the reconciliatiotthef statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate.

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share were $0.965ar85, respectively, in 2013 as compared to $ar&88$0.87, respectively, in 2012The increase in basic and diluted earnings peest@mmparing year over year twelve mc
periods was largely due to the lack of need for BBteferred stock dividend payments during 201Baastive updated lending information provided te th.S. Treasury resulted in a credit against thieleind rate for the tweh
month year to date period

CHANGESIN FINANCIAL CONDITION
Investment Securities

The investment portfolio represents 25% of the Camyfs average earning assets and is designed to gemefatorable rate of return consistent with saéétyrincipal while assisting the Company in megtits liquidity need
and interest rate risk strategies. All of the Camys investments are classified as either avaiidnl-sale or held-to-maturity. The Company does hold any trading securitiesin the third quarter of 2013 the Comp
identified 55 available-fosale securities with an estimated fair value of.$3gillion that the Company estimated containedldngest degree of volatility during periods oferest rate changes. These securities reportet
unrealized loss position of $1.3 million at SeptemB0, 2013 and were reclassified to held-to-mgt@tHTM") status at September 30, 2013. The after tax imgfabis unrealized loss position was approxima$99,000, ar
became frozen upon transfer with no impact on thm@any’s income statement as a result of this fieansThe Company invests primarily in securities issbgdJnited States Government agencies and sponsoitedorise
(“GSEs"), mortgageésacked securities, state and municipal obligatiomstual funds, equity securities, investment gredgporate debt instruments, and common stock isbyetihe Federal Home Loan Bank of New Y
(FHLBNY). By investing in these types of assel® €ompany reduces the credit risk of its asset bas must accept lower yields than would typicallyavailable on loan products. Our mortgage tthskeurities portfolio
comprised predominantly of pass-through securifieranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie &l does not, to our knowledge, include any g&sibacked by sub-prime or other high-risk magegm

At December 31, 2013, investment securities ine@a@5% to $115.4 million from $108.4 million at &@enber 31, 2012. There were no securities thateslerl 10% of consolidated shareholdergiity. See Note 4 to t
consolidated financial statements for further dision on securities.
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The following table sets forth the carrying valdeéle Company's investment portfolio at December 31

Available-for-Sale

Held-to-Maturity

(In Thousands 2012 201z 2012 201z
Investment Securities:
US treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 16597 $ 6,18: $ 187: $ -
State and political subdivisiol 6,581 27,47 21,37: -
Corporate 13,69¢ 23,00¢ 3,74¢ -
Residential mortga-backec 42,14 48,55¢ 7,42% -
Mutual funds 1,64+ 2,691 - -
Equity securitie: 292 432 - -
Total investment securiti $ 80,95¢ $ 108,33¢ $ 3441. $ =

The following table sets forth the scheduled méwsj amortized cost, fair values and average yifddthe Company's investment securities at Deee®b, 2013. Average yield is calculated on theréimesl cost to maturity ai

adjusted to a fully tax-equivalent basis.

AVAILABLE -FOR-SALE

One Year or Less

One to Five Years

Five to Ten Years

Annualized Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield Costl Avg Yield
Debt investment securities
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 1,00¢ 024% $ 11,92% 0.7:% $ 4,00¢ 1.5(%
State and political subdivisiol 881 1.2(% 4,92¢ 2.01% 62E 2.14%
Corporate 4,53 1.28% 8,802 2.11% - -
Total $ 6,41¢ 1.1% $ 25,64¢ 1.45% $ 4,634 1.5%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec $ - - $ 194 4.2% $ 9,55¢ 2.2(%
Total $ S o $ 194 42% $ 9,55¢ 2.2(%
Other non-maturity investments:
Mutual funds $ 1,282 7.06% $ - SIS = =
Equity securitie 271 5.47% - - - -
Total $ 1,558 6.7¢% $ = o $ S S
Total investment securitie $ 7,972 221% $ 25,84: 1.4% $ 14,192 2.00%
More Than Ten Years Total Investment Securities
Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Fair Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Value Avg Yield
Debt investment securities
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ - - 0% 1693 $ 16,597 0.88%
State and political subdivisiol - - 6,42¢ 6,587 1.91%
Corporate 161 - 13,49¢ 13,69¢ 1.8(%
Total $ 161 - 3 36,86: $ 36,88( 1.41%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec $ 32,62¢ 2.2¢% $ 42,37¢ $ 42,14: 2.2€%
Total $ 32,62¢ 2.26% $ 42,37¢ $ 42,14 2.26%
Other non-maturity investments:
Mutual funds $ - -3 128: % 1,64« 7.06%
Equity securitie: - - 271 293 5.41%
Total $ - - 1,55:% $ 1,937 6.82%
Total investment securiti¢ $ 32,78] 2.25% 80,79 $ 80,95¢ 1.98%
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HELD-TO-MATURITY

One Year or Less

One to Five Years

Five to Ten Years

Annualized Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield
Debt investment securities
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ - = $ = - 1,872 2.65%
State and political subdivisiol 18€ 0.6(% 824 1.1¢% 8,361 2.8(%
Corporate - - - - 2,121 4.3%
Total 18€ 0.6(% $ 824 1.1% $ 12,36( 3.05%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec - - - $ - 2,851 2.7°%
Total o o o $ o 2,851 2.7%
Total investment securitie 18¢ 0.6(% 824 1.1&% 15,210 2.9%
More Than Ten Years Total Investment Securities
Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Fair Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Value Avg Yield
Debt investment securities
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ - -3 187: % 1,847 2.65%
State and political subdivisiol 11,99« 351% $ 21,37: 21,26« 1.15%
Corporate 1,62¢ 2.52% 3,74¢ 3,71¢ 3.5%
Total 13,61¢ 345% $ 26,98 $ 26,82¢ 1.5%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec 4,56¢€ 3.14% 7,42% 7,39% 2.98%
Total 4,56€ 3.14% 7,42° 7,398 2.98%
Total investment securiti¢ 18,18t 3.31% 34,41: 34,22: 1.89%
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The above noted yield information does not givedffo changes in fair value that are reflecteaicicumulated other comprehensive loss in consotiddtareholders’ equity.

Loans Receivable

Average loans receivable represent 72% of the Coppaverage earning assets and account for the greetion of total interest income. Yields rarfgem 4.53% on residential loans to 5.62% on consuoens. Th
Company currently has the largest portion of iemlportfolio in the residential real estate prodiezsiment and it anticipates a continued commitrieefihancing the purchase or improvement of redidereal estate in its mark
area. The Company also extends credit to busisesghin its marketplace secured by commercial esthte, equipment, inventories, and accountsveglel. In support of the strategy to diversify ltan portfolio, it it
anticipated that small business lending in the fofrmortgages, term loans, leases, and lines ditanéll provide the most opportunity for balandeegt and revenue growth over the near term. Aeber 31, 2013, commerc
real estate, commercial and municipal loans core@ri3.2% of the total loan portfolio, and residainitans declined to 49.3% of the loan portfolionfr53.0% at December 31, 2012. The decrease prtipertion of total loar
by the residential loan portfolio reflects the Camnp's effort to diversify the loan portfolio, aideg the residential loan sale that occurred inséeond quarter of 2013.

December 31

(In thousands 2012 201Z 2011 201( 200¢
Residential real estate ( $ 168,49: 176,96¢ 162,39! 147,72: 135,10:
Commercial real esta 95,51( 82,35! 73,62¢ 69,06( 62,25(
Commercial and municipal loa 52,24: 48,82¢ 40,33¢ 39,83¢ 35,447
Home equity and junior lier 21,220 22,14 24,25 25,27 26,08¢
Consumer loan 4,16€ 3,45¢€ 4,14( 3,41( 3,58(

Total loans receivab $ 341,63: 333,74t 304,75( 285,29¢ 262,46!

(1) Includes loans held for sale at December 3092(None at December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, an@)201
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The following table shows the amount of loans @utding, including net deferred costs, as of Decerfite 2013 which, based on remaining scheduledyrapats of principal, are due in the periods indidatDemand loal
having no stated schedule of repayments, no stagdrity, and overdrafts are reported as one yeless. Adjustable and floating rate loans aréuihed in the period on which interest rates are seReduled to adjust, ratl
than the period in which they contractually matuféxed rate loans are included in the period ifcivithe final contractual repayment is due.

Due Unde Due 1-5 Due Ove
(In thousands One Yea Years Five Year Total
Real estate
Commercial real esta $ 1548 % 543t $ 88,527 $ 95,51(
Residential real esta 57 6,65¢ 161,78: 168,49:
1,60¢ 12,09( 250,30¢ 264,00:
Other Commercie 24,12¢ 17,20¢ 10,91( 52,24:
Home Equity and junior lier 45 1,29¢ 19,88( 21,220
Consume 514 2,65¢ 992 4,16¢€
Total loans $ 26,28¢ $ 33,25¢ $ 282,09: $ 341,63¢
Interest rates Due After One Ye:
Fixed $ 165,67
Variable 149,66!
Total loans $ 315,34

Total loans receivable increased $7.9 million d®2when compared to the prior year, primarily dughe growth in commercial real estate and comrakarid municipal loans. Residential real estaaedadeclined 4.8% due to
the $8.8 million residential loan sale in the setqnarter of 2013. The Company does not origisakeprime, Alt-A, negative amortizing or other héghiisk structured residential mortgages. Commearid municipal loans

increased $3.4 million in support of the Comparsytategy to balance its diversification among itsdpict segments. Commercial real estate loanstegpsignificant growth as this segment report&d &2 million or 16.0% year
over year increase.

Home equity and junior liens loans decreased 4@2%$21.2 million at December 31, 2013, as a resuthianges in credit standards and rate structumsg2013.
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Nonperforming Loans and Assets

The following table represents information concegnihe aggregate amount of nonperforming assets:

December 31

(Dollars in thousands 2012 2012 2011 201(C 200¢
Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate and commercial Ic $ 2,70¢ % 2,72¢ % 259 % 422 $ 1,021
Consume 447 77€ 70€ 36¢ 111
Residential real esta 2,194 2,04¢ 1,42¢ 1,33¢ 1,181
Total nonaccrual loar 5,35( 5,54¢ 4,72¢ 5,924 2,318
Total nonperforming loar 5,35( 5,54¢ 4,72¢ 5,92¢ 2,31<
Foreclosed real este 61¢ 42¢€ 53€ 37¢ 181
Total nonperforming asse $ 596¢ $ 597/ $ 526/ $ 6,29¢ $ 2,494
Troubled debt restructurings not included ab $ 245¢ % 1931 $ 598§ 1581 $ 68C
Nonperforming loans to total loa 1.57% 1.6€% 1.55% 2.08% 0.8&%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 1.18% 1.25% 1.1% 1.54% 0.67%

Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans, ecwnal troubled debt restructurin¢“TDR”), and foreclosed real estate. Loans are a®rsid modified in a TDR when, due to a borrowararicial difficulties, the Company
makes a concession(s) to the borrower that it wooldotherwise consider. These modifications majuite an extension of the term of the loan, andtgrg a period when interest-only payments can beenwith the
principal payments made over the remaining terrthefloan or at maturity. TDRs are included in @b®ve table within the following categories of nerraal loans or TDRs not included above (the laateo known as
accruing TDRs).

As indicated in the above table, total nonperfogrimans decreased modestly at December 31, 20¥3) edmpared to December 31, 2012, as the increasenaccrual residential loans was more than offgetecreases in
nonaccrual consumer, commercial real estate andnevaial loans. Management continues to monitorraadt to national and local economic trends a$ agefjeneral portfolio conditions which may impt quality of the
portfolio, and considers these environmental factorsupport of the allowance for loan loss reseiManagement believes that the current level efallowance for loan losses, at $5.0 million, adéefy addresses the current
level of risk within the loan portfolio. The Compamaintains strict loan underwriting standards eactfully monitors the performance of the loan fodid.

Foreclosed real estate (“FRE") balances increasékaember 31, 2013, from the prior year as theyray values of the sales throughout 2013 wereamsa with FRE balances with higher carrying valuBso of the
additions to FRE balances were commercial propettialing $209,000. The total inventory of FREhegned at eight properties at December 31, 20128am8.

The Company sold a repossessed boat in 2013, wiirging value of $235,000 at December 31, 201¢hvresulted in a $65,000 write-down during 2013.
The Company generally places a loan on nonaccraiaissand ceases accruing interest when loan payresormance is deemed unsatisfactory and theifopast due 90 days or more. There are no Ideisate past due 90

days or more and still accruing interest. The Camypconsiders a loan impaired when, based on durfemmation and events, it is probable that tlemPany will be unable to collect the scheduled peyts of principal and
interest when due according to the contractualgerhthe loan.
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Had the loans in nonaccrual status performed inrdemce with their original terms, additional imtstrincome of $117,000 and $124,000 would have bessrded for the years ended December 31, 201®andmber 31,

2012, respectively.

The measurement of impaired loans is generallycbapen the fair value of the collateral, with atjmor of the impaired loans measured based upoprsent value of future cash flows discounted athilstorical effective
interest rate. The Company used the fair valustiteral to measure impairment on commercial $aamd commercial real estate loans. At Decemhe2@®!3 and December 31, 2012, the Company had$i8ign and $6.7

million in loans, which were deemed to be impairedying specific reserves of $1.0 million and $8P8, respectively. The $1.0 million year over ydacrease in impaired loans was principally duéhéo$1.2 million

decrease in impaired residential mortgage loan2013, the Company elected to change the thre$bioiddividually measuring impairment on residahtortgage loans to $300,000 from $100,000, untessoan is part of
the total related credit to an impaired commenzal estate or commercial loan. The increase paired commercial real estate loans of $805,000paatally offset by a $556,000 decrease in imghtemmercial loans,
home equity and junior liens, and consumer loapifeatively. The threshold for individually measwy impairment on commercial real estate or comiakzans remains at $100,000 at December 31, 2013.

Management has identified potential problem loanaling $10.3 million as of December 31, 2013, careg to $11.7 million as of December 31, 2012. s€hieans have been internally classified as spewition or
substandard, yet are not currently considered iragair in nonaccrual status. Management has fihpotential credit problems which may resulthie borrowers not being able to comply with therenir loan repayment
terms and which may result in possible future imgzhloan reporting. The decrease in potential [praboans is principally due to decreases in consiakreal estate as one large commercial realeebmrower was identified
as impaired in 2013, thereby removed from poteptiablem loan status. Potential problem loansiwithe home equity and junior liens product classlided by $400,000.

As a result, the ratio of the allowance to loan be@de losses to period-end loans at December03B, ®as 1.48% as compared to December 31, 201236%L The increase was driven by the requiredipetiowance
required from the previously mentioned newly impditarge commercial borrower during 2013 and tleevgr in the loan portfolio.

Appraisals are obtained at the time a real esetersd loan is originated. For commercial retdtesheld as collateral, the property is geneliapected every two years. When evaluating ouityld collect from seconda
sources, appraised values are adjusted to reflecage of appraisal, the condition of the propettg, current local real estate market, and cosetb Properties are @ppraised when our evaluation of the current pty
condition and the local real estate market suggestees may not be accurate. Troubled Debt Restings (“TDR”) are loan restructurings in which tBank, for economic or legal reasons related t@xsting borrower
financial difficulties, grants a concession to tiebtor that it would not otherwise consider. Tyflica TDR involves a modification of terms of a defuch as reduction of the stated interest ratéhtoremaining original life of tt
debt, extension of the maturity date at a statesteést rate lower than the current market ratenéwv debt with similar risk, reduction of the fageaunt of the debt, or reduction of accrued inter&atrther details regarding TD
can be found in Note 5.

In the normal course of business, Pathfinder Barskgwld residential mortgage loans and participatigerests in commercial loans. As is typicaltia industry, Pathfinder Bank makes certain reptesiens and warranties to
the buyer. Pathfinder Bank maintains a quality marrogram for closed loans and considers thesrdsid uncertainties associated with potential ase requirements to be minimal.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established thrqugvision for loan losses and reduced by loargehaffs net of recoveries. The allowance for loarséssrepresents the amount available for probablgitdosses in tt
Companys loan portfolio as estimated by management. slas nent of the qualitative factors used iviragrat the required allowance for loan losseshagement considers changes in national and loocabeuic trends, tt
rate of the portfolio growth, trends in delinquerscnd nonaccrual balances, changes in loan pahdychanges in management experience and staffimgse factors, coupled with the recent histollisd experience within t
loan portfolio by product segment support the eastile and probable losses within the loan portfolio.

The Company establishes a specific allocation locanmercial loans identified as being impairedhaa balance in excess of $100,000. These loansrar®naccrual or have been risk rated under thrap@ays risk ratin
system as substandard, doubtful, or loss. The measmt of impaired loans is generally based uperptlesent value of future cash flows discountetienhistorical effective interest rate, except tihtollateraldependent loai
are measured for impairment based on the fair vafube collateral, less costs to sell. The majooit the Company’s impaired loans are collatelgppendent. The Company uses the fair value ofiteodl, less costs to sell
measure impairment on commercial and commercifestate loans. Residential real estate loangdass of $300,000 will also be included in thisidlial loan review. Residential real estate lokss than this amount will
included in impaired loans if it is part of theabtelated credit to a previously identified imgaircommercial loan.

The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 20832012 was $5.0 million and $4.5 million, or 248nd 1.35% of total year end loans, respectivBlgt loan chargeffs were $492,000 during 2013, as compared to $80
in 2012. The increase in net charge-offs werertedan all loan portfolio segments. As a regthie ratio of net charge-offs to period end wd$% in 2013 as compared to 0.10% in 2012.

The following table sets forth the allocation dbalance for loan losses by loan category for thiéoge indicated. The allocation of the allowangechtegory is not necessarily indicative of futlogses and does not restrict
use of the allowance to absorb losses in any catego

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Allocation Percent ¢ Allocation Percent ¢ Allocation Percent ¢ Allocation Percent ¢ Allocation Percent ¢

of the Loans t of the Loans t of the Loans t of the Loans t of the Loans t

(Dollars in thousands Allowance Total Loan: Allowance Total Loan: Allowance Total Loan: Allowance Total Loan: Allowance Total Loan:
Residential real esta $ 64¢ 49.2% $ 811 53.1% $ 664 53.2% $ 75C 51.7% $ 763 51.5%
Commercial real esta 2,302 28.(% 1,74¢ 24.6% 1,34¢ 24.2% 1,204 24.2% 1,00¢ 23.%
Commercial and municipi 1,23 15.2% 1,192 14. 7% 1,114 13.2% 1,08t 14.(% 864 13.5%
Home equity and junior lier 43z 6.2% 494 6.€% 501 8.C% 424 8.% 39C 9.%
Consumer loan 13€ 1.2% 16€ 1.C% 162 1.4% 89 1.2% 76 1.4%

Unallocatec 28¢ 88 192 98 (24)

Total $ 5,041 100.(% $ 4,501 100.(% $ 3,98( 100.(% $ 3,64¢ 100.(% $ 3,07¢ 100.(%
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The following table sets forth the allowance faaridosses for the periods indicated and relatéoktat

(Dollars In thousands

201 201Z 2011 201( 200¢
Balance at beginning of yea $ 4501 $ 398 $ 3648 % 307¢ % 2,47
Provisions charged to operating exper 1,032 82E 94C 1,05(C 87€
Recoveries of loans previously chargeoff:
Commercial real estate and lo¢ 41 64 1 55 -
Consume 71 65 49 36 20
Residential real esta 47 75 49 19 3
Total recoverie: 15¢ 204 99 11C 23
Loans charged off:
Commercial real estate and lo: (319) (231) (304) (385) (74)
Consume (179 (169) (16€) (157) (134
Residential real esta (15%) (10¢) (237) (48) (85)
Total charge-off (651) (50¢€) (707) (590) (293)
Net charg-offs (492) (309 (60€) (480) (270
Balance at end of yea $ 5041 $ 4501 % 398 $ 3648 $ 3,07¢
Net charg-offs to average loans outstand 0.15% 0.1(% 0.21% 0.1&% 0.11%
Allowance for loan losses to y+end loan: 1.48% 1.35% 1.31% 1.28% 1.17%

Deposits

The Company’s deposit base is drawn from eightdeilice offices in its market area. The depossebeonsists of demand deposits, money managemegmhamney market deposit accounts, savings, anddepesits. Durin
2013, 61% of the Company's average deposit ba$é13f.4 million consisted of core deposits. Corgadéts, which exclude time deposits, are consideydze more stable and provide the Company withweet cost source
funds than time deposits. The Company will corgitu emphasize retail core deposits by maintaiit;getwork of full service offices and providingmbsitors with a full range of deposit product offgs. With the opening
our Syracuse Branch in 2014, we anticipate incngasur deposit gathering capability. In additioatifinder Commercial Bank, our commercial bank &iliégy, seeks business growth by focusing on italladentification an

service excellence within the municipal depositkegplace.

Average deposits increased $24.7 million, or 6.4fen compared to 2012. The increase in averagesdepprimarily related to increases in demand st NOW accounts, money market deposit accourdssaving
accounts. At December 31, 2013, retail depositsicercial deposits and municipal deposits incre&8e2i million, $8.9 million and $6.6 million, respively.

total deposits.

At December 31, 2013, time deposits in excess 80FIDO0 totaled $88.7 million, or 55% of time dep®sind 22% of total deposits. At December 31, 2@iese deposits totaled $85.1 million, or 52%iraktdeposits and 22%
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The following table indicates the amount of the @amy’s certificates of deposit of $100,000 or maydime remaining until maturity as of December 2013:

(In thousands
Remaining Maturity:

Three months or les $ 39,55t
Three through six montt 18,49:
Six through twelve montr 15,70(
Over twelve month 14,98(

Total $ 88,72)
Borrowings

Short-term borrowings are comprised primarily ofautes and overnight borrowing at the Federal Hboz Bank of New York (“FHLBNY”). At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 there $24.0 million and $9
million, respectively, in short-term borrowings standing.

The following table represents information regagdsimort-term borrowings during 2013, 2012 and 2011:

(Dollars in thousands 2012 2017 2011
Maximum outstanding at any month € $ 27,86( $ 14,08 $ 11,10¢
Average amount outstanding during the y 14,87¢ 5,781 5,371
Average interest rate during the y: 0.4(% 0.45% 0.5(%

Long-term borrowed funds consist of advances apdrohase agreements from the FHLBNY and junior siibated debentures associated with our outstantiingt Preferred Securities. Lotgrm borrowed funds, whi
include the ESOP loan, and junior subordinated wieipes, totaled $22.0 million at December 31, 284 8ompared to $31.1 million at December 31, 2012.

Capital

The Companys shareholders' equity at December 31, 2013, wag $dillion as compared to $40.7 million at Decenibk, 2012. The Company added $2.1 million toinet earnings through net income less dividendiads
on common stock. Accumulated other comprehensise Worsened by $427,000 due principally to theraéx impact of the decline in unrealized holdgains of the available for sale securities porfalihich occurred ¢
market interest rates increase in 2013 and theeBdyetr 2013 transfer of available for sale secsritieheld-to-maturity status which froze the las$ace value on these securities, collectively tiegly impacting shareholders’
equity by $2.2 million. Partially offsetting thiecline was the current year decrease in net aatlass, after tax, on the Compasy'etirement plans of $1.6 million. This favorabigpact was the result of positive earni
performance on the Company’s frozen pension plaetasnd higher interest rates causing a reductidre pension benefit obligation.

Risk-based capital provides the basis for which all baarle evaluated in terms of capital adequacy. t@lagilequacy is evaluated primarily by the useatibs which measure capital against total asseta/edl as against tot
assets that are weighted based on defined rislactesistics. The Comparg/goal is to support growth and expansion actjitkehile maintaining a strong capital position @xdeeding regulatory standards. At Decembe
2013, the Bank exceeded all regulatory requiredmim capital ratios and met the regulatory defimitdf a “well-capitalized” institution, i.e. a lenage capital ratio exceeding 5%, a Tier 1 tisised capital ratio exceeding
and a total risk-based capital ratio exceeding 1@&a result of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Compangbility to raise new capital through the userasttpreferred securities may be limited becaussettsecurities will no longer
included in Tier 1 capital. In addition, our atyilto generate or originate additional revenue peiity assets may be constrained in the futurederao comply with anticipated heightened capitahdards required by state :
federal regulation. See Note 18 to the consolidfiteshcial statements for further discussion orutery capital requirements.
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LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves the Compasbility to generate cash or otherwise obtain $uatireasonable rates to support asset growth, degesit withdrawals, maintain reserve requiremeantsl otherwise operate
Company on an ongoing basis. The Company's prisauyces of funds are deposits, borrowed fundsrtaration and prepayment of loans and maturitiegeéstment securities and other shtertm investments, and earnil
and funds provided from operations. While schediydencipal repayments on loans are a relativebdjmtable source of funds, deposit flows and losp@yments are greatly influenced by general istenaes, econorr
conditions and competition. The Company managesptiting of deposits to maintain a desired depoaiance. In addition, the Company invests exf@sds in short-term interes@rning and other assets, which pro
liquidity to meet lending requirements.

The Company's liquidity has been enhanced by iiityato borrow from the FHLBNY, whose competitivedvance programs and lines of credit provide then@my with a safe, reliable, and convenient soofceinds. #
significant decrease in deposits in the future ¢oabult in the Company having to seek other ssuo¢dunds for liquidity purposes. Such sourcesl@anclude, but are not limited to, additional lmwings, brokered deposi
negotiated time deposits, the sale of "availabtesfide" investment securities, the sale of secudtizans, or the sale of whole loans. Such actimedd result in higher interest expense costs andéses on the sale of securi
or loans.

For the year ended 2013, as indicated in the Cintadet! Statement of Cash Flows, the Company reppotecash flows from financing activities of $2#nfllion generated principally by increased balancedemand and savir
deposits, money market deposit accounts and shontthorrowings. Additionally, $5.1 million was pided through operating activities. This was irtedsin available-fosale investment securities of $11.1 million, net ae
increase in loan outstandings of $9.1 million. a=curring source of liquidity, the Company's istreent securities provided $22.2 million in proce&dm maturities and principal reductions for flear ended 2013.

The Company has a number of existing credit féediavailable to it. Total credit available undee existing lines is approximately $149.8 millioAt December 31, 2013, the Company had $40.0anilbutstanding und
existing credit facilities.

The Asset Liability Management Committee of the @any is responsible for implementing the policied guidelines for the maintenance of prudent levélquidity. As of December 31, 2013, managememorted to th
Board of Directors that the Company is in complemdth its liquidity policy guidelines.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is also a party to financial instrursemth off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesteet the financing needs of its customers.s&limancial instruments include commitments teedtcredit an

standby letters of credit. At December 31, 20h&, Company had $41.0 million in outstanding comraiite to extend credit and standby letters of creBite Note 16 to Notes to Consolidated FinanditeSients contain
herein.
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ITEM 7A : QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES  ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not required of a smaller reporting compa
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MANAGEMEN’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RERRET

The Company’s management is responsible for estaby and maintaining adequate internal controf dmancial reporting, as such term is defined le® 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exaje Act of 1934, as
amended. Because of its inherent limitations, irgecontrol over financial reporting may not preivendetect misstatements. Also, projections of evgluation of effectiveness to future periodssargiect to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in aogjibr that the degree of compliance with policegrocedures may deteriorate. The Company’sriatezontrol over financial reporting is a processigned under the
supervision of the Company'’s principal executivéicef and principal financial officer to provideagonable assurance regarding the reliability afrfaial reporting and the preparation of the Com{safiyancial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance withadin8tates generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomainagement, including the Company’s principal ekee officer and principal financial officer, tf@mpany conducted an evaluation of the effectiveésts internal control

over financial reporting based on the frameworknirernal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission. Based on its evalnatioder that framework,
management concluded that the Company’s intermdta@oover financial reporting was effective asDeficember 31, 2013. In addition, based on our assggs management has determined that there wereaterial weaknesses
in the Company's internal controls over financigporting.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of the Company’s independent registeredipaaicounting firm regarding internal control o¥ieancial reporting pursuant to the rules of thedBd-rank Act that exempts
the Company from such attestation and requires malyagement’s report.

/sl Thomas W. Schneider /sl James A. Dow
Thomas W. Schneid: James A. Dowt
President & Chief Executive Offict Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Oswego, New York
March 17, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfting

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséates of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. a@ubsidiaries (the “Companygs of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the relatesotidated statements of incol
comprehensive income, changes in shareholderstyeapil cash flows for each of the years then entleese consolidated financial statements are gporssibility of the Compang’management. Our responsibility is to ex
an opinion on these consolidated financial statésnessed on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBio(United States). Those standards require teaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonatserance abo
whether the consolidated financial statements ree ¢f material misstatement. The Company is rqired to have, nor were we engaged to perforngutit of its internal control over financial regog. Our audit include
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, butaerothie purpose of expressing an opinion on thecéffeness of the Comparsy
internal control over financial reporting. Accordip, we express no such opinion. An audit alsoudek examining, on a test basis, evidence suppattiemn amounts and disclosures in the consolidateshdial statemen:
assessing the accounting principles used and ®ignifestimates made by management, as well asatiraj the overall presentation of the consoliddieeahcial statements. We believe that our auditwige a reasonable be
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagreferred to above present fairly, in all mate®spects, the financial position of Pathfinden8arp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 313 20l 2012 and the results
their operations and their cash flows for eacthefytears then ended in conformity with accountiriggiples generally accepted in the United StafeSnoerica.

/s/ BONADIO & CO., LLP

Bonadio & Co., LLP
Syracuse, New York
March 17, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.

December 3: December 3:
(In thousands, except share and per share ¢ 2012 2012
ASSETS:
Cash and due from ban 6,53 $ 6,43¢
Interest earning depos 10,04( 2,23(
Total cash and cash equivale 16,57¢ 8,66t
Interest earning time depos 50C 2,00(
Available-for-sale securities, at fair val 80,95¢ 108,33¢
Held-to-maturity securities, at amortized cost (fair vai34,222 and $0, respective 34,41: -
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at ¢ 2,44( 1,92¢
Loans 341,63( 333,74¢
Less: Allowance for loan loss 5,041 4,501
Loans receivable, ni 336,59: 329,24
Premises and equipment, | 11,64« 10,10¢
Accrued interest receivab 1,71¢ 1,713
Foreclosed real este 61¢ 42€
Intangible assets, n 187 -
Goodwill 4,367 3,84(C
Bank owned life insuranc 8,26¢ 8,04¢
Other asset BEIE 3,47¢
Total asset 503,79¢ $ 477,79¢
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Deposits:
Interes-bearing 361,96¢ $ 347,89.
Noninteres-bearing 48,17: 43,91:
Total deposit: 410,14( 391,80!
Shor-term borrowings 24,00( 9,00
Long-term borrowings 16,85% 25,96+
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Accrued interest payab 86 14C
Other liabilities 4,48¢ 4,98¢
Total liabilities 460,72: 437,04¢
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stoc- SBLF, par value $0.01 per share; $1,000 liquidgaticeference
13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 shares issuedistdnding 13,00( 13,00(
Common stock, par value $0.01; authorized 10,0@sb@res; 2,979,969 a
2,980,469 shares issued and 2,623,182 and 2,618)#88s outstanding, respectiv 30 30
Additional paid in capita 8,22¢ 8,12(
Retained earninc 28,78¢ 26,68
Accumulated other comprehensive | (1,74%) (1,31¢)
Unearned ESO (82€) (93€)
Treasury stock, at cost; 356,787,and 362,287 shagsectively (4,767) (4,839
Total Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc shareholders' ec 42,71: 40,747
Noncontrolling interes 35¢ -
Total equity 43,07( 40,747
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ 503,79 $ 477,79t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statemer
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(In thousands, except per share d¢

PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the yee
ende
December 31, 20:

For the yee
ende
December 31, 20:

Interest and dividend income:

Loans, including fee $ 16,347 16,08:
Debt securities
Taxable 1,57¢ 1,76
Tax-exempt 762 72¢
Dividends 174 165
Interest earning time depos 19 24
Federal funds sold and interest earning dep 7 4
Total interest incom 18,88 18,76¢
Interest expense
Interest on deposi 2,47¢ 2,89¢
Interest on sho-term borrowings 60 26
Interest on lon-term borrowings 72€ 98€
Total interest expen 3,26¢ 3,90¢
Net interest incon 15,61¢ 14,857
Provision for loan losse 1,032 82E
Net interest income after provision foam losse 14,587 14,03
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accot 1,17¢ 1,112
Earnings and gain on bank owned life insure 224 30¢
Loan servicing fee 14€ 211
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentites 365 37t
Net gains on sales of loans and foreclosed reafe 47C 61
Debit card interchange fe 46¢ 42€
Other charges, commissions & fe 567 56¢
Total noninterest incor 3,41¢ 3,068
Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee bene 8,081 7,49¢
Building occupanc 1,47¢ 1,427
Data processin 1,44+ 1,437
Professional and other servic 65¢ 654
Amortization of intangible asse 1 -
Advertising 537 45%
FDIC assessmen 41t 311
Audits and exam 21¢ 24¢
Other expense 1,91¢ 1,492
Total noninterest expen 14,75 13,51¢
Income before income tax 3,252 3,571
Provision for income taxe 847 92¢
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interestand Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. 2,40t 2,64¢
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter (1) -
Net income attributable to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. $ 2,40¢ 2,64¢
Preferred stock dividenc - 44¢
Net income available to common shareholdel $ 2,40¢ 2,19¢
Earnings per common share- basic 0.9€ 0.8¢€
Earnings per common share- diluted 0.98 0.87
Dividends per common share 0.12 0.12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statement.
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Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incon

Years Endet

(In thousands December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Net Income $ 2408 $ 2,64¢
Other Comprehensive | ncome
Retirement Plans

Retirement plan net losses recognized in plan esgs 381 39t

Gain on plan losses not recognized in plan expesrsd

pension plan curtailme 2,59( 1,02¢

Net unrealized gains on retirement pl 2,971 1,42C
Unrealized holding gains on financial derivati

Change in unrealized holding losses on financielegve 2 (53

Reclassification adjustment for interest expenskided in net incom 62 58
Net unrealized gain on financial derivat 60 5
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on avail-for-sale securities

Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising durirgykriod (2,07%) 1,192

Reclassification adjustment for net gains inclughedet income (365) (375)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on securities ava-for-sale securitie (2,440 817
Unrealized loss on securities transferred to-to-maturity () (1,302) -
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before (711) 2,24%
Tax effect 284 (896)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of (427) 1,34¢
Comprehensive inconr 1,97¢ 3,994
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliimigrest (1) -
Comprehensive income attributable to PathfindercBgm Inc. 1,97¢ 3,994
Tax Effect Allocated to Each Component of Other @oghensive Incom
Retirement plan net losses recognized in plan esgs $ (152 $ (15§)
Gain on plan losses not recognized in plan expesrsgspension plan curtailme (1,036) (410)
Change in unrealized holding losses on financievetéve (1) 21
Reclassification adjustment for interest expenskided in net incom (24) (23
Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising durirgpbrioc 83C (47€)
Reclassification adjustment for net gains inclughedet income 14€ 15C
Unrealized loss on securities transferred to-to-maturity (1) 521 -
Income tax effect related to other comprehensiuerire $ 284 $ (89€6)

(1) The accretion of the unrealized holding losseaccumulated other comprehensive income at the afatransfer partially offsets the amortizatidntiee difference between the par value and theviaine of the investme
securities at the date of transfer, and is an &djerst of yield.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢ingolidated financial statements.
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2

Accumulate
Additional Other Cor- Non
Preferre Commor Paid ir Retaine: prehensiv Unearne Treasur controlling

(In thousands, except share and per st

data) Stock Stock Capita Earning: Loss ESOF Stock Interes Total

Balance, January 1, 201 $ 13,00 $ 36 % 812( $ 26,68t $ 31 $ (9360 $ 483) $ - 3% 40,747
Net income - - - 2,40¢ - - - - 2,40¢
Other comprehensive loss, net of - - - - (427) - - - (427)
ESOP shares earned (12,500 she - - 53 - - 11C - - 162
Stock based compensati - - 81 - - - - - 81
Stock options exercise - - (29 - - - 73 - 45
Common stock dividends declar

($0.12 per share - - - (303) - - - - (309)
Change in noncontrolling intere - - - - - - - 35€ 35€

Balance, December 31, 201 $ 13,00( $ 30 $ 8,22¢ $ 28,78¢ $ (1,745 $ (8260 $ (4,76) $ 35¢ $ 43,07(

Balance, January 1, 201 $ 13,000  $ 30 $ 873 $ 24616 $ (2,669 $ (1,039 $ 483) $ -3 37,84:
Net income - - - 2,64¢ - - - - 2,64¢
Other comprehensive income, net of - - - - 1,34¢ - - - 1,34¢
Purchase of CPP Warrants fr

Treasury - - (70€) 16¢ - - - - (537)
Preferred stock dividen-- SBLF - - - (449) - - - - (449)
ESOP shares earned (11,645 she - - 11 - - 102 - - 114
Stock based compensati - - 79 - - - - - 79
Stock options exercise - - 6 - - - - - 6
Common stock dividends declared

($0.12 per share) - - - (301) - - - - (301)

Balance, December 31, 201 $ 13,00 $ 30 % 812( $ 26,68t $ (1,319 $ (9360 $ (4839 $ - 3% 40,74,

The accompanying notes are an integral parteo€émsolidated financial statements.
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December &

(In thousands 201% 2012
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 2,406 $ 2,64¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashiglrom operating activitie:

Provision for loan losse 1,032 82t
Deferred income tax expense (bene 20z (27€)
Proceeds from sales of loz 11,45¢ 21z
Originations of loans he-for-sale (11,01¢) (195)
Realized gains on sales and redemption

Real estate acquired through foreclos (27) (44)
Loans (449) 17)
Available-for-sale investment securiti (365) (375)
Premise and equipme (6) -
Depreciatior 71E 781
Amortization of mortgage servicing rigt 10 7
Amortization of deferred loan cos 111 16C
Earnings on bank owned life insurar (222) (272)
Realized gain on proceeds from bank owned liferarsce 2) (37)
Net amortization of premiums and discounts on itmesit securitie 722 1,052
Amortization of intangible asse 1 -
Stock based compensation and ESOP exf 242 19z
Net change in accrued interest receiv: 2 (32
Pension plan contributic - (2,600
Net change in other assets and liabili 28¢ 73E
Net cash flows from operating activities 5,111 2,76€
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities avail-for-sale (30,03¢) (50,66%)
Purchase of investment securities l-to-maturity (10,439 -
Net purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank s (51)) (401)
Proceeds from maturities of interest earning tireposits 1,50C -
Proceeds from maturities and principal reductidr

investment securities availa-for-sale 21,83: 26,34¢
Proceeds from maturities and principal reductidr

investment securities he-to-maturity 35¢E -
Proceeds from sales and redemption:

Available-for-sale investment securiti 7,151 16,512
Real estate acquired through foreclos e 47C
Premise and equipme 18 -
Acquisition of controlling interest in Fitzgibbo#giency, net of cash acquired of $ (356) -
Proceeds from bank owned life insura 2 20z
Net change in loar (9,075 (29,819
Purchase of premises and equipn (2,267%) (192)
Net cash flows from investing activities (21,447) (37,549
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in demand deposits, NOW accounts, sseicepunts

money management deposit accounts, MMDA accoumtesacrow deposii 21,76« 15,70C
Net change in time deposits and brokered dep (3,429 9,97¢
Net change in shc-term borrowings 15,00( 9,00(
Payments on lor-term borrowings (9,11)) (4,110
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings - 4,000
Purchase of CPP warrants from the US Trea - (537)
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 45 5
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehc- SBLF (83 (507)
Cash dividends paid to common sharehol: (30%) (301)
Change in noncontrolling interest, 1 35€ -
Net cash flows from financing activities 24,24 33,22¢
Change in cash and cash equivalen 7,91( (1,559)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 8,66¢ 10,21¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric 1657F $ 8,66t
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December &

(In thousands 201: 2012
CASH PAID DURING THE PERIOD FOR:

Interest 331 $ 3,91t
Income taxe: 967 402
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITY

Real estate acquired in exchange for Ic 587 357
Transfer of availab-for-sale securities to he-to-maturity 32,49t -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statemer
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiewtade the accounts of Pathfinder Bancorp, Irfee (Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Fatter Bank (the “Bank”)The Bank has four wholly owned opera
subsidiaries, Pathfinder Commercial Bank, PathfirRisk Management Company, Inc. (‘PRMC"), Pathfin&EIT, Inc. and Whispering Oaks Development Cdtpsignificant intereompany accounts and activity have t
eliminated in consolidation. Although the Companyns, through its subsidiary PRMC, 51% of the mensttip interest in Fitzgibbons Agency, LLC (“Fitzbibns”),the Company is required to consolidate 100% ofgtitzon:
within the consolidated financial statements. #B&b of which the Company does not own is accoufttedeparately as noncontrolling interests witlie consolidated financial statements.

The Company has seven offices located in Oswegat@aund one office in Onondaga County which opeoedusiness in the first quarter of 2012. The @any plans to open an additional location in dowmi&yracuse with
target opening in the ® quarter of 2014. The Company is primarily engagethé business of attracting deposits from the iggmeiblic in the Compang’ market area, and investing such deposits, togeitie other sources
funds, in loans secured by one-to-four family resiéhl real estate, commercial real estate, busiassets and in investment securities.

Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., (the “Holding Compang“nutual holding company whose activity is notumigld in the accompanying consolidated financiaéstants, owns approximately 60.4% of the outstand@mmon stoc
of the Company.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of ConsolidateBinancial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadlccepted in the United States of America requinesagement to make estimates and assumptionaftaet the reporte
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosurafingent assets and liabilities at the datéeffinancial statements and the reported amourresvehues and expenses during the reporting pekiidal results could differ fro
those estimates. Management has identified tloevatice for loan losses, deferred income taxes,igembligations, the annual evaluation of the Conypg goodwill for possible impairment and the evahlmtof investmer
securities for other than temporary impairment tedestimation of fair values for accounting anstitisure purposes to be the accounting areasetjaire the most subjective and complex judgmenmid,zs such, could be 1
most subject to revision as new information becoaweslable.

The Company is subject to the regulations of varigovernmental agencies. The Company also undemg@dic examinations by the regulatory ageneieish may subject it to further changes with respe@sset valuatior
amounts of required loss allowances, and operagisiictions resulting from the regulators' judgtsdrased on information available to them at time tof their examinations.
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Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company'’s activities are with customersted primarily in Oswego and Onondaga courdfdsew York State. A large portion of the Companportfolio is centered in residential and comnan®al estate. Tl
Company closely monitors real estate collateralesland requires additional reviews of commereial estate appraisals by a qualified third partyctonmercial real estate loans in excess of $400,0te 4 discusses the ty
of securities that the Company invests in. NotisBusses the types of lending that the Companggasin. The Company does not have any signifimamtentrations to any one industry or customer.

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the sasftadvertising to expense as incurred.

Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest represents the portionwhership and profit or loss that is attributablétte minority owners of the Fitzgibbons Agen

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handjrasdue from banks and interest-bearing depasits original maturity of three months or less).

Investment Securities

The Company classifies investment securities deevailable-for-sale or held-to-maturity. Then@mny does not hold any securities considered twding. Available-forsale securities are reported at fair value, witt
unrealized gains and losses reflected as a sepamaeonent of shareholders’ equity, net of the iapple income tax effect. Held-toaturity securities are those that the Companyttisbility and intent to hold until matur

and are reported at amortized cost. These seuiitclude those that were transferred from avieifdy-sale to held-to-maturity in the third quareé 2013, and more fully explained in Note 4 te fimancial statements.

Gains or losses on investment security transactioedased on the amortized cost of the specifiaries sold. Premiums and discounts on secsariire amortized and accreted into income usingnteeest method over t
period to maturity.

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statementiides additional information about the Comg’s accounting policies with respect to the impainimef investment securities.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of theéefal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system to hold staaflits district FHLB according to a predeterminednfiula. The stock is carried at cost.
Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at thestonf cost or fair value. Fair value is determiitethe aggregate. There were no loans held-fier&aforward commitments outstanding as of Decer8tie 2013 and 2012.
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Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets, including salesoahb and loan participations, are accounted feakes when control over the assets has been sareghdControl over transferred assets is deemee gurrendered when (1)
assets have been isolated from the Company, (2fahsferee obtains the right (free of conditidmet tonstrain it from taking advantage of that tigb pledge or exchange the transferred assetis(3rthe Company does |
maintain effective control over the transferrecegsshrough an agreement to repurchase them kéfirenaturity.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial, municigal,consumer loans to customers. Loans that mareg has the intent and ability to hold for the$eeable future or until maturity or paff-are stated at their outstand
unpaid principal balances, less the allowancedan llosses plus net deferred loan origination c@$ts ability of the Compang’debtors to honor their contracts is dependem tiporeal estate and general economic conditit
the market area. Interest income is generallygeieed when income is earned using the interestadefNonrefundable loan fees received and relatedtcrigination costs incurred are deferred amdrized over the life of tt
loan using the interest method, resulting in a otteffective yield over the loan term. Deferredd are recognized into income and deferred cosisharged to income immediately upon prepaymettieofelated loan.

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented intsidential mortgage, commercial and consumer lodihe residential mortgage segment consists of ofedr family firstlien residential mortgages and construc
loans. Commercial loans consist of the followit@sses: real estate, lines of credit, other comialeaad industrial, and municipal loans. Consufoans include both home equity lines of credit &ahs with junior liens ar
other consumer loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents manag&mestimate of losses inherent in the loan portfaioof the date of the statement of condition anisl iecorded as a reduction of loans. The all@eas increased by t
provision for loan losses, and decreased by chaifgenet of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uectitile are charged against the allowance for losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, aréexdd the allowance. All,

part, of the principal balance of loans receivatrke charged off to the allowance as soon as etisrohined that the repayment of all, or part, efghincipal balance is highly unlikely. Naasidential consumer loans are gene
charged off no later than 120 days past due omaamual basis, unless productive collection éffare providing results. Consumer loans may laegehl off earlier in the event of bankruptcy, othiére is an amount thai
deemed uncollectible. No portion of the allowafardoan losses is restricted to any individuangoduct and the entire allowance is availableltsorb any and all loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel leonsidered adequate to provide for lossesdédnatbe reasonably anticipated. Management perfarquarterly evaluation of the adequacy of thevadlice. The allowance
based on three major components which are; specifipponents for larger loans, recent historicadgsand several qualitative factors applied toreige pool of loans, and an unallocated component.

The first component is the specific component thkdtes to loans that are classified as impaifeat. these loans, an allowance is established wieediscounted cash flows or collateral value ofitiyeaired loan is lower than t
carrying value of that loan.
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The second or general component covers pools af)day loan class, not considered impaired, smbiénce homogeneous loans, such as residenti@steée, home equity and other consumer loanssépools of loans ¢
evaluated for loss exposure first based on hisiblass rates for each of these categories of |0Ems ratio of net chargeffs to loan outstandings within each product ¢las®r the most recent eight quarters, lagged e
quarter, is used to generate the historical lagsran addition, qualitative factors are addeth#historical loss rates in arriving at the tatédwance for loan loss need for this general mbdbans. The qualitative factors inclt
changes in national and local economic trendstatesof growth in the portfolio, trends of delingeées and nonaccrual balances, changes in loatypalid changes in lending management experierntcestated staffing. Ea
factor is assigned a value to reflect improvingpkt or declining conditions based on managersdrgst judgment using relevant information avadladt the time of the evaluation. These qualitatactors, applied to ea
product class, make the evaluation inherently stibje, as it requires material estimates that maysisceptible to significant revision as more imfation becomes available. Adjustments to the facape supported throu
documentation of changes in conditions in a nargaiccompanying the allowance for loan loss amabysd calculation.

The third or unallocated component is maintainedaeer uncertainties that could affect managersesdtimate of probable losses. The unallocategonent of the allowance reflects the margin of ieefsion inherent in tt
underlying assumptions used in the methodologiesgtimating specific and general losses in thé@ar and generally comprises less than 10% oft¢ite allowance for loan loss.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuimdormation and events, it is probable that tleenpany will be unable to collect the scheduled payts of principal or interest when due accordinthecontractual terms
the loan agreement. Factors considered by managemeletermining impairment include payment statdlateral value and the probability of collegtischeduled principal and interest payments when dians th:
experience insignificant payment delays and payrsieottfalls generally are not classified as imphirManagement determines the significance of payuielays and shortfalls on a cdseease basis, taking into consideratio
of the circumstances surrounding the loan and thitver, including the length and reason for thiaylethe borrowes prior payment record and the amount of shoriffiatelation to what is owed. Impairment is meadug
either the present value of the expected futurh flaws discounted at the loan’s effective intemasé or the fair value of the underlying collatéf¢he loan is collateral dependent. The majoat the Companyg loans utilize th
fair value of the underlying collateral.

An allowance for loan loss is established for apaired loan if its carrying value exceeds its eated fair value. The estimated fair values of tariiglly all of the Companyg’ impaired loans are measured based on the es
fair value of the loan’s collateral. For loanswsed by real estate, estimated fair values araméted primarily through thirgharty appraisals, less costs to sell. Appraisdaegaare discounted to arrive at the estimatethg
price of the collateral, which is considered tale estimated fair value. The discounts also tfelestimated costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by mah-estate collateral, such as accounts receiviavientory and equipment, estimated fair valuesdatermined based on the borrowdinancial statements, inventory repc
accounts receivable agings or equipment apprasatsoices. Indications of value from these sesrare generally discounted based on the age @ihtreial information or the quality of the assets

Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectigeituated for impairment. Accordingly, the Compalmes not separately identify individual residdntimrtgage loans less than $300,000, home equityodmer consum
loans for impairment disclosures, unless such leaaselated to borrowers with impaired commerciahs or they are the subject to a troubled dedttueturing agreement for those with a carryingieah excess of $300,000.

-64




Table of Contents

Commercial loans whose terms are modified are iiledss troubled debt restructurings if the Compgrants such borrowers concessions and it is déénaé those borrowers are experiencing finangféitdlty. Concessior
granted under a troubled debt restructuring gelyarallude but are not limited to a temporary refitutin the interest rate or an extension of a lsatated maturity date. Commercial loans classédgtroubled debt restructurii
with a carrying value in excess of $100,000 arégtiesed as impaired and evaluated as discusse@abov

The allowance calculation methodology includeshiertsegregation of loan classes into risk ratinggm@ies. The borrowes’overall financial condition, repayment sourcesrgntors and value of the collateral, if apprdpriar
evaluated not less than annually for commerciatdoar when credit deficiencies arise on all loa@sedit quality risk ratings include regulatory sdifications of special mention, substandard, daubhd loss. See Note 5 fo
description of these regulatory classifications.

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as agmal part of their examination process, periotiicaview the Companyg' allowance for loan losses and may require theg@omto recognize additions to the allowance bas
their judgments about information available to thatrthe time of their examination, which may notdoerently available to management. Based on nemagts comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, agemer
believes the current level of the allowance fonlézsses is adequate.

Income Recognition on Impaired and Nonaccrual Loans

For all classes of loans receivable, the accruaitefest is discontinued when the contractual payrof principal or interest has become 90 days ghas or management has serious doubts about furtliectability of principe
or interest, even though the loan may be currgrgljorming. A loan may remain on accrual statuig in the process of collection and is eithaanteed or well secured. When a loan is placedomaccrual status, unp
interest is reversed and charged to interest incdnterest received on nonaccrual loans, includimggaired loans, generally is either applied agginsicipal or reported as interest income, acedo managemerstjudgment &
to the collectability of principal. Generally, lnmare restored to accrual status when the oldigasi brought current, has performed in accordavittethe contractual terms for a reasonable peoiotime, generally six montt
and the ultimate collectability of the total comtizal principal and interest is no longer in doulbnaccrual troubled debt restructurings are redtto accrual status if principal and interestrpegts, under the modified terms,
current for six consecutive months after modificati

For nonaccrual loans, when future collectabilitytef recorded loan balance is expected, intereshie may be recognized on a cash basis. In thexdeese a nonaccrual loan had been partially chaoffedecognition of intere
on a cash basis is limited to that which would hbgen recognized on the recorded loan balanceeatahtractual interest rate. Cash interest recéipgxcess of that amount are recorded as receveithe allowance for lo.
losses until prior charge-offs have been fully resed.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instrumats

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyehtered into commitments to extend credit, inecigdiommitments under standby letters of creditchSinancial instruments are recorded when theyfarded.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation is computed straightine basis over the estimated useful lives of #lated assets, ranging up to 40 years for preraiseslO years fi

equipment. Maintenance and repairs are chargegamting expenses as incurred. The asset costa@udhulated depreciation are removed from the atsdor assets sold or retired and any resultirig galoss is included
the determination of income.
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Foreclosed Real Estate

Properties acquired through foreclosure, or by dadiu of foreclosure, are recorded at their fatue less estimated costs to sell. Fair valugpially determined based on evaluations by tipiadties. Costs incurred
connection with preparing the foreclosed real estat disposition are capitalized to the extent thay enhance the overall fair value of the prgpekny write-downs on the assetfair value less costs to sell at the da
acquisition are charged to the allowance for lassés. Subsequent write downs and expenses ofoised real estate are included as a valuatiowafioe and recorded in noninterest expense.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisitiver the fair value of the net assets acqui@oodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated anfyufdr impairment. Intangible assets, such asaust relationships, &
amortized over their useful lives, generally ovérygars.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

Originated mortgage servicing rights are recordetieir fair value at the time of transfer of thedated loans and are amortized in proportion toauat the period of estimated net servicing incamiss. The carrying value
the originated mortgage servicing rights is pedatly evaluated for impairment or between annualwations under certain circumstances.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs related to share-based paynaisattions are recognized based on the grantfaiatealue of the stockased compensation issued. Compensation costea@rgnized over the period that an empl
provides service in exchange for the award. Corsguion costs related to the Employee Stock OwneBlzin are dependent upon the average stock pritéha shares committed to be released to plaitiparits through tr
period in which income is reported.

Retirement Benefits

The Company has a naentributory defined benefit pension plan that cedesubstantially all employees. On May 14, 20b&, Gompany informed its employees of its decistfréeze participation and benefit accruals u
the plan, primarily to reduce some of the volatilit earnings that can accompany the maintenaneedefined benefit plan. The freeze became effectiine 30, 2012. Compensation earned by emplayetsJune 30, 2012
used for purposes of calculating benefits undempthe but there will be no future benefit accruater this date. Participants as of June 30, 2@llZontinue to earn vesting credit with respextheir frozen accrued benefits
they continue to work. Pension expense under thieses is charged to current operations and consfisisveral components of net pension cost basedrmous actuarial assumptions regarding futureeggpce under the plans.
Gains and losses, prior service costs and creditsany remaining transition amounts that haveyabbeen recognized through net periodic benefit ace recognized in accumulated other comprehehsss, net of tax effer
until they are amortized as a component of neppéricost. Plan assets and obligations are meassref the Company’s statement of condition date.
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The Company has unfunded deferred compensatioswglemental executive retirement plans for setecterent and former employees and officers thatide benefits that cannot be paid from a qualifietitement plan du
to Internal Revenue Code restrictions. These péaasnonqualified under the Internal Revenue Codd, assets used to fund benefit payments are noeégmgd from other assets of the Company, thereiorgeneral,
participant's or beneficiary's claim to benefitslenthese plans is as a general creditor.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownership (FESOP”)covering substantially all full time employees. eTtost of shares issued to the ESOP but not coettittbe released to the participants is presenttét
consolidated statement of condition as a reduafshareholdersequity. ESOP shares are released to the partisipaoportionately as the loan is repaid. The Camgpecords ESOP compensation expense based shate
committed to be released and allocated to theqgiaatit's accounts multiplied by the average shaeef the Company’s stock over the period. Dévids related to unallocated shares are recordemhgzensation expense.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are recorded on the statement of cimmdéts assets and liabilities measured at theivédie. The accounting for increases and decréagbe value of derivatives depends upon the @isiivatives and whether t
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting. The Campcurrently has one interest rate swap, whictbeas determined to be a cash flow hedge. Thedhie of cash-flow hedging instruments (“Cash Fléadge”)is recorded i
either other assets or other liabilities. On anaamg basis, the statement of condition is adjuste®flect the then current fair value of the CBibw Hedge. The related gains or losses are repartether comprehensive inco
(loss) and are subsequently reclassified into egspias a yield adjustment in the same period iichwihe related interest on the hedged item (piljnarvariablerate debt obligation) affect earnings. To the exthat the Cas
Flow Hedge is not effective, the ineffective pomtiof the Cash Flow Hedge is immediately recognaethterest expense.

Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxeemtlyrpayable or refundable and deferred incomestan temporary differences between the tax bdsissets and liabilities and their reported amoimt$ie consolidate
financial statements. Deferred tax assets anditiabiare reported in the consolidated financiatements at currently enacted income tax ratelicapfe to the period in which the deferred taxegssnd liabilities are expectec
be realized or settled.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed ligirdjvnet income, after preferred stock dividendd greferred stock discount accretion, by the wteigtaverage number of common shares outstandingghout eac

year. Diluted earnings per share gives effecteé@hted average shares that would be outstandsgrasg the exercise of issued stock options andamts using the treasury stock method. Unallocshedes of the Compa’s
ESOP plan are not included when computing earrpegshare until they are committed to be released.
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Segment Reporting

The Company has evaluated the activities relatnigststrategic business units. The controllingriest in the Fitzgibbons Agency is dissimilar ature and management when compared to the Congathgr strategic busine
units which are judged to be similar in nature amgnagement. The Company has determined that thgitfions Agency is below the reporting threshaldsize in accordance with Accounting Standards adion
280. Accordingly, the Company has determinedstiareportable segments.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accounting principles generally require that redagd revenue, expenses, gains and losses be idaludet income. Although certain changes in asaetl liabilities are reported as a separate coemaf the equity section
the statement of condition, such items, along wéhincome, are components of comprehensive income.

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) represhatsum of these items, with the exception of nedrime, as of the balance sheet date and is repeelserthe table below.

As of December 31

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss By Componen 2012 2012
Unrealized loss for pension and other postretirerobligations $ 63) $ (4,60€
Tax effect 65E 1,84:
Net unrealized loss for pension and other poséramt obligation (982) (2,765)
Unrealized loss on financial derivative instrumemgsd in cash flow hedging relationsh (135) (195)
Tax effect 54 78
Net unrealized loss on financial derivative instemts used in cash flow hedging relationsl (81) (117)
Unrealized gains on availa-for-sale securitie 16€ 2,60¢
Tax effect (67) (1,047%)
Net unrealized gains on availa-for-sale securitie 99 1,56¢
Unrealized loss on securities transferred to-to-maturity (1,302) -
Tax effect 521 -
Net unrealized loss on securities transferred ld-to-maturity (781) -
Accumulated other comprehensive It $ (1,745 8 (1,31¢)

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the 2012 consolidated finarst@tements have been reclassified to conform toutrent year presentation. These reclassificatimu no effect on net income as previously redorte
NOTE 2: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Stand&aisrd (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Updé&sSU”) 2014-04 — Receivables-Troubled Debt Restutiogs by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40). Topic 3iDprovide
guidance on situations in which a creditor obtaine or more collateral assets in satisfaction lafrapart of the receivable. That guidance indisahat a creditor should reclassify a collateealimortgage loan such that the |
should be derecognized and the collateral assegn&ed when it determines that there has beenbstance a repossession or foreclosure by thetarethiat is, the creditor receives physical posisesof the debtos asse
regardless of whether formal foreclosure proceexitage place. However, the terms in substance seps®n or foreclosure and physical possessionairdefined in the accounting literature and thereiversity about when
creditor should derecognize the loan receivable ragdgnize the real estate property. That divetsity been highlighted by recent extended foreatosmrelines and processes related to residentdlestate properties. T
amendments in this Update apply to all creditors whtain physical possession (resulting from asuipstance repossession or foreclosure) of resideat! estate property collateralizing a consumertgage loan in satisfacti
of a receivable and are effective for public businentities for annual periods, and interim periaithin those annual periods, beginning after Deueni5, 2014. The Company does not expect a rahferpact on it
consolidated statements of condition, results efajons, or cash flows.
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NOTE 3: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividegtgncome available to common shareholders byviighted average number of common shares outsiguldiring the period. Net income available to canrshareholders
net income to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. less thel tot preferred dividends declared. Diluted earsipgr share include the potential dilutive efféetttcould occur upon the assumed exercise of isstoett options using tl
Treasury Stock method. Unallocated common shaets thy the ESOP are not included in the weigletegrage number of common shares outstanding fquopas of calculating earnings per common sharé tivety art
committed to be released to plan participants.

The following table sets forth the calculation ekt and diluted earnings per share:

Years Endet
December 31
(In thousands, except per share d¢ 201: 2012
Basic Earnings Per Common Sh
Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,406 $ 2,19¢
Weighted average common shares outstar 2,517 2,504
Basic earnings per common sh $ 09 $ 0.8¢
Diluted Earnings Per Common Shi
Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,406 $ 2,19¢
Weighted average common shares outstar 2,517 2,50«
Effect of assumed exercise of stock opti 14 8
Effect of assumed exercise of stock warri - 4
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar 2,531 2,51¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 098 $ 0.87
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NOTE 4: INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofstment securities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 201

Gros: Gros: Estimate:
Amortizec Unrealize Unrealize Fair
(In thousands Cos Gains Losse Value
Available-for-Sale Portfolio
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ 16,93 $ 2 8 (340 $ 16,591
State and political subdivisiol 6,42¢ 164 (6) 6,581
Corporate 13,49¢ 19¢ - 13,69¢
Residential mortgac-backec- US agency 42,37¢ 49€ (732) 42,14:
Total 79,24( 86( (1,079 79,02:
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 642 5 - 64¢
Large cap equity fun 45€ 19t - 651
Other mutual fund 182 162 - 34¢
Common stocl- financial services industi 271 22 - 298
Total 1,552 384 - 1,937
Total availabl-for-sale 80,79¢ $ 1,24¢  $ (1,079 $ 80,95¢
Held-to-Maturity Portfolio
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ 187: % NS 25 $ 1,847
State and political subdivisiol 21,37: 11 (11¢) 21,26«
Corporate 3,74¢ 16 (44 3,71¢
Residential mortgac-backec- US agency 7,428 - (30) 7,39¢
Total hele-to-maturity 3441 $ 21 % 217 $ 34,22;
December 31, 201
Gros: Gros: Estimate:
Available-for-Sale Portfolio Amortizec Unrealizet Unrealizet Fair
(In thousands Cos Gains Losse Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 16 $ @8 $ 6,18:
State and political subdivisiol 1,068 ) 27,47:
Corporate 46¢ (404) 23,00¢
Residential mortgac-backec- US agency 1,13¢ 1) 48,25:
Residential mortgac-backec- private labe 9 - 30¢
Total 102,93¢ 2,697 (420) 105,21t
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,28¢ 5 - 1,291
Large cap equity fun 90¢& 17€ - 1,081
Other mutual fund 182 13€ - 31¢
Common stocl- financial services industi 42C 12 - 432
Total 2,79¢ 32¢ - 3,128
Total investment securitie 105,73! $ 3,02¢ $ 420 $ 108,33¢

-70




Table of Contents

The Company’s investments in mortgage-backed seziinclude pastirough securities and collateralized mortgagegatiions issued and guaranteed by Fannie Mae, ferédac, and GNMA. As of December 31, 2013
December 31, 2012, no private-label mortgage-baskedrities or collateralized mortgage obligatiarese held in the securities portfolio. The Companpvestments in state and political obligationusities generally ai
municipal obligations that are general obligatisupported by the general taxing authority of tteaés, and in some cases are insured. The obligaissued by school districts are supported by stat. Primarily, the:
investments are issued by municipalities within Néovk State.

The Company elected to transfer 55 available-fee-§AFS”) securities with an aggregate fair vabfe$32.5 million to a classification of held-to-ragty (‘HTM”") on September 30, 2013. In accordamdth FASB ASC 320-10-
55-24, the transfer from AFS to HTM must be recordethe fair value of the AFS securities at the tiofieransfer. The net unrealized holding loss &3%00, net of tax, at the date of transfer waaimet! in accumulated ott
comprehensive loss, with the associatedtpxeamount retained in the carrying value of theMH3ecurities. Such amounts will be amortized tenest income over the remaining life of the seimgi The fair value of tl
transferred AFS securities became the book valtleeoH TM securities at September 30, 2013, witlume@alized gain or loss at this date. Future témpperiods, with potential changes in market edhr these securities, woi
likely record an unrealized gain or loss for discie purposes.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of delstments at December 31, 2013 by contractuainiaare shown below. Expected maturities magedifrom contractual maturities because borroweay fmave the right
call or prepay obligations with or without penadtie

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity

Amortizec Estimate: Amortizec Estimate:
Cos Fair Value Cos Fair Value

(In thousands
Due in one year or let $ 6,41¢ $ 6,43t $ 18¢ $ 18€
Due after one year through five ye 25,64¢ 25,83t 824 82t
Due after five years through ten ye 4,63¢ 4,44¢ 12,36( 12,30:
Due after ten yeai 161 161 13,61¢ 13,51¢
Sut-total 36,86: 36,88( 26,98¢ 26,82¢
Residential mortga-backec- US agenc 42,37¢ 42,14 7,428 7,39¢
Totals $ 7924  $ 79,02: $ 3441 $ 34,22:
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The Company’s investment securities’ gross unredllpsses and fair value, aggregated by investoaegory and length of time that individual sedesihave been in a continuous unrealized lossiposis as follows:

December 31, 201

Less than Twelve Montt Twelve Months or Mor Total

Number o Number o Number o

Individual Unrealize: Fait Individual Unrealize Fait Individua Unrealize Fair
Available-for-Sale Securitie Losse Value Securitie Losse Value Securitie Losse Value
(Dollars in thousands
US Treasury, agencies and GS 14 $ (340 3 15,57¢ - $ - $ - 14 $ (340) 3 115 57/
State and political subdivisiol 1 (4) 114 3 (2 397 4 (6) 511
Corporate - - - - - - - - -
Residential mortgar-backec- US
agency 25 (682) 23,44: 1 (50) 87¢ 2€ (732) 24,32(
Totals 40 $ (1,020 $ 39,12¢ 4 $ 52 $ 1,27% 44 $ (1,079 $ 40,40«
Held-to-Maturity
US Treasury, agencies and GS 2 $ 25 $ 1,841 = $ = $ = 2 $ 25 $ 1,847
State and political subdivisiol 37 (11¢) 17,81« - - - 37 (11¢) 17,81«
Corporate 4 (44) 3,171 - - - 4 (44) 3,171
Residential mortga-backec- US
agency 6 (30) 5,52¢ - - - 6 (30) 5,52¢
Totals 43 3 1) $ 28,35¢ -3 -3 - 48 3 217) $ 28,35¢

December 31, 201
Less than Twelve Montt Twelve Months or Mor Total
Number of Number of Number of
Individual Unrealizec Fair Individual Unrealizec Fair Individual Unrealizec Fair

Available-for-Sale Securities Losses Value Securities Losses Value Securities Losses Value
(Dollars in thousands
US Treasury, agencies and GS 1 $ ® $ 99z - $ - $ - 1 $ ® $ 99z
State and political subdivisiol 8 @ 2,00¢ - - - 8 @) 2,00¢
Corporate 2 (14) 974 2 (390) 1,58( 4 (404) 2,55¢
Residential mortga-backec- US
agency 2 (1) 1,411 - - - 2 (1) 1,411
Totals 13 $ (3C) % 5,38t 2 $ (390 $ 1,58( 15 $ (420 $ 6,96t

The Company conducts a formal review of investnseeurities on a quarterly basis for the presenczhar-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI"he Company assesses whether OTTI is present Waeefait value of a de
security is less than its amortized cost basidatstatement of condition date. Under these cistamees, OTTI is considered to have occurred (djeifintend to sell the security; (2) if it is “moligely than not"we will be
required to sell the security before recovery sfaitnortized cost basis; or (3) the present valuexpécted cash flows is not anticipated to be cefit to recover the entire amortized cost basiee guidance requires that credit-
related OTTI is recognized in earnings while noeeirrelated OTTI on securities not expected tosblel is recognized in other comprehensive incon@C("). Non-creditrelated OTTI is based on other factors, inclu
illiquidity and changes in the general intereserahvironment. Presentation of OTTI is made indbesolidated statement of income on a gross basisiding both the portion recognized in earniagswell as the portic
recorded in OCI. The gross OTTI would then beatiffsy the amount of non-credit-related OTTI, shaptine net as the impact on earnings.

Management does not believe any individual unredlibss in other securities within the portfolioaisDecember 31, 2013 represents OTTI. One indalignunicipal security is rated below investmergdgr, yet the curre
unrealized loss is less than $1,000 and has ordi replace for 1 month. All other related sedesitare rated A2 or better by Moodyand have been in unrealized loss positions fanadths or less, with the exception «
municipal securities and 1 mortgage-backed secufitye 3 municipal securities are issuances fronoaicdistricts located within the bank’s primary nket area. The mortgadecked security was issued by Fannie Mae.
unrealized losses in the portfolio are primarilfribtitable to changes in interest rates. The Camppmes not intend to sell these securities, ndrrigore likely than not that the Company will lejuired to sell these securit
prior to the recovery of the amortized cost.
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In determining whether OTTI has occurred for eqsitgurities, the Company considers the applicauifs described above and the length of timedbéyesecuritys fair value has been below the carrying amounnademer

has determined that we have the intent and abilitgtain the equity securities for a sufficientipe of time to allow for recovery. All of the Corapy’s equity securities had a fair value greater tharbbok value at December
2013.

Gross realized gains (losses) on sales and redmmspif securities for the years ended Decemberetletailed below:

(In thousands 201: 2012
Realized gain $ 37C $ 397
Realized losse (5) (22)

$ 36E $ 37t

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012riieswvith a fair value of $58.6 million and $46nflllion, respectively, were pledged to collatezalicertain municipal deposit relationships. Ashef same dates, securi
with a fair value of $21.6 million and $37.8 milliavere pledged against certain borrowing arrangésnen

Management has reviewed its loan and mortgage-taseurities portfolios and determined that, toltest of its knowledge, little or no exposure exist sub-prime or other higfisk residential mortgages. The Company is
in the practice of investing in, or originatingetie types of investments or loans.
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NOTE 5: LOANS

Major classifications of loans are as follows:

December 3: December 3:

(In thousands 2012 2012
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 166,29¢ $ 173,95!

Constructior 1,98: 2,65¢
Total residential mortgage loa 168,28( 176,61(
Commercial loans

Real estat: 95,53¢ 82,32¢

Lines of credi 14,44« 13,74¢

Other commercial and industri 32,67¢ 31,471

Municipal 5,127 3,58¢
Total commercial loan 147,77 131,14
Consumer loans

Home equity and junior lier 21,11( 22,07¢

Other consume 4,16¢€ 3,46¢
Total consumer loar 25,27¢ 25,54:
Total loans 341,330 333,29¢

Net deferred loan cos 30C 454

Less allowance for loan loss (5,047) (4,507)
Loans receivable, ni $ 336,59. $ 329,24°

The Company originates residential mortgage, corialeand consumer loans largely to customers througOswego, Onondaga, Jefferson, and Oneida esurithough the Company has a diversified loartfplas, a
substantial portion of its borrowers’ abilitieshtonor their contracts is dependent upon the cosirgiaployment and economic conditions.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 201eesal mortgage loans with a carrying value of48Imillion and $58.6 million, respectively, haveeln pledged by the Company to the Federal Home Baah of Nev
York (“FHLBNY") under a blanket collateral agreentéa secure the Company’s line of credit and teomdwings.

Loan Origination / Risk Manageme
The Company has lending policies and procedurefaite that are designed to maximize loan incomkinvin acceptable level of risk. Management ardBibard of Directors reviews and approves theseipsland procedur

on a regular basis. A reporting system supplemtrsreview process by frequently providing managrgnwith reports related to loan production, loaraliy, loan delinquencies, nonperforming and ptiérproblen
loans. Diversification in the loan portfolio isv@ans of managing risk associated with fluctuatinreconomic conditions.
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Risk Characteristics of Portfolio Segments

Each portfolio segment generally carries its owigue risk characteristics.

The residential mortgage loan segment is impacjedemeral economic conditions, unemployment ratethe Banks service area, real estate values and the foresgrdctation of improvement or deterioration in ewoit
conditions.

The commercial loan segment is impacted by gerem@mhomic conditions but, more specifically, theusitly segment in which each borrower participatésique competitive changes within a borrowespecific industry, «
geographic location could cause significant charigebe borrowes revenue stream, and therefore, impact its alidityepay its obligations. Commercial real estatalso subject to general economic conditionsdhainge
within this segment typically lag changes seeniwithe consumer and commercial segment. Includédnthis portfolio are both owner occupied reslate, in which the borrower occupies the majafitihe real estate prope
and upon which the majority of the sources of repayt of the obligation is dependent upon, and emener occupied real estate, in which several tenaomprise the repayment source for this portfetigment. The compositi
and competitive position of the tenant structurg weuse adverse changes in the repayment of dégatdins for the non-owner occupied class witlhiis segment.

The consumer loan segment is impacted by genevabeaic conditions, unemployment rates in the Comisaservice area, and the forward expectation @rovement or deterioration in economic conditions.

Real estate loans, including residential mortgagesimercial real estate loans and home equity, dsmp4% of the portfolio in 2013, identical to tbemposition in 2012. Loans secured by real estateide the best collate
protection and thus significantly reduce the inheresk in the portfolio.

Management has reviewed its loan portfolio andrdgteed that, to the best of its knowledge, littteno exposure exists to sub-prime or other higk+esidential mortgages. The Company is nohépractice of originating the
types of loans.

Description of Credit Quality Indicators

The Company utilizes an eight tier risk rating eystto evaluate the quality of its loan portfoliooans that are risk rated “1” through “4” are calesed “Pass” loans. In accordance with regulagpriglelines, loans rated “5”
through “8” are termed “criticized” loans and loaaged “6” through “8” are termed “classified” laanA description of the Company’s credit qualitdicators follows.

For Commercial Loans

1. Prime: A loan that is fully secured by properly margireathfinder Bank deposit account(s) or an obligatf the US Government. It may also be unsecifiieds supported by a very strong financial cdiwti and, it
the case of a commercial loan, excellent managen¥érgre exists an unquestioned ability to repayldan in accordance with its terr

2. Strong: Desirable relationship of somewhat less statime Prime grade. Possesses a sound documengsuinest source, and back up, which will allow repagtrwithin the terms of the loan. Individual lodrecke:
by solid assets, character and integrity. Abiifyndividual or company management is good and @sthblished. Probability of serious financialed®ration is unlikely
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3. Satisfactory: Stable financial condition with cash flow suféint for debt service coverage. Satisfactory laz#raverage strength having some deficiency oremalbility to changing economic or industry condigdbu

»

o

7.

8.

performing as agreed with documented evidence mdyment capacity. May be unsecured loans to bem®with satisfactory credit and financial streng8atisfactory provisions for management succesaia
secondary source of repayment exi

Satisfactory Watch A four is not a criticized or classified credithese credits do not display the characteristica ofiticized asset as defined by the regulatorfiniiens. A credit is given a Satisfactory Wa
designation if there are matters or trends obsedesérving attention somewhat beyond normal mangorBorrowing obligations may be handled accagdim agreement but could be adversely impactedebgldping
factors such as industry conditions, operating lera, litigation pending of a significant naturedeclining collateral quality and adequacy.

Special Mentior: A warning risk grade that portrays one or moeaknesses that may be tolerated in the short tAssets in this category are currently protecteale potentially weak. This loan would not noriy
be booked as a new credit, but may have redeerhiagicteristics persuading the Bank to continue ingrivith the borrower. Loans accorded this clasaifon have potential weaknesses which may, ifaheicked ¢
corrected, weaken the comp’s assets, inadequately protect the 's position or effect the orderly, scheduled redurctf the debt at some future tin

. Substandarc: The relationship is inadequately protected by ¢arrent net worth and cash flow capacity of toerdwer, guarantor/endorser, or of the collateletiged. Assets have a v-defined weakness

weaknesses that jeopardize the orderly liquidatbthe debt. The relationship shows deterioratimds or other deficient areas. The loan may deperforming and expected to remain so for theskeabl
future. Relationship balances may be adequatelyred by asset value; however a deteriorated fiahoondition may necessitate collateral liquidatio effect repayment. A relationship with an wegtable financii
condition requiring excessive attention of theasfidue to the nature of the credit risk or lackafrower cooperation. All loans on nonaccruahaa bankruptcy are not graded higher than Subatar

Doubtful : The relationship has all the weaknesses inhereatcredit graded 5 with the added characterthit the weaknesses make collection on the basisreently existing facts, conditions and valughty
questionable or improbable. The possibility of sdimss is extremely high, however its classificatés an anticipated loss is deferred until a maeetedetermination of the extent of loss is detesdi Loans in th
category must be on nonaccrt

Loss: Loans are considered uncollectible and of siitth Value that continuance as bankable assetstisiarranted. It is not practicable or desirableefer writing off this basically worthless asseen though parti
recovery may be possible in the futt

For Residential Mortgage and Consumer Loz

Residential mortgage and consumer loans are asigffeass” rating unless the loan has demonstsiged of weakness as indicated by the ratings below

5.

6.

Special Mentior: All loans sixty days past due are classified &dédention. The loan is not upgraded until it feeen current for six consecutive mont

Substandar: All loans 90 days past due are classified Suldstah The loan is not upgraded until it has beereati for six consecutive montt
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7. Doubtful : The relationship has all the weaknesses inhereatcredit graded 5 with the added characterthtit the weaknesses make collection on the bagisreently existing facts, conditions and valuéghty
questionable or improbable. The possibility of sdoss is extremely hig

The risk ratings for classified loans are evaluaettast quarterly for commercial loans or wheeditrdeficiencies arise, such as delinquent logmeats, for commercial, residential mortgage orsconer loans. See furtl
discussion of risk ratings in Note 1.

The following table presents the segments andesaskthe loan portfolio summarized by the aggregaiss rating and the criticized and classifieidgatof special mention, substandard and doubftiihlimthe Company's interr
risk rating system:

As of December 31, 201

Specia

(In thousands Pas Mentior Substandai Doubtful Total
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family firsi-lien residential mortgage $ 160,011 $ 164¢ % 462: $ 14 3 166,29¢

Constructior 1,982 - - - 1,982
Total residential mortgage loa 161,99! 1,64¢ 4,622 14 168,28(
Commercial loans

Real estat: 90,16: 91¢ 4,45¢ - 95,53¢

Lines of credit 12,94: 56( 94° - 14,44«

Other commercial and industr 31,15¢ 46€ 89¢ 14¢ 32,67t

Municipal 5,127 - - - 5,127
Total commercial loan 139,38« 1,94¢ 6,29¢ 14¢ 147,77
Consumer loans

Home equity and junior lier 19,567 487 97€ 80 21,11(

Other consume 4,04( 30 74 22 4,16¢€
Total consumer loar 23,607 517 1,05( 10z 25,27¢
Total loans $ 324,98t $ 4112 $ 1197 $ 265 $ 341,33!

As of December 31, 201
Specia

(In thousands Pas Mentior Substandai Doubtful Total
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 166,80. $ 132:  $ 5831 $ - $ 173,95!

Constructior 2,65t - - - 2,65t
Total residential mortgage loa 169,45¢ 1,32: 5,831 - 176,61(
Commercial loans

Real estat! 76,71¢ 1,68¢ 3,92t - 82,32¢

Lines of credit 12,02¢ - 1,647 75 13,74¢

Other commercial and industr 29,70t 237 1,50( 35 31,477

Municipal 3,58¢ - - - 3,58¢
Total commercial loan 122,03t 1,927 7,07 11C 131,14:
Consumer loans

Home equity and junior lier 20,07¢ 14& 1,801 49 22,07:

Other consume 3,19¢ 132 111 26 3,46¢
Total consumer loar 23,277 27¢ 1,917 75 25,54:
Total loans $ 314,77: $ 3,528 $ 14,81¢ $ 18¢ $ 333,29¢
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Nonaccrual and Past Due Loa

Loans are considered past due if the required ipahand interest payments have not been receiviihvthirty days of the payment due date.

An age analysis of past due loans, exclusive aérdedl costs, segregated by class of loans welaw$:

As of December 31, 201

30-59 Day: 60-89 Day: 90 Day: Total Total Loan:

(In thousands Past Du Past Du and Ove Past Du Curren Receivabl
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 2,21z 147:  $ 219¢  $ 5,87¢ 160,41¢ 166,29¢

Constructior - - - - 1,982 1,982
Total residential mortgage loa 2,218 1,472 2,19¢ 5,87¢ 162,40: 168,28(
Commercial loans

Real estat: 1,407 1,901 1,93¢ 5,24z 90,29¢ 95,53¢

Lines of credit 341 1Lk 381 83t 13,60¢ 14,44:

Other commercial and industr 2,04t 1,28¢ 394 3,72¢ 28,947 32,67¢

Municipal - - - - 5,122 5,122
Total commercial loan 3,79t 3,308 2,70¢ 9,80t 137,97: 147,77
Consumer loans

Home equity and junior lier 954 281 40z 1,631 19,47 21,11(

Other consume 46 51 45 142 4,02¢ 4,16€
Total consumer loar 1,00¢ 332 447 1,77¢ 23,490 25,27¢
Total loans 7,00€ 5,10% $ 5,35( $ 17,461 323,87( 341,33¢

As of December 31, 201
30-59 Day: 60-89 Day: 90 Day: Total Total Loan

(In thousands Past Du Past Du and Ove Past Du Curren Receivabl
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 2,69¢ 1,161 $ 2,04¢ $ 5,90 168,05( 173,95!

Constructior - - - - 2,65t 2,65t
Total residential mortgage loa 2,69¢ 1,161 2,04¢ 5,908 170,70! 176,61(
Commercial loans

Real estat! 1,70¢ 1,83: 1,794 5188% 76,99¢ 82,32¢

Lines of credit 49¢ 152 334 982 12,76¢ 13,74¢

Other commercial and industr 1,27¢ 85 59¢ 1,962 29,51¢ 31,477

Municipal - - - - 3,58¢ 3,58¢
Total commercial loan 3,481 2,071 2,72¢ 8,27¢ 122,86« 131,14:
Consumer loans

Home equity and junior lier 207 408 73C 1,342 20,73: 22,07:

Other consume 26 42 46 114 3,35¢ 3,46¢
Total consumer loar 288 447 77€ 1,45¢ 24,08¢ 25,54:
Total loans 6,412 3,67¢ $ 5,54¢ $ 15,63¢ 317,65! 333,29¢
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Year-end nonaccrual loans, segregated by clasmof ivere as follows:

December 3: December 3:
(In thousands 201: 2012
Residential mortgage loar
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 2,1¢ $ 2,04
2,19 2,04
Commercial loans
Real estat: 1,923 1,7¢
Lines of credit 38 32
Other commercial and industri 3¢ 5¢
2,7C 2,72
Consumer loans
Home equity and junior lier 4C 72
Other consume 4 4
44 77
Total nonaccrual loar $ 5185 $ 5,54

There were no loans past due ninety days or matetédhaccruing interest at December 31, 2013022

The Company is required to disclose certain a@witelated to Troubled Debt Restructurings (“TDRPsaccordance with accounting guidance. Ceiltzans have been modified in a TDR where econommicessions have
been granted to a borrower who is experiencingxpected to experience, financial difficulties.e$b economic concessions could include a reduictithve loan interest rate, extension of paymemhsereduction of principal
amortization, or other actions that it would ndtertvise consider for a new loan with similar rislaacteristics.

The Company is required to disclose new TDRs foheaporting period for which an income statemstitging presented.

The Company has determined that there was a newwWibRa recorded investment of $404,000 in the yemted December 31, 2013.

« The modification made within the residential restage loan class resulted in a-modification and po-modification recorded investment of $400,000 an@7$@00, respectively. The p-modification recorde
investment included late charges, accrued inteaestclosing costs as a result of the restructuriigpnomic concessions granted included a redugtitoan interest rate, extended payment ternt aanadvance
additional monies for closing costs without an a&sted increase in collateral. The Company wasired to establish a specific reserve againstltiais of $61,000, which was a component of the siowi for loal
losses in the third quarter of 20:

The Company has determined that there were $1libmdf recorded investment in new TDRs in the yerasled December 31, 2012. The following highlighesqualitative and quantitative information bgroclass.
« Modifications made within the commercial real estatan class included two loans with -modification and po-modification recorded investments of $564,000 aB8I83000, respectively. Economic concess

granted included interest only periods, extendegneat terms and a reduction in loan interest ratee Company was required to increase the resemiast these two loans by $211,000 which was a coewt o
the provision for loan losses in the third quadie2012.
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« Modifications made within the home equity and jurliens loan class included two loans with-modification and po-modification recorded investments which were ungeanat $279,000. Economic concess
granted included interest only periods, extendeaneat terms and a reduction in loan interest réte.additional provision was not required as a ltesiithese modifications

The first modification made within the other comugial and industrial loan class included a consdliteof three credit facilities into a single lowith a premodification and po-modification recorded investme
of $439,000 and $468,000, respectively. The pustification recorded investment included late glear accrued interest, and closing costs as & fstile restructuring. Economic concessions grhitteludec
reduced principal amortization and an extended payrterm. Managemest'review indicates adequate collateral coveragsujpport of this loan. An additional provision wast required as a result of t
modification. The second modification made in thisn class resulted in a pre-modification and {pestiification recorded investment of $84,000 and,$8, respectively. Economic concessions gramteiddec
an advance of additional monies without an assediaicrease in collateral and a 12 month intenelst period. The Company was required to increbsaéserve against this loan by $90,000, whichavasmponet
of the provision for loan losses in the fourth deaof 2012

.

The sole TDR executed in 2013 indicated above wagmpayment default at any time during 2013.
When the Company modifies a loan within a portfeiigment, a potential impairment is analyzed eltased on the present value of the expected foasie flows discounted at the interest rate of tigiral loan terms or the

fair value of the collateral less costs to sélit is determined that the value of the loan &sléhan its recorded investment, then impairmergdsgnized as a component of the provision fon loases, an associated increase to
the allowance for loan losses or as a charge-dfi¢allowance for loan losses in the current perio
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Impaired Loans

The following table summarizes impaired loans infation by portfolio class:

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Unpaic Unpaic
Recorde Principa Relatet Recorde Principa Relatet
(In thousands Investmer Balanct Allowance Investmer Balanct Allowance
With no related allowance recorded:
1-4 family firs-lien residential mortgage $ 55C $ 55C S 844 844 -
Commercial real esta 1,49¢ 1,49¢ - 1,55¢ 1,571 -
Commercial lines of cred 19€ 19€ - 35¢ 37¢ -
Other commercial and industr 26€ 26€ - 657 801 -
Home equity and junior lier 294 294 - 38C 38C -
Other consume - - - - - -
With an allowance recorded:
1-4 family firsi-lien residential mortgage 40z 40z 59 1,307 1,307 21¢
Commercial real esta 2,04t 2,05¢ 64¢ 1,182 1,182 401
Commercial lines of cred 18t 20C 13t - - -
Other commercial and industr 13¢ 13¢ 107 22t 23C 207
Home equity and junior lier 16& 16& 84 15& 15& 95
Other consume 2 2 2 5 5 5
Total:
1-4 family firsi-lien residential mortgage 952 952 59 2,151 2,151 21¢
Commercial real esta 3,541 3,55¢ 64¢ 2,73¢ 2,75¢ 401
Commercial lines of cred 381 39¢€ 13t 35¢ 37C -
Other commercial and industr 40¢ 40¢ 107 882 1,031 207
Home equity and junior lier 45¢ 45¢ 84 53¢t 53¢t 95
Other consume 2 2 2 5 5 5
Totals $ 5,74( $ 5,761 1,03¢ 6,661 6,84% 92¢
The following table presents the average recordeesitment in impaired loans for the years endecbéer 31:
(In thousands 201% 2012
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 1,407 $ 1,682
Commercial real esta 3,60¢ 2,50¢€
Commercial lines of cred 40€ 417
Other commercial and industri 694 71€
Home equity and junior lier 51z 48€
Other consume 3 3
Total $ 6621 $ 5,812
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The following table presents the interest inconuegaized on impaired loans for the years ended ibbee 31:

(In thousands 2012 201Z
1-4 family firsi-lien residential mortgage 2 10
Commercial real esta 17 7
Commercial lines of cred 1 1
Other commercial and industri 3 2
Home equity and junior lier 2 1
Other consume - 1

Total 27 23
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NOTE 6: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tte@syended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and informpédaining to the allocation of the allowance lfman losses and balances of the allowance for llosses and loans
receivable based on individual and collective impant evaluation by loan portfolio class at theidated dates are summarized in the tables belowallacation of a portion of the allowance to aegivportfolio class does not
limit the Company’s ability to absorb losses in #eo portfolio class.

December 31, 201

1-4 family
first-lien Residentie Othel
residentic constructiol Commercie Commercie commercie
(In thousands mortgagr mortgagr real estat lines of credi and industriz
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc: $ 811 $ -3 1748 $ 44C 3 75C
Charg-offs (153) - (46) (124 (149
Recoverie: 47 - 19 22 -
Provisions (56) - 581 59 288
Ending balanc $ 64 3 - 3 230 $ 397 % 834
Ending balance: related to log
individually evaluated for impairme! $ 58 $ - 3 64 3 138§ 107
Ending balance: related to log
collectively evaluated for impairme $ 50C $ - 3 165: $ 26z 3 721
Loans receivables
Ending balanc $ 166,29¢ $ 198: $ 9553t $ 1444  $ 32,67t
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmel $ 95z $ - 3 3541 $ 381 $ 40E
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmel $ 165,34t $ 198: $ 9199 $ 14,060 $ 32,26¢
Home equit Othel
Municipal and junior lien consume Unallocater Total
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc: $ 2 8 494 % 16 $ 88 $ 4,501
Charg-offs - (81) (98) - (651)
Recoverie: - 19 52 - 15¢
Provisions - 1 14 20C 1,032
Ending balanc $ 2 $ 43: % 13 $ 286 $ 5,041
Ending balance: related to log
individually evaluated for impairme! $ - 8 84 3 2 8 - 8 1,03¢
Ending balance: related to log
collectively evaluated for impairme $ 2 $ 34 8 134 % 286 $ 4,008
Loans receivables
Ending balanc $ 5,122 $ 21,11( $ 4,16€ $ 341,33¢
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer $ - 3 45¢  $ 2 $ 5,74(
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmer $ 512 $ 20,65. $ 4,164 $ 335,59:
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December 31, 201

1-4 family
first-lien Residentie Othel
residentic constructiol Commercie Commercie commercie
(In thousands mortgagr mortgagr real estat lines of credi and industric
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc 664 - 1,34¢ 462 64¢
Charg-offs (10¢) - (142) - (89)
Recoverie: 75 - 14 50 -
Provisions 18C - 53C (73) 19C
Ending balanc 811 - 1,74¢ 44C 75C
Ending balance: related to log
individually evaluated for impairme 21E - 401 - 207
Ending balance: related to log
collectively evaluated for impairme 59€ - 1,347 44C 54z
Loans receivables
Ending balanc 173,95 2,65¢ 82,32¢ 13,74¢ 31,477
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer 2,151 - 2,73¢€ 35¢ 882
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmer 171,80: 2,65¢ 79,59! 13,39( 30,59¢
Home equit Othel
Municipal and junior lien consume Unallocater Total
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc 2 501 162 192 3,98(
Chargroffs - (8) (161) - (50€)
Recoverie: - 6 59 - 204
Provisions - (5) 10¢ (105) 82t
Ending balanc 2 494 16€ 88 4,501
Ending balance: related to log
individually evaluated for impairme - 95 5 - 927
Ending balance: related to log
collectively evaluated for impairme 2 39¢ 163 38 3,57¢
Loans receivables
Ending balanc 3,58¢ 22,07¢ 3,46¢ 333,29¢
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmel - 535 5 6,661
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmel 3,58¢ 21,53¢ 3,46¢ 326,62
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NOTE 7: SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not included in t@mpanying consolidated statements of conditibime unpaid principal balances of mortgage and ddwers serviced for others were $28,597,000 and7$84000 at Decemk
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The balance mifalized servicing rights included in other assgtBecember 31, 2013 and 2012, was $80,000 af@G2espectively.

The following summarizes mortgage servicing rigtapitalized and amortized:

(In thousands 2012 2012
Mortgage servicing rights capitaliz: $ 88 $ 2
Mortgage servicing rights amortiz: $ 10 $ 7

NOTE 8: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment at Decembes 2, follows:

(In thousands 201: 2012
Land $ 1,794 $ 1,544
Buildings 9,711 10,05¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 9,827 9,051
Construction in progres 1,71¢ 18€
23,05( 20,831

Less: Accumulated depreciati 11,40¢ 10,72¢
$ 11,64« $ 10,10¢

The $1.5 million increase in Construction in pragreelates principally to the Baskpurchase of three properties in the amount of #iillion from the Mutual Holding Company in Deceent2013. Depreciation of the
properties will begin in 2014 in accordance with Bank’s fixed asset policy.

NOTE 9: GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisitiver the fair value of the net assets acquiBmbdwill is not amortized, but is evaluated annuédir impairment or between annual evaluationsertain circumstance
Management performs an annual assessment of thpdbgrs goodwill to determine whether or not any impaintnef the carrying value may exist. The Compangegnitted to assess qualitative factors to detegrifiit is more
likely than not that the fair value of the repogtianit is less than the carrying value. For puesasf this assessment, management considers thpagrand its subsidiaries as a whole to be thertiagaunit. Based on the rest
of the assessment, management has determineti¢hzarrying value of goodwill in the amount of $dlion is not impaired as of December 31, 2013.

Of the total amount of the goodwill carried in tBempany’s books as of December 31, 2013, $3.8aniliif this amount is due to prior perio@gquisitions of branches and $526,000 is due tadieisition of the Fitzgibbo
Agency. The latter is more fully disclosed in N@to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statésnemntained herein.

The identifiable intangible asset of $187,000 aBetember 31, 2013 is due to the acquisition ofRitEgibbons Agency and represents the custonteintsngible. This amount differs from the $188,0@08orded at the time
acquisition on December 1, 2013 due to amortizadicil, 000 taken during December 2013. The futweighted amortization of this intangible asset.&ygars.
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The gross carrying amount and accumulated amaddizeédr this identifiable intangible asset are alofvs:

December 3:
(In thousands 2012
Gross carrying amoul $ 118 3
Accumulated amortizatio (1
Net amortizing intangible $ 18 3

The estimated amortization expense for each diiteesucceeding years ended December 31, is asfsi|

(In thousands

201¢ $ 13
201¢ 13
201¢€ 13
2017 13
201¢ 13
Thereaftel $ 122

NOTE 10: DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, is as follows

(In thousands 201: 2012
Savings accouni 68,92« 63,50
Time account: 71,16¢ 78,17¢
Time accounts of $100,000 or m¢ 88,727 85,14¢
Money management accoul 13,337 14,44:
MMDA accounts 83,861 7.3:51¢
Demand deposit intere-bearing 32,28 29,69¢
Demand deposit noninter-bearing 48,17: 43,91:
Mortgage escrow func 3,66¢ 3,417
Total Deposits 410,14( 391,80!

At December 31, 2013, the scheduled maturitie8va# teposits are as follows:

(In thousands

Year of Maturity:

2014 $ 118,73:
2015 18,85]
2016 4,981
2017 7,602
2018 3,521
Thereaftel 6,19¢
Total $ 159,89:
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NOTE 11: BORROWED FUNDS

The composition of borrowings (excluding junior sutinated debentures) at December 31 is as follows:

(In thousands 201 201Z

Shor-term:
FHLB Advances $ 24,00( $ 9,00C

Long-term:
FHLB advance: $ 16,00( $ 20,00(
ESOP loan payabl 85z 964
Citigroup Repurchase agreeme - 5,00(
Total lon¢-term borrowings $ 16,85% $ 25,96

Terms of the ESOP loan payable, which is basedvamiable rate, are detailed in Note 14.
The principal balances, interest rates and magarif the remaining borrowings, all of which are died rate, at December 31, 2013 are as follows:
Term Principa Rates

(Dollars in thousands
Advances with FHLE

due within 1 yea 5,00C 2.85%- 3.01%
due within 2 year 2,00( 2.7%
due within 3 year 3,00C 2.12%
due within 4 year 4,00( 1.36%- 2.5¢%
due within 10 year 2,00( 2.55%
Total advances with FHL $ 16,000
Total lon¢-term fixed rate borrowing $ 16,000

At December 31, 2013, scheduled repayments of fermg-debt are as follows (in thousands):

2014 $ 5,11C
2015 2,11C
2016 3,11C
2017 4,11(
2018 11C
Thereaftel 2,30¢

$ 16,85!

The Company has access to Federal Home Loan Baminees, under which it can borrow at various teamd interest rates. Residential mortgage loarts avitarrying value of $114.8 million and FHLB stogith a carryin
value of $2.4 million have been pledged by the Camypunder a blanket collateral agreement to settieréCompanys borrowings at December 31, 2013. The total antihg indebtedness under borrowing facilities vilité
FHLB cannot exceed the total value of the assetdgald under the blanket collateral agreement. Cimpany has a $21.6 million line of credit avaiéat December 31, 2013 with the Federal Reservk B&lNew York throug
its Discount Window and has pledged various corgoaad municipal securities against the line. Then@any has $13.4 million in lines of credit avaiéatvith three other correspondent banks. $6.4 onilbf that line of credit
available on an unsecured basis and the remaiffifigrillion must be collateralized with marketalsieestment securities. Interest on the lines ismeined at the time of borrowing.

-88




Table of Contents

The Company has a non-consolidated subsidiary, fPaghfinder Statutory Trust II, of which the Compa@wns 100% of the common equity. The Trust idsB® 000,000 of 30 year floating rate Compaijigated pooled capit
securities of Pathfinder Statutory Trust Il. Then@any borrowed the proceeds of the capital séesifitom its subsidiary by issuing floating rateipr subordinated deferrable interest debenturgmbasubstantially simile
terms. The capital securities mature in 2037 aadraated as Tier 1 capital by the Federal Depusitrance Corporation and the Federal ReservedBtiaRB"). The capital securities of the trust are a poolasttpreferred fur
of Preferred Term Securities VI, Ltd. and are tiethe 3-month LIBOR (25 basis points) plus 1.6%fod total of 1.90% at December 31, 2013 with e-frear call provision. The Company guaranteesfatiese securities.

The Company's equity interest in the trust subsjdid $155,000 is reported in "Other assets". fegulatory reporting purposes, the Federal Reseageindicated that the preferred securities wilittwe to qualify as Tier
Capital subject to previously specified limitationmitil further notice. If regulators make a detiration that Trust Preferred Securities can no éorige considered in regulatory capital, the sedesribecome callable and
Company may redeem them.

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATI ON AND SUPPLEMENTAL  RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefisjpn plan covering substantially all employeése plan provides defined benefits based on yeassrefce and final average salary. On May 14, 2642 Company informe
its employees of its decision to freeze participatand benefit accruals under the plan, primadlyeduce some of the volatility in earnings that eecompany the maintenance of a defined bengdit. pThe freeze beca
effective June 30, 2012. Compensation earned Ipjoges up to June 30, 2012 is used for purposeslailating benefits under the plan but there bélino future benefit accruals after this datertiéigants as of June 30, 2(
will continue to earn vesting credit with respeattheir frozen accrued benefits as they continuevddk. In addition, the Company provides certaimltteand life insurance benefits for a limited n@miof eligible retire
employees. The healthcare plan is contributor wirticipantscontributions adjusted annually; the life insurap&n is noncontributory. Employees with less ttidrnyears of service as of January 1, 1995, areligible fol
the health and life insurance retirement benefits.
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The following tables set forth the changes in g benefit obligations, fair value of plan assatd the plans’ funded status as of December 31:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
(In thousands 2012 201z 2012 201z
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $ 946t % 10,167 $ 45C % 401
Service cos - 16€ - -
Interest cos 37¢ 397 18 17
Actuarial (gain) los! (1,277 862 (28) 68
Curtailment gair - (1,919 - -
Benefits paic (234 (209) (38) (36)
Benefit obligations at end of ye 8,33: 9,46E 402 45C
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ 10,78¢ 7,54¢ - -
Actual return on plan asse 2,13¢ 84¢€ - -
Benefits paic (239 (209) (39 (36)
Employer contribution - 2,60( 38 36
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 12,69: 10,78¢ - -
Funded Statu- asset (liability) $ 435¢ 3 1321 $ (402) $ (450
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreliensss as of December 31 are as follows:
Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
(In thousands 201z 2012 201z
Net loss, net of curtailment gz $ $ 4,466  $ 94 $ 142
Tax Effect 1,78¢ 38 57
$ $ 2,68( $ 56 $ 85

Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greatbedienefit obligation or the fair value of assets amortized over the average remaining senddegof active participants.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plan was $8,333,000 and $9,46500&cember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Blsegtirement plan had an accumulated benefit atitig of $402,000 ar
$450,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respsgctivel

The significant assumptions used in determiningoibreefit obligations as of December 31, are asvidl

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
2012 201z 2012 201z
Weighted average discount r: 4.95% 4.05% 4.95% 4.05%

Rate of increase in future compensation le - - -
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the pasgreent health care plan. The annual rates oéase in the per capita cost of covered medicapaestription drug benefits 1
future years were assumed to be 7.0% for 2014 pgityddecreasing to 5.00% in 2018 and remain atlével thereafter.

The composition of the net periodic benefit plastdor the years ended December 31 is as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201 201Z 201 201Z
(In thousands
Service cos $ - $ 66 $ - $ =
Interest cos 37¢ 397 18 17
Expected return on plan ass (859 (809) - -
Amortization of transition obligatio - - - 2
Amortization of net losse 361 381 20 13
Net periodic benefit plan (benefit) cc $ (1149 $ ICI 38 3 32
The significant assumptions used in determiningniéteperiodic benefit plan cost for years endedebaer 31, were as follows:
Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201 201Z 2012 201Z
Weighted average discount r: 4.05% 4.4% 4.05% 4.4%
Expected long term rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.0(% - -

Rate of increase in future compensation le B a - -

The long term rate of return on assets assumptamset based on historical returns earned by eguitid fixed income securities, adjusted to reigpectations of future returns as applied to {ae’s target allocation of as:
classes. Equities and fixed income securities \wsseimed to earn real rates of return in the raof8€9%-9.0% and 2.0%-6.0%, respectively. Thegiterm inflation rate was estimated to be 3.0%. Withese overall retu
expectations are applied to the plan’s target atlon, the expected rate of return was determinduktin the range of 7.0% to 11.0%. Managementthasen to use a 7.5% expected losgn rate of return to reflect curn
economic conditions and expected returns.

The estimated net actuarial loss that will be aiedtfrom accumulated other comprehensive lossriatgeriodic benefit plan cost during 2014 is $80, The estimated amortization of the unrecoghizansition obligation ar
actuarial loss for the post retirement health ite2014 is $13,000. The expected net periodic fitguian cost for 2014 is estimated at a $474,08@ative expense for both retirement plans.

Plan assets are invested in diversified investrhemds of the RSI Retirement Trust (the “Trus#)private placement investment fund. The investrirds include a series of equity and bond mufwadis or commingled tru
funds, each with its own investment objectivesgeBtment strategies and risks, as detailed in thtei®ent of Investment Objectives and Guidelindse Trust has been given discretion by the Plan Spoiw determine tt
appropriate strategic asset allocation versusldhiiities, as governed by the Trust's Statemérnhwestment Objectives and Guidelines.

The long-term investment objectives are to mainpdém assets at a level that will sufficiently col@ng-term obligations and to generate a returiplan assets that will meet or exceed the ratehathdlongterm obligations wi
grow. A broadly diversified combination of equépnd fixed income portfolios and various risk mamaget techniques are used to help achieve thesetiobe
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In addition, significant consideration is paid e fplan’s funding levels when determining the olfersset allocation. If the plan is consideredb¢éowell-funded, approximately 65% of the pkassets are allocated to equities
approximately 35% allocated to fixed-income. Assd#ialancing normally occurs when the equity arediincome allocations vary by more than 10% frbeirtrespective targets (i.e., a 10% policy rangeajine).

The investment goal is to achieve investment reshéit will contribute to the proper funding of thension plan by exceeding the rate of inflatiorrahe longterm. In addition, investment managers for thesTaue expected
provide above average performance when comparéiteiopeer managers. Performance volatility i® at®nitored. Risk/volatility is further managed tiye distinct investment objectives of each of Tmest funds and tt
diversification within each fund.

Pension plan assets measured at fair value are atineh below:

At December 31, 201

Total Fai
(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity
Large-cap value (a $ 137: % -3 -3 1,372
Smal-cap core (b 1,801 - - 1,801
Large-cap Growth (c 2,06¢ - - 2,06¢
International Core (c 1,445 - - 1,445
Common/collective trusi- equity
Large-cap core (e - 1,53¢ - 1,53¢
Large-cap value (f - 771 - 771
Common/collective trust- fixed income
Market duration fixed (g - 1,22¢ - 1,22¢
Mutual Fund-Fixed Income
Intermediate duration (I 2,47: - - 2,47:

Company common sto¢ = o - -
Cash Equivalen-Money marke - - -
Total $ 9,161 $ 353 $ - 3% 12,69

(a) This category consists of investments whose sectdrindustry exposures are maintained within somatrand around Russell 1000 index. The portfatillié approximately 150 stock

(b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightime maintained within a narrow band around tebsiee Russell 2000 index. The portfolio will tgally hold more than 300 stock

(c) This category consists of a pair of mutual funde that seeks fast growing la-cap companies with sustainable franchises andip®gitice momentum, the other invests primarilyairge cap growth companies base
the US.

(d) This category has investments in medium to largi-US companies, including high quality, durable giowdmpanies and companies based in countries taitfeseconomic and political syster

(e) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50@indy purchasing the securities represented intiex in approximately the same weightings as tigex.

(f) This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yields. The portfolio typically holds beem 60 and 70 stock

(g) This category consists of an index fund that trabksBarclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Indeke fund invests in Treasury, agency, corporatetgagt-backed and as-backed securitie:

(h) This category consists of two funds, one contairndjversified portfolio of hig-quality bonds and other fixed income securities|uding U.S. Government obligations, mortg-related and asset backed secur
corporate and municipal bonds, CMOs, and otherrggzsurated Baa or better. The second fund esighs a more globally diversified portfolio of hég-quality, intermediat-term bonds
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At December 31, 201

Total Fai

(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity

Large-cap value (a $ 1,018 $ - 8 - 8 1,01¢

Smal-cap core (b 1,33¢ - - 1,33¢

Large-cap core (c 752 - - 752

Large-cap value (d 1,23¢ - - 1,23¢
Common/collective trust- equity

Large-cap core (e - 1,191 - 1,191

Large-cap value (f - 59t - 59t

Large-cap growth (g - 79z - 79z
Common/collective trust- fixed income

Market duration fixed (h - 3,86( - 3,86(
Cash Equivalen-Money marke - - - -
Total $ 4348 $ 643t % -3 10,78¢

(a) This category consists of investments whose sectdindustry exposures are maintained within somatrand around Russell 1000 index. The portfatillié approximately 150 stock

(b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightame maintained within a narrow band around tebsiee Russell 2000 index. The portfolio will tgally hold more than 150 stock

(c) This category consists of a mutual fund that séetsgrowing larg-cap companies with sustainable franchises andiymgitice momentum. The portfolio holds 60 to 8fcks.

(d) This category has investments in medium to largi-US companies, including high quality, durable give®dmpanies and companies based in countries taitfeseconomic and political syster
(e) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50@inbly purchasing the securities represented imtfex in approximately the same weightings as tigex.

(f) This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yields. The portfolio typically holds beem 60 and 70 stock

(9) This category consists of a portfolio of betweeraB8 55 stocks of fast growing, predictable, andicgl large cap growth companie

(h) This category consists of an index fund that trabksBarclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Indeke fund invests in Treasury, agency, corporatetgagt-backed and as-backed securitie:

Funds that are mutual funds and actively tradedifgjues “Level 1” assets because market valuegeadily available and accessible (“using quotedgwiin active markets”). Funds referred to as ‘fmem/collective trustsare
proprietary funds that are not available to theegahpublic, and therefore classified as LevellBe value of these are determined based on undgridsets which may be securities having quoteepinh active markets, mut
funds, or fixed income securities whose methodologyletermining fair value is described in Note 20

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014, thekBexpects to contribute approximately $36,00théopostretirement plan. In January 2012, the Baa#le a contribution of $2.6 million to the pensfan in response to t
unfunded pension liability of $2.6 million recordatiDecember 31, 2011. No additional contributisese made in 2013. The Company may consider aitigil contribution in 2014.
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The following benefit payments, which reflect exigefuture service, as appropriate, are expected fmaid from both retirement plans:

Pensiol Postretiremel
(In thousands Benefit: Benefit: Total
Years ending December &

2014 $ 254 $ 36 $ 29C

2015 26C 36 29¢€

2016 264 36 30C

2017 28z 37 31¢

2018 291 36 327

Years 201¢ 2023 1,70¢ 15¢ 1,86¢

The Company also offers a 401(k) plan to its empdsy Contributions to this plan by the Companyew®228,000 and $208,000 for 2013 and 2012, respécti  In addition, the Company made a $173,000 safe
contribution to the plan in 2013.

The Company maintains optional deferred compensatians for its directors and certain executivecefs, whereby fees and income normally receiveddaferred and paid by the Company based upon ragrayschedu
commencing at age 65 and continuing monthly foyddrs. Directors must serve on the board for amini of 5 years to be eligible for the Plan. At Dmber 31, 2013 and 2012, other liabilities inclugpraximately $1,990,0(
and $1,979,000, respectively, relating to defecmuipensation. Deferred compensation expense foretiies ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounéggbtoximately $208,000 and $217,000, respectively.

The Company has a supplemental executive retirepiant (“SERP”)for the benefit of a retired Chief Executive Offic December 31, 2013. A SERP was in place ferbtnefit of the present Chief Executive Office
December 31, 2012 but was terminated on Decemhe2(3P with the proceeds of the trust distributadhat date. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, didieitities included approximately $125,000 and $000, respectivel
accrued under this plan related only to the ret@&®. Compensation expense includes approxim&fey000 relating to the supplemental executiveeetent plan for the year ended December 31, 204%46,000 for the ye
ended December 31, 2012.

To assist in the funding of the Compamyienefits under the supplemental executive reéirerplan, the Company is the owner of single premlife insurance policies on selected participaits December 31, 2013 and 20
the cash surrender values of these policies we268%00 and $8,046,000, respectively.

The Bank adopted a Supplemental Executive Retirefiem (the “SERP”)effective January 1, 2014. The SERP benefits icekisy senior executives of the Bank who are setktly the Board to participate, including

Named Executive Officers. The SERP is intendedravide a benefit from the Bank upon retiremengthedisability or voluntary or involuntary termifen of service (other tha“for cause”),subject to the requirements
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Accwlgi the SERP obligates the Bank to make a caritdh to each executive’account on the last business day of each calgmdar In addition, the Bank, may, but is

required to, make additional discretionary contiims to the executive’s accounts from time to timdl executives currently participating in theapl including the Named Executive Officers, ardyfulested in the Bank’
contribution to the plan. In the event the exemufs terminated involuntarily or resigns for gomgéson within 24 months following a change in colptthe Bank is required to make additional anregaitributions the less
of: (1) three years or (2) the number of yearsaieing until the executive’s benefit age, subjecpotential reduction to avoid an excess parachatenent under Code Section 280G. In the evenhefekecutives deatt
disability or termination within 24 months afteclange in control, the executigeaccount will be paid in a lump sum to the exeeutir his beneficiary, as applicable. In the ewexcutive is entitled to a benefit from the SI
due to retirement or other termination of employmgre benefit will be paid either in a lump sunird0 annual installments as detailed in his orgzeticipant agreement.
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NOTE 13: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The April 2010 Stock Option Plan

In June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Compamyroved the grant of stock option awards to itedors and Executive Officers under the 2010 iS@ption Plan that was approved at the Annual Meetif Shareholders
April 28, 2010 when 150,000 shares were authoriaedward. A total of 45,000 stock option awardsrevgranted to the nine directors of the Companly747000 stock option awards, in total, were grdmoethe Chief Executiy
Officer and the Company'’s four Senior Vice PresideThe awards will vest ratably over five ye&8% per year for each year of the participsusgrvice with the Company) and will expire tenrgdeom the date of the grant,
June 2021. The fair value of each option grant@siablished at the date of grant using the Blaztie®s option pricing model. The Black-Scholes nhoded the following weighted average assumptidsek:free interest rate
2.2%; volatility factors of the expected marketcprbf the Company's common stock of .45; weightestagge expected lives of the options of 7.0 yezash dividend yield of 1.49%. Based upon thesenassans, the weighte
average fair value of options granted was $3.77.

In July 2013, the Board of Directors of the Compapproved the grant of 10,000 stock option awandstal to two newly elected Directors of the CompaThe awards will vest ratably over five yea@28% per year for ea
year of the participa’s service with the Company) and will expire teraggefrom the date of the grant, or July 2023. fetrevalue of each option grant was establishetthetdate of grant using the Bla8icholes option pricir
model. The Black-Scholes model used the followirgighted average assumptions: rigde interest rate of 2.0%; volatility factors bktexpected market price of the Company's comnuk sif .45; weighted average expet
lives of the options of 7.0 years: cash dividereld/of 1.0%. Based upon these assumptions, thenteeigiverage fair value of options granted wasg6.0

The compensation expense of the awards is bastiédair value of the instruments on the date ahgr The Company recorded compensation expertse @mount of $80,000 and $81,000 in 2013 and 2@&pectively, and
expected to record $84,000 in each of the yeard #rbugh 2015, and $46,000, $12,000, and $7,0@teiyears 2016 through 2018.

At December 31, 2013, there were 105,000 optionstanding, of which 38,000 were exercisable atxaraise price of $9.00, and an average remainimgractual life of 7.5 years. Expiring options i613 were the result
Director attrition.
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Activity in the stock option plans is as follows:

Weightec

Options Average Share

(Shares in thousand Qutstandin Exercise Pric Exercisabl
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 12 $ 9.0C -
Grantec - 8 = =
Newly Vestec - 9.0C 23
Exercisec (1) 9.0C (1)
Expired (13) 9.0C -
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 106 $ 9.0C 22
Grantec 0 3 13.8¢ -
Newly Vestec - 9.0C 21
Exercisec (5) 9.0C (5)
Expired (6) 9.0C -
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 108 $ 9.0C 38

The aggregate intrinsic value of a stock optiomesents the total prx intrinsic value (the amount by which the cutnearket value of the underlying stock exceedsttezcise price of the option) that would have beeeive
by the option holders had all option holders exsagitheir options prior to the expiration date e Titrinsic value can change based on fluctuatiotise market value of the Compasystock. At December 31, 2013, the intri
value of the stock options was $430,000. At Decamdli, 2012, the intrinsic value of the stock omiovas $138,000.

NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company established the Pathfinder Bank Empl@&teck Ownership Plan (“Plant) purchase stock of the Company for the benefitsoémployees. In July 2011, the Plan receivéd 4 million loan from Communi
Bank, N.A., guaranteed by the Company, to fundRfea’'s purchase of 125,000 shares of the Compangasury stock. The loan is being repaid in kquarterly installments of principal plus interester ten years beginni
October 1, 2011. Interest accrues at the WalleStteurnal Prime Rate plus 1.00%, and is securetébynallocated shares of the ESOP stock. Inrdance with the payment of principal on the loapr@portionate number
shares are allocated to the employees over thge@ntime horizon of the loan. Participants'sting interest in the shares of Company stock ihe rate of 20% per year. The Company reco®dgd,000 and $127,000
compensation expense in 2013 and 2012, respegtivelyding $12,000 and $13,000 for dividends oallmtated shares in these same time periods. Aember 31, 2013, there were 93,750 unearned ES@PBsshith a fa
value of $1.3 million.
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NOTE 15: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the years erldedember 31, is as follow

(In thousands 201 201Z
Current $ 64 $ 1,20
Deferred 20z (27€)
$ 847 $ 92¢
The provision for income taxes includes the follogi
(In thousands 2012 2012
Federal Income Ta $ 721 $ 87¢
New York State Franchise T: 12€ 56
$ 847 $ 92¢
The components of the net deferred tax (liability$et, included in other assets or other liaksliéie of December 31, are as follows:
(In thousands 201: 2012
Assets:
Deferred compensatic $ 81t $ 83¢
Allowance for loan losse 1,95( 1,741
Postretirement benefi 15E 174
Mortgage recording tax credit carryforwe 151 20€
Impairment losses on investment securi 182 337
Capital loss carryforwar 33¢ 29z
Helc-to-maturity securitie! 504 -
Other 18¢ 284
Total 4,28¢ 3,86¢
Liabilities:
Pension asst (1,68¢6) (511)
Depreciatior (78%) (70%)
Accretion (159 (52)
Loan origination fee (105) (17€)
Intangible assel (1,48¢) (1,48¢)
Investment securities and financial derivai (64) (1,00¢)
Prepaid expens¢ (52) (52)
Total (4,33¢ (3,989
(47) (120)
Less: deferred tax asset valuation allowz (45¢) (45¢)
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (505 $ (57¢)

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent thmgeneration of future taxable income or thisterce of sufficient taxable income within thergavack period. A valuation allowance is provideden it is more likely the
not that some portion, or all of the deferred tasets, will not be realized. In assessing the fizred valuation allowance, management considerstheduled reversal of the deferred tax liabdljtte level of historical taxat
income and the projected future level of taxabt®me over the periods in which the temporary dififiees comprising the deferred tax assets will bleicible. The judgment about the level of futlarable income is inheren
subjective and is reviewed on a continual basiegslatory and business factors change. The vatuatiowance of $458,000 represents the portigh@fleferred tax asset that management believesatdye realizable, as 1

Company may not generate sufficient capital gansffiset its capital losses.
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tate to the effective income tax rate for thergemded December 31, is as follows:

2012 201Z
Federal statutory income tax ri 34.% 34.%
State tax, net of federal bene 2.€ 1.C
Tax-exempt interest incom (8.5 (&)
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance feemiums pait (2.7) (2.3
Gain on proceeds from bank owned life insure - (0.9
Other - 1.C
Effective income tax rat 26.C% 26.C%

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company dichaaé any uncertain tax positions. The Compapglicy is to recognize interest and penaltieanif, in income tax expense in the Consolidatete®ients of Income. The 1
years subject to examination by the Federal and Xenk State taxing authorities are the years erecember 31, 2010 through 20!

NOTE 16: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentshvdgff-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesseet the financing needs of its customers. gliieancial instruments include commitments to edteredit an
standby letters of credit. Such commitments inepte varying degrees, elements of credit riskxcess of the amount recognized in the consolidstement of condition. The contractual amounhofé commitments to exte
credit reflects the extent of involvement the Comyphas in this particular class of financial instent. The Compang’exposure to credit loss in the event of nonpevéoice by the other party to the financial instrunfer
commitments to extend credit is represented byénéractual amount of the instrument. The Compags the same credit policies in making commitmasiis does for on-balance sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the following finahinstruments were outstanding whose contractantsorepresent credit risk:

Contract Amoun

(In thousands

2012 201Z
Commitments to grant loal $ 16,00¢ $ 25,14¢
Unfunded commitments under lines of cre 20,42¢ 19,01%
Standby letters of crec 4,562 1,481

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totlerdcustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract. Commitimegenerally have fixed expiration dates or otkemination clauses a
may require payment of a fee. Since some of thendament amounts are expected to expire withoutddimawn upon, the total commitment amounts do roessarily represent future cash requirementsCbinepany evaluat
each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-byfmasis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemsxessary by the Company upon extension of cisdigsed on managementredit evaluation of the counter party. Colla
held varies but may include residential real esgate incomeproducing commercial properties. Loan commitmentstanding at December 31, 2013 with fixed interates amounted to approximately $2.6 million. i

commitments, including unused lines of credit atahdby letters of credit, outstanding at DecemterZ®13 with variable interest rates amounted for@pmately $38.4 million. These outstanding laammitments cari
current market rates.
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Unfunded commitments under standby letters of treeliolving credit lines and overdraft protectagreements are commitments for possible futurensidas of credit to existing customers. Thesesliofecredit usually do n
contain a specified maturity date and may not bevdrupon to the total extent to which the Compamgoimmitted.

Letters of credit written are conditional commitrteeissued by the Company to guarantee the perfarenaina customer to a third party. Generallyledters of credit, when issued have expiration slatighin one year. The cre
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essally the same as those that are involved in editen loan facilities to customers. The Companyegally holds collateral and/or personal guarantagsporting thes
commitments. Management believes that the procebtisned through a liquidation of collateral ame enforcement of guarantees would be sufficientower the potential amount of future payments irequunder th
corresponding guarantees. The amount of theilialag of December 31, 2013 and 2012 for guaraniedsr standby letters of credit issued is not radte

The Company leases land and leasehold improvereder agreements that expire in various years rgitewal options over the next 30 years. Rentates®, included in building occupancy expense, ateduo $83,000 fc
2013 and $65,000 for 2012.

Approximate minimum rental commitments for non-calable operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 3
(In thousands

2014 $ 98
2015 91
2016 91
2017 91
2018 58

Total minimum lease paymer $ 42¢

Included in the above table of minimum rental cotnments is the lease on the new Syracuse branchhsitargeted for opening in the second quart&0d#. The Company is expecting to pay $58,000maremual basis wi
$43,000 included in 2014.

NOTE 17: DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTIONS

The Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.@etermines whether the Holding Company will veaor receive dividends declared by the Companyjestibo regulatory approval, each time the Compdeglares
dividend, which is expected to be on a quarterlgibarhe Holding Company may elect to receive a@inits and utilize such funds to pay expenses ootfr allowable purposes. The FRB has indicatet (théhe Holding
Company shall provide the FRB annually with writtestice of its intent to waive its dividends priorthe proposed date of the dividend and the FR#l bhve the authority to approve or deny any dinid waiver request; (ii) if
waiver is granted, dividends waived by the Hold@gmpany will be excluded from the Compasgapital accounts for purposes of calculatingddintd payments to minority shareholders. During328d 2012, the Compa
paid or accrued dividends totaling $190,000 toHb&ling Company in each of these two years. ThelidiglCompany did not waive the right to receivepitstion of the cash dividends declared during 2613012.

The Company's ability to pay dividends to its shatéers is largely dependent on the Bank's attiitpay dividends to the Company. In addition aiestaw requirements and the capital requirementsisised in Note 18, fede
statutes, regulations and policies limit the cirstances under which the Bank may pay dividends &mount of retained earnings legally availableenrttiese regulations approximated $6,833,000 a3esEmber 3:
2013. Dividends paid by the Bank to the Companyldide prohibited if the effect thereof would catise Banks capital to be reduced below applicable minimupitabrequirements. The Company is prohibited frmcneptin
or directing the Bank to declare or pay a dividendther capital distributions without prior writtepproval of the Federal Reserve.
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Since the Company has chosen to participate iffteasurys SBLF program, it is permitted to pay dividendsitsrcommon stock provided certain Tier 1 capitalimums are exceeded and SBLF dividends have beelare:
and paid to Treasury as of the most recent divigemibd.

NOTE 18: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capigjuirements administered by the federal bankingegs. Failure to meet minimum capital requiremeats initiate certain mandatory and possibly addil discretionary actio
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have edalimaterial effect on the Compasyonsolidated financial statements. Under capiehuacy guidelines and the regulatory framewarlpfompt corrective action, the Bank
meet specific capital guidelines that involve gitative measures of its assets, liabilities, andade off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatmyunting practices. The capital amounts and ifitt®ons are als
subject to qualitative judgments by the regulagdrsut components, risk weightings, and other factor

Quantitative measures established by regulatiengure capital adequacy require the Bank to mairmiounts and ratios (set forth in the table belofafptal and Tier 1 capital (as defined in theulagons) to riskweightec
assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (asddjito average assets (as defined).

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank’s most recenification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion categorized the Bank as “well-capitalizediider the regulatory framework for prompt correetaction. To k
categorized as “well-capitalized”, the Bank mustinten total risk based, Tier 1 ridkased and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forthdrntables below. There are no conditions or evante ghat notification that managem
believes have changed the Bank’s category.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios d3eafember 31, 2013 and 2012 are presented in theving table.

Minimum
To Be "Wel-
Minimum Capitalized"
For Capital Under Promp
Actual Adeguacy Purpose Corrective Provision
(Dollars in thousands Amouni Ratic Amouni Ratic Amouni Ratic
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets $ 47,86 141% $ 27,10¢ 8% $ 33,88¢ 10.(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets $ 43,45¢ 128% $ 13,55% 4% $ 20,33( 6.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Assett $ 43,45¢ 8.7% $ 19,92¢ 4.% $ 24,91( 5.C%
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets $ 45,76¢ 14.2% $ 25,80¢ 8.% $ 32,25¢ 10.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets $ 41,57« 12.9% $ 12,90« 4% $ 19,35¢ 6.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Assett $ 41,57¢ 8.6% $ 18,83: 4.% $ 23,53¢ 5.C%

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered intBuhehase Agreement with the United States Depattofethe Treasury, as part of the Capital Purclitrsgram (“CPP”pursuant to which the Company issued and sc
Treasury: (i) 6,771 shares of the Companfyixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stekies A, par value $0.01 per share, having adagion amount per share equal to $1,000, for & poiee of $6,771,000; and (i)
Warrant to purchase 154,354 shares of the Compayhmon stock, par value $0.01 per share, atenieg price per share of $6.58. The Company ibaréd to the Bank, its subsidiary, $5,500,000028% of the proceeds
the sale of the Series A Preferred Stock.
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The $6,771,000 of proceeds was allocated to thiesSArPreferred Stock and the Warrant based ontélattive fair values at issuance ($6,065,000 aasated to the Series A Preferred Stock and $D06to the Warrant).

On September 1, 2011, the Company redeemed all 8f¥ates of its Fixed Rate Cumulative PerpetudeRezl Stock Series A. The Company paid $6,786t608e Treasury Department to redeem the Serieseferred Stoc
which included the original investment of $6,7700plus accrued dividends.

In connection with this redemption, on Septembe2QlL1, the Company entered into a Securities PeecAgreement with the Secretary of the Treasurye@3ury”)pursuant to which the Company sold to the Treasi8yg0(
shares of its Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual PredieStock, Series B (“Series B Preferred Stodkdying a liquidation preference of $1,000 per stiar@ggregate proceeds of $13,000,000. This &ctits was entered into
part of the Treasury’s Small Business Lending Faragjram (“SBLF").

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject ttrietions of the CPP program. The SBLF programsduave its own requirements, which are summakieémiv:

The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to recaiwecumulative dividends payable quarterly, on eacludgnl, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginningdgder 1, 2011. The dividend rate, which is calmdeon the aggrege
Liquidation Amount, was initially set at 4.2% pemaim based upon the current level of “Qualified BrBasiness Lending”, or “QSBL" (as defined in ti8ecurities Purchase Agreement) by the Compamgiolly owne:
subsidiary, the Bank. The dividend rate for futdiedend periods will be set based upon the “Peagge Change in Qualified Lendingdq defined in the Securities Purchase Agreemett)elea each dividend period and
“Baseline” QSBL level. Such dividend rate may vary from 1% aenum to 5% per annum for the second througth tdividend periods, from 1% per annum to 7% peruamifior the eleventh through the first half of
nineteenth dividend periods. If the Series B &refl Stock remains outstanding for more than &md-onehalf years, the dividend rate will be fixed at 9®rior to that time, in general, the dividend rdéereases as the leve
the Bank’s QSBL increases. The Compargividend rate as of the date of this report @/4l.Updated lending information provided to the TBasury in early 2013 resulted in a credit agaimstdividend rate for 2013. St
dividends are not cumulative, but the Company nmay declare and pay dividends on its common stoclkafly other equity securities junior to the SeBeBreferred Stock) if it has declared and paidddinds for the curre
dividend period on the Series B Preferred Stoctl,will be subject to other restrictions on its @pito repurchase or redeem other securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series Brie@f8tock, in whole or in part, at any time aedemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidafianount per share and the mrare amount of any unpaid dividends fol
then-current period, subject to any required pajgproval by the Company’s primary federal bankiegutator.

The Companys ability to pay common stock dividends is condiéibon payment of the Series B Preferred Stockdeivils described above. In addition, the SBLF progrequires the Company to file quarterly repontQSBL
lending reported on by its Auditor annually. Then@pany must also outreach and advertise the aul#ijfaif QSBL to organizations and individuals whepresent minorities, woman and veterans. The @oasmust annual
certify that no business loans are made to priteipfbusinesses who have been convicted of ari®e @gainst a minor. Finally, the SBLF programuiees the Company to file quarterly, annual arftepteports provided
shareholders concurrently with the Treasury.
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The Companys goal is to maintain a strong capital positiomsistent with the risk profile of its subsidiaryntka that supports growth and expansion activitieenat the same time exceeding regulatory stasdatd Decembe

31, 2013, the Bank exceeded all regulatory requinedmum capital ratios and met the regulatory miééin of a “well-capitalized” institution, i.e. leverage capital ratio exceeding 5%, a Tier 1 biaked capital ratio exceed
6% and a total risk-based capital ratio exceedbig.1

The Bank is required to maintain average balanodsaod or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At Deeer8ih, 2013 and 2012, these reserve balances agooton$1,680,000 and $2,811,000, respectively aaadhcluded in Ca:
and due from banks in the statement of condition.

NOTE 19: INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVE

Derivative instruments are entered into primargyaarisk management tool of the Company. Finanigelatives are recorded at fair value as othéiliiees. The accounting for changes in the failuesof a derivative depends
whether it has been designated and qualifies aoparhedging relationship. For a fair value heddmnges in the fair value of the derivative imstent and changes in the fair value of the hedgsetar liability are recogniz
currently in earnings. For a cash flow hedge, cbarig the fair value of the derivative instrumeatthe extent that it is effective, are recordedtimer comprehensive income and subsequently s#fitasto earnings as the hed
transaction impacts net income. Any ineffectivetiporof a cash flow hedge is recognized curremtlgarnings. See Note 20 for further discussiah@fair value of the interest rate derivative.

The Company has $5 million of floating rate trustfprred debt indexed tor@enth LIBOR. As a result, it is exposed to variapiin cash flows related to changes in projecie@rest payments caused by changes i
benchmark interest rate. During the fourth quaotfefiscal 2009, the Company entered into an irsterate swap agreement, with a $2.0 million nofi@maount, to convert a portion of the variabée junior subordinat¢

debentures to a fixed rate for a term of approxétyaf years at a rate of 4.96%. The derivativddsignated as a cash flow hedge. The hedginggyr@nsures that changes in cash flows from thieadize will be highly
effective at offsetting changes in interest expdrmm the hedged exposure.

The following table summarizes the fair value ofstanding derivatives and their presentation orstatements of condition as of December 31:

(In thousands

2012 201z
Cash flow hedge

Other liabilities $ 13 $ 19t

The change in accumulated other comprehensivedoss pretax basis, and the impact on earnings fhennterest rate swap that qualifies as a cashliledge for the year ended December 31 were lasviol

(In thousands
Balance as of January
Amount of losses recognized in other compreherisiveme

2012 201z
$ (199 % (200

(@) (59

Amount of loss reclassified from other compreheasicome
and recognized as interest expe 62 58
Balance as of December & $ (135 $ (195

No amount of ineffectiveness has been includediniegs and the changes in fair value have beended in other comprehensive income. Some orritieeeamount included in accumulated other comprsive loss would t
reclassified into current earnings should a portihror the entire hedge no longer be considerfEtfe, but at this time, management expects dugé to remain fully effective during the remaintagm of the swap.
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The Company posted cash, of $200,000, under callaerangements to satisfy collateral requiremass®ciated with the interest rate swap contract.

NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Accounting guidance related to fair value measurgsmand disclosures specifies a hierarchy of vnaechniques based on whether the inputs to thakmtion techniques are observable or unobsezv@iservable inpt
reflect market data obtained from independent ssynehile unobservable inputs reflect the Compamgsket assumptions. These two types of inputs beaated the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identasets or liabilities in active markets that thétghas the ability to access as of the measurens.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar assets andlitas in active markets; quoted prices for ideatior similar assets or liabilities in marketstthee not active; and modeérived valuations in which all significant inputsc
significant value drivers are observable in actharkets.

Level 3 — Model-derived valuations in which onenwre significant inputs or significant value drisere unobservable.
An asset’s or liability’s level within the fair uaé hierarchy is based on the lowest level of inipat is significant to the fair value measurement.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesualon techniques that maximize the use of obsésviaiputs, minimize the use of unobservable inptdsthe extent possible, and considers counterpassfit risk in it:
assessment of fair value.

The Company used the following methods and sigmifi@ssumptions to estimate fair value:

Investment securities: The fair values of seasitivailable-fosale are obtained from an independent third partyaae based on quoted prices on nationally rezedréxchange where available (Level 1). If qugieces ar
not available, fair values are measured by utidjzimatrix pricing, which is a mathematical technigised widely in the industry to value debt seacesitivithout relying exclusively on quoted prices $pecific securities but ratt
by relying on the securities’ relationship to otbenchmark quoted securities (Level 2). Managemmete no adjustment to the fair value quotes tleaéweceived from the independent third party pgaervice.

Interest rate swap derivative: The fair valuehaf interest rate swap derivative is calculated dasea discounted cash flow model. All future fingtcash flows are projected and both floating fixet cash flows are discoun
to the valuation date. The curve utilized for disating and projecting is built by obtaining pubfiavailable third party market quotes for varicugap maturity terms.

Impaired loans: Impaired loans are those loanshichvthe Company has measured impairment gendraigd on the fair value of the loartollateral. Fair value is generally determinaddal upon market value evaluation
third parties of the properties and/or estimatesrtanagement of working capital collateral or disted cash flows based upon expected proceeds.e Ep®aisals may include up to three approacheslt®: the sale
comparison approach, the income approach (for iequoducing property), and the cost approach. Mamage modifies the appraised values, if neededake into account recent developments in the markether factor:
such as, changes in absorption rates or markeitmorgifrom the time of valuation and anticipatedes values considering managengmpians for disposition. Such modifications to &épgpraised values could result in lo
valuations of such collateral. Estimated costsetbae based on current amounts of disposal dostsimilar assets. These measurements are adabsié Level 3 within the valuation hierarchy. Irinpd loans are subject
nonrecurring fair value adjustment upon initialoggition or subsequent impairment. A portion @ gilowance for loan losses is allocated to implioans if the value of such loans is deemed tes®than the unpaid balance.
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Foreclosed real estate: Fair values for foreclosatiestate are initially recorded based on marideie evaluations by third parties, less costetb(“initial cost basis”). Any writelowns required when the related loan recei
is exchanged for the underlying real estate cobiat the time of transfer to foreclosed realtestae charged to the allowance for loan lossedués are derived from appraisals, similar to imgghloans, of underlying collate
or discounted cash flow analysis. Subsequentrecfosure, valuations are updated periodically asgkts are marked to current fair value, not t@exkche initial cost basis. In the determinatibriagr value subsequent
foreclosure, management also considers other faotorecent developments, such as, changes inptiosorates and market conditions from the timealfiation and anticipated sales values consideriagagemens’ plans fa
disposition. Either change could result in adjusttrio lower the property value estimates indicateitie appraisals. These measurements are @asa#f Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

The following tables summarize assets measureairatdlue on a recurring basis as of December&dregated by the level of valuation inputs withia hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

2013
Total Fai
(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Available-for-sale portfolio
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ - 16597 $ - % 16,591
State and political subdivisiol - 6,581 - 6,581
Corporate - 13,69¢ - 13,69¢
Residential mortgar-backec- US agency - 42,14 - 42,14
Residential mortga-backed- private labe - - - -
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 64¢ - - 64¢
Large cap equity fun 651 - - 651
Other mutual fund - 34¢ - 34¢
Common stocl- financial services industi 42 251 - 298
Total availabl-for-sale securitie 1,341 79618 $ -3 80,95¢

Interest rate swap derivati'

(139 $ -8 (135)
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2012
Total Fai
(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level Value
Available-for-sale portfolio
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ -3 6,18: $ -3 6,18:
State and political subdivisiol - 27,47 - 27,47:
Corporate - 23,00¢ - 23,00¢
Residential mortgar-backec- US agency - 48,25: - 48,25:
Residential mortgar-backec- private labe - 30¢& - 30¢&
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,291 - - 1,291
Large cap equity fun 1,081 - - 1,081
Other mutual fund - 31¢ - 31¢
Common stocl- financial services industi 33 39¢ - 432
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ 2,408 3% 10593 $ - $ 108,33¢
Interest rate swap derivati $ g (199 $ g (195

Certain assets and liabilities are measured atvédire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imsémts are not measured at fair value on an ondmasgs but are subject to fair value adjustmentseiain circumstances (

example, when there is evidence of impairment).

The following tables summarize assets measureairatdlue on a nonrecurring basis as of Decembges&jregated by the level of valuation inputs withie hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

2013
Total Fai
(In thousands Level Level : Level Value
Impaired loan: - $ - $ 25 $ 25
Foreclosed real este - $ - $ 6 $ 6
2012
Total Fai
(In thousands Level Level : Level Value
Impaired loan: - $ - $ 77 $ 77
Foreclosed real este = $ = $ 9 $ 9
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The following table presents additional quantitatieformation about assets measured at fair vaiuee monrecurring basis and for which Level 3 inputse used to determine fair value.

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Va

Measurement
Valuation Unobservablt Range
Techniques Input (Weighted Avg.)

At December 31, 201

Impaired loan:

Foreclosed real ests

Appraisal of collatere
(Sales Approact

Appraisal of collatere

Appraisal Adjustment
Costs to Sel

Appraisal Adjustment

5%- 30%(14%)
6%- 50%(12%)

15%- 15%(15%)

(Sales Approact Costs to Sel 6% - 7%(6%)

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Va

Measurement
Valuation Unobservablt Range
Techniques Input (Weighted Avg.)
At December 31, 201
Impaired loan: Appraisal of collatere Appraisal Adjustment 5%- 30%(21%)
Costs to Sel 6%- 15%(12%)
Foreclosed real este Appraisal of collatere Appraisal Adjustment 15%- 15%(15%)
Costs to Sel 6% - 7%(6%)

As of June 30, 2013, junior subordinated debentwitrsa carrying value of $5.2 million were transé from a level 3 classification to a level 2sdidication.

Required disclosures include fair value informatafrfinancial instruments, whether or not recogdize the consolidated statement of condition, fdialv it is practicable to estimate that value.céses where quoted mai
prices are not available, fair values are basedstimates using present value or other valuatidmigues. Those techniques are significantly adfiedty the assumptions used, including the discatatand estimates of futi
cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair vadsémates cannot be substantiated by comparisiodépendent markets and, in many cases, coulden@dized in immediate settlement of the instrumen

The Company has various processes and controlade o ensure that fair value is reasonably esticadhe Company performs due diligence procedaves third party pricing service providers in ordersupport their use
the valuation process.

While the Company believes its valuation metho@sagpropriate and consistent with other markeigieants, the use of different methodologies ouagstions to determine the fair value of certairafioial instruments cot
result in a different estimate of fair value at teporting date.

Management uses its best judgment in estimatingathealue of the Compang’financial instruments; however, there are inhenaraknesses in any estimation technique. Thexefor substantially all financial instruments,
fair value estimates herein are not necessarilicatite of the amounts the Company could havezedlin a sales transaction on the dates indicatkd. estimated fair value amounts have been mehssref their respecti
period-ends, and have not beereveluated or updated for purposes of these finhatitements subsequent to those respective dagesuch, the estimated fair values of these fiig@mestruments subsequent to the respe
reporting dates may be different than the amowegernted at each period-end.
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The following information should not be interprei@sian estimate of the fair value of the entire @amy since a fair value calculation is only prodder a limited portion of the Comparsyassets and liabilities. Due to a v
range of valuation techniques and the degree géstiNity used in making the estimates, comparideetsveen the Compars/tisclosures and those of other companies magenoteaningful. The Company, in estimating its
value disclosures for financial instruments, ugefollowing methods and assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying amourttesé assets approximate their fair value andlassified as Level 1.
Interest earning time deposits — The carrying artsahthese assets approximate their fair valuesaedlassified as Level 1.

Investment securities — The fair values of se@sitivailable-for-sale and held#maturity are obtained from an independent thirdypand are based on quoted prices on nationallygreized exchange where available (L
1). If quoted prices are not available, fair valaee measured by utilizing matrix pricing, whishai mathematical technique used widely in the imgus value debt securities without relying exohedy on quoted prices f
specific securities, but rather by relying on teeusities'relationship to other benchmark quoted securities¢l 2). Management made no adjustment to thevédile quotes that were received from the indegenthird part
pricing service.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — The carrying amofititese assets approximates their fair value emdlassified as Level 2.

Net loans— For variable-rate loans that re-price frequerftlir, value is based on carrying amounts. TheMalue of other loans (for example, fixeate commercial real estate loans, mortgage |@atscommercial and industt
loans) is estimated using discounted cash flowyaiglbased on interest rates currently being effén the market for loans with similar terms terbwers of similar credit quality. Loan value estites include judgments ba
on expected prepayment rates. The measuremdne &it value of loans, including impaired loarssclassified within Level 3 of the fair value hiegiay.

Accrued interest receivable and payable — The icaygmount of these assets approximates theivédie and are classified as Level 1.

Deposits — The fair values disclosed for demanasiép (e.g., interest-bearing and nonintebestring checking, passbook savings and certairs tgpenoney management accounts) are, by definiéqoal to the amount paya
on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their cagyimounts) and are classified within Level 1 &f thir value hierarchy. Fair values for fixegte certificates of deposit are estimated usidgseounted cash flow calculation t
applies interest rates currently being offerechia market on certificates of deposits to a scheofibggregated expected monthly maturities on tieyosits. Measurements of the fair value of tirmpodits are classified witt
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Borrowings — Fixed/variable term “bullet” structsrare valued using a replacement cost of fundsoappr These borrowings are discounted to the FHLBNvance curve. Option structured borrowinfgst values ar

determined by the FHLB for borrowings that inclueall or conversion option. If market pricingnist available from this source, current marketdéatbns from the FHLBNY are obtained and the boimg are discounted
the FHLBNY advance curve less an appropriate spi@adjust for the option. These measurementslassified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarch
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Junior subordinated debenture€urrent economic conditions have rendered the mdokehis liability inactive. As such, the Compawas formerly unable to determine a good estinsétiir value, resulting in a Level
classification at December 31, 2012. As of June2Bd3, the Company was able to secure a quote ifopricing service based on a Discounted Caskv Fieethodology which resulted in a Level 2 classifion for thi
borrowing.

Interest rate swap derivativeThe fair value of the interest rate swap derivativebtained from a third party pricing agent andalculated based on a discounted cash flow madélture floating cash flows are projected :
both floating and fixed cash flows are discountedhie valuation date. The curve utilized for disating and projecting is built by obtaining publicvailable third party market quotes for variowsap maturity terms, ai
therefore is classified within Level 2 of the faalue hierarchy.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Comjssiityancial instruments as of December 31 aregesi in the following table:

2013 2012

Fair Value Carrying Estimate: Carrying Estimate:
(Dollars In thousands Hierarchy Amounts Fair Value: Amounts Fair Value:
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalel 1 3 16,578  $ 16,578  $ 8,66t $ 8,66¢
Interest earning time depos 1 50C 50C 2,00( 2,00(
Investment securitie- availabl«-for-sale 1 1,341 1,341 2,40t 2,40¢%
Investment securitie- availabl-for-sale 2 79,61¢ 79,61¢ 105,93« 105,93«
Investment securitie- helc-to-maturity 2 34,41 34,22 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 2 2,44C 2,44C 1,92¢ 1,92¢
Net loans 3 336,59. 343,66( 329,24 341,38¢
Accrued interest receivab 1 1,71¢ 1,71¢ 1,713 1,713
Financial liabilities:
Demand Deposits, Savings, NOW and MM| ) 250,24t  $ 250,24t  $ 228,48 $ 228,48:
Time Deposits 2 159,89: 160,20: 163,32: 165,49:
Borrowings 2 40,85 41,25¢ 34,96 36,05«
Junior subordinated debentu 2 5,15¢ 4,82¢ - -
Junior subordinated debentu 3 - - 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Accrued interest payab 1 86 86 14C 14C
Interest rate swap derivati' 2 13E 13E 195 195
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NOTE 21: PARENT COMPANY — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following represents the condensed financfakination of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. as of andtfar years ended December 31:

Statements of Condition 2012 201z

(In thousands

Assets
Cash $ 1,145 $ 1,48
Investment: 42 33
Investment in bank subsidia 46,69¢ 44,20¢
Investment in nc-bank subsidiar s s
Other asset 408 39C

Total asset $ 48,44¢  $ 46,26¢

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Accrued liabilities $ 221 $ 364
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 5,15t
Shareholders' equi 43,07( 40,747

Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 48,44t  $ 46,26¢

Statements of Income 2012 2012

(In thousands

Income

Dividends from bank subsidia $ - 0% 1,20C

Dividends from no-bank subsidiar 4 3

Total income 4 1,20¢

Expenses

Interest 162 16¢

Operating, ne 10¢ 114

Total expense 271 282
(Loss) income before taxes and equity in undistet net income of subsidiari (267) 921

Tax benefit 69 72
(Loss) income before equity in undistributed mebme of subsidiarie (19¢) 99z

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidial 2,604 1,65¢
Net income $ 2406 $ 2,64¢
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Statements of Cash Flow

2012 201Z
(In thousands
Operating Activities
Net Income $ 2,406  $ 2,64¢
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidial (2,609) (1,65%)
Stock based compensation and ESOP exg 24z 193
Net change in other assets and liabili (39) (93)
Net cash flows from operating activiti 6 1,092
Investing Activities
Capital contributed to whol-owned bank subsidial - -
Net cash flows from investing activiti - -
Financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 45 5

Purchase of CPP Warrants from Treasury and redempfiCPP preferred stoi - (537)
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehol (83) (507)
Cash dividends paid to common sharehol

(309 (301)

Net cash flows from financing activiti (341) (1,340
Change in cash and cash equivali (335) (247)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,487 1,72¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 1,147 $ 1,482

NOTE 22: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyghaisted loans to certain directors, executivecef§ and their affiliates (collectively referredas “related parties”)These loans were made on substantially the samms
including interest rates and collateral, as thaseailing at the time for comparable transactioith wther unaffiliated parties and do not involvemmthan normal risk of collectability.

The following represents the activity associateth\dans to related parties during the year endecebber 31, 2013:

(In thousands

Balance at the beginning of the y: $ 5,82¢
Originations and Executive Officer additio 2,807
Principal payment (337)
Decrease due to Director attriti

(375)
Balance at the end of the ye $ 7,924

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, th& Bad no loan receivable from the Holding Compamy $1.0 million, respectively. The Holding Compamwld three properties to the Company in Decer2béB8 allowing
the loan receivable to be paid off. Interest fidhe Holding Company for the years ended 201328@ was $50,000 and $53,000, respectively.

Deposits of related parties at December 31, 20ti3@mtember 31, 2012 were $1.6 million and $1.9iom)Irespectively.

In October 2002, the Company entered into a landelevith one of its directors, now retired, on ansdength basis. In January 2006, the Company enteteda lease with the Holding Company for the ufe drainin¢
facility. This lease was executed on an arms-febgsis. During 2010, the Company entered intaranis length lease with the Holding Company forcgpthat is then suleased by the Company to a charitable organizat
below-market rents. Rent expense paid to theelparties during 2013 and 2012 was $29,000 an@@Q1respectively.
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NOTE 23: ACQUISITION OF INSURANCE AGENCY

On December 1, 2013, the Company, through its diglsgj Pathfinder Bank, and its subsidiary, PatidinRisk Management Inc. (‘PRMC'8xecuted a Purchase and Sale Agreement to acqbir®anterest in the Fitzgibbc
Agency, LLC (“Fitzgibbons”), a local insurance aggrserving the same geographic area as Pathfiraiek.Blin addition, PRMC acquired 100% of certainipment of Fitzgibbons for use in the busin@gss acquisition allown
the Company to create more value basedintarest income revenue through a significant @essin customer base as well as a similarity dfuce. We believe that over time, both organic aequisition growth within tt
Bank’s larger geographic footprint, as well as sgies from customer base access, will provide dppities to grow and diversify our revenue throimgurance services.

Acquisition costs related to this transaction w2&,000 and $8,000 in the periods ended Decemb@03B and December 31, 2012, respectively, and vemorded in professional and other services witbhinterest expense

on the income statement.

The assets and liabilities assumed in the accurisitiere recorded at their estimated fair valuegdam management's best estimates using informatiaitable at the date of acquisition. The follogvitable summarizes 1

estimated fair value of the assumed assets arititiesb(dollars in thousands):

Consideration paid:

Identifiable assets acquired

Cash paid by PRM! $ 42¢
Fair value of noncontrolling intere 35¢
Total consideratiol $ 787

Cash and equivalen $ 18
Accounts receivabl 1
Customer list intangibl 18¢€
Net premises and equipme 54
Total identified net asse $ 261

$ 52€

Goodwill:
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NOTE 24: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Changes in the components of accumulated other radrapsive income (loss) (“AOCI"), net of tax, fbetperiods indicated are summarized in the tabi@be

Beginning balanc
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifins
Amounts reclassified from AOC

Ending balanc

Beginning balanc
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassitins
Amounts reclassified from AOC

Ending balanc:

For the year ended December 31, 2

Unrealized Gains ai Unrealized Gains ai

Losses on Financi Losses on Available-  Securities reclassifi¢
Retirement Plar Derivative for-Sale Securitie from AFS to HTV Total
2,765 $ @ $ 156: $ - (1,319
1,55¢ (©)] (1,246 (781) (47€)
22¢ 39 (219 - 49
(982 $ 81y $ 99 % (781) (1,749

For the year ended December 31, 2

Unrealized Gains ai Unrealized Gains ai Unrealized Loss ¢

Losses on Financi Losses on Availabli Securities Transferr
Retirement Plar derivative for-Sale Securitie to Helc-to-Maturity Total
(3617) $ (1200 $ 1,07 $ - (2,669
61% (32) 71€ - 1,29¢
237 35 (225) - 47
(2,765 $ 117 $ 156¢ $ - (1,319

The following table presents the amounts reclassidiut of each component of AOCI for the indicaadual period:

Details about AOC! component:

Unrealized holding gain on financial derivati

December 31, 201

December 31, 201  Affected Line Item in the Statement of Inco

Reclassification adjustment f
interest expense included in net incc

Retirement plan itemr

(62
23

(58) Interest on long term liabilitie
23 Provision for income taxe

Retirement plan net loss
recognized in plan expens?

Available-for-sale securitie

(39

(381)
152

(35) Net Income

(395) Salaries and employee bene
15€ Provision for income taxe

Realized gain on sale of securit

1Amounts in parentheses indicates debits in neinirec
2These items are included in net periodic pensiat.
See Note 12 for additional informatic

(229

(365)
14€

(237) Net Income

(375) Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentises

15C Provision for income taxe

(219
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ITEM 9 : CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A : CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

REPORT OF MANAGEMENS RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s management, including the Companygipal executive officer and principal financifficer, have evaluated the effectiveness of then@any’s “disclosure controls and procedures such term is defined
Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange AB#3$ed upon their evaluation, the principal exeeutfficer and principal financial officer concludétht, as of the end
the period covered by this report, the Compamisclosure controls and procedures were effeftivehe purpose of ensuring that the informatiequired to be disclosed in the reports that the jgzoy files or submits under 1
Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Casion (the “SEC”) (1) is recorded, processed, surized and reported within the time periods spedifie the SECS rules and forms, and (2) is accumulated
communicated to the Company’s management, includsngrincipal executive and principal financiafioérs, as appropriate to allow timely decisiorgareling required disclosure.

MANAGEMEN’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RERRE&T

Management’s report on internal control over finaheporting is contained in “Item 8 — Financigh®ments and Supplementary Data” in this annysrtén Form 10-K.

This annual report does not include an attestatiport of the Company’s independent registeredipaticounting firm regarding internal control ovierancial reporting pursuant to the rules of thedB&rank Act that exemg
the Company from such attestation and requires malyagement’s report.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN

There were no changes in the Company’s internarabaver financial reporting that occurred durithg Company'’s last fiscal quarter that have mdtgrédfected, or are reasonably likely to mateyiadiffect, the Company’
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B : OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, CONTROL PERSONS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, COMPLIANC E WITH SECTIONS 16 (A) OF EXCHANGE ACT

(a) Information concerning the directors of the Companiyncorporated by reference hereunder in the Goylp Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of &oolders
(b) Set forth below is information concerning the ExeaiOfficers of the Company at December 31, 2(

Name Age Positions Held With the Company

Thomas W. Schneid: 52 President and Chief Executive Offic

James A. Dowd, CP. 46 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic
Edward A. Mervine 57 Senior Vice President, General Cour
Melissa A. Miller 56 Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Offi
Daniel Phillips 49 Senior Vice President, Chief Information Offic
Ronald Tascarell 55 Senior Vice President, Chief Credit Offic

ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to management compensatiahtransactions required under this item is jpo@ted by reference hereunder in the CompanyssyMaterials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholdersder the captic
"Compensation Committee".

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER S

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference hereunder in the Company’s Proxefiéds for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders untihe caption "Voting Securities and Principal Hotl Thereof".
ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference hereunder in the Company’s Proxgfiéds for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders untthe caption “Transactions with Certain Relatecs&es”.
ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference hereunder in the Company’s Proxgiéds for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders uniie caption "Audit and Related Fees".
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PART IV

ITEM 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@)

@02
(b)
31

3.2

10.1
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10.3
10.4
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

14
21
23
311
31.2

321

Financial Statements - The Compagbnsolidated financial statements, for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012, together witRépert of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimm are filed a
part of this Form 10-K report. See “ltem 8: FinahStatements and Supplementary Data.”

Financial Statement Schedu- All financial statement schedules have been ométethe required information is inapplicable or besn included i*ltem 7: Management Discussion and Anal”
Exhibits
Certificate of Incorporation of Pathfinder Bancolmg. (Incorporated herein by reference to the Camyts Current Report on Forr-K filed on June 25, 200:

Bylaws of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporatedefire by reference to the Company's Quarterly Reporform 1-Q filed on August 15, 2005 and amended Bylaws fd@dCurrent Report Form-K's or
November 28, 2007 and December 17, 2(

Form of Stock Certificate of Pathfinder Bancorg;.Ifincorporated herein by reference to the Comsa@yrrent Report on Forn-K dated June 25, 200

Pathfinder Bank 1997 Stock Option Plan (Incorpatdterein by reference to the Compan)-8 file no. 33:-53027)

2010 Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plandiporated by reference to the Comy’s <-8 file no. 33:-178590)

2003 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (Incerear herein by reference to the Comy's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no-23601)
2003 Trustee Deferred Fee Plan (Incorporated héseneference to the Compé's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no-23601)

Employment Agreement between the Bank andariBlsdN. Schneider, President and Chief Executivie€f{incorporated by reference to the CompanysuahReport on Form 1B-for the year ended Decem
31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edwartllétvine, Vice President, General Counsel and $&grélncorporated by reference to the Company'suh Report on Form -K for the year ende
December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank andildTascarella (Incorporated by reference to the@anys Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no-23601)

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank amega\. Dowd (Incorporated by reference to the ComgjsaAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year en@etember 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank anis&éeA. Miller (Incorporated by reference to then@pan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no-23601)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwieerBank and Chris C. Gagas (Incorporated by eefar to the Company’s Annual Report on FornK1for the year ended December 31, 2008 file
000-23601)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwleeBank and Thomas W. Schneider (Incorporatectfgrence to the Company’s Annual Report on ForAK I6r the year ended December 31, 200¢
no. 000-23601

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan adopteduaepi21, 2014 filed on Current Report Form 8-K afiftiary 25, 2014 file no. 000-23601

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreememid®n the Bank and Thomas W. Schneider effectibeugey 24, 2014 filed on Current Report Form 8-Krabruary 25, 2014 file no. 000-23601

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreememiden the Bank and Edward A. Mervine effective Beby 24, 2014 filed on Current Report Form 8-K @bfiary 25, 2014 file no. 000-23601

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreememiden the Bank and James A. Dowd effective FebrRdry014 filed on Current Report Form 8-K on Feloyi25, 2014 file no. 000-23601
Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to thea@any's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
Subsidiaries of Compar
Consent of Bonadio & Co., LL
Rule 13~14(a) / 15-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offic
Rule -14(a) / 15-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Offic

Section 1350 Giedtion of the Chief Executive and Chief Finandficer
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Signat ures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of #rufties Exchange Act of 1934, the Company hag clulised this report to be signed on its behathbyundersigned, thereunto duly authori:

Date:

March 17, 201«

Pathfinder Bancorp, Ini

By:

/sl Thomas W. Schneid
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh of 1934, this report has been signed belothéjollowing persons on behalf of the Registrant & the capacities and on the dates indic:

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

/s/ Thomas W. Schneid

Thomas W. Schneider, President

Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer

March 17, 201«

/s/ Lloyd Stemple

Lloyd Stemple, Directo

March 17, 201«

/s/John P. Funiciell

John Funiciello, Directc
March 17, 201«

/s/ David A. Ayouk

David Ayoub, Directo
March 17, 201«

/sl George P. Joyc

George P. Joyce, Direct
March 17, 201«
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By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

/s/ James A. Dow

James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial Officer

March 17, 201«

/s/ Richard M. Jablonk

Richard M. Jablonka, Vice President ¢
Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer

March 17, 201«

/s/ William A. Barclay

William A. Barclay, Directol
March 17, 201«

/s/ Chris R. Burrit

Chris R. Burritt, Directo
March 17, 201«
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EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Company

Pathfinder Banl

Percent Owne Jurisdiction or State of Incorporatit

100% New York

Pathfinder Statutory Trust 10C% Delaware
Pathfinder Commercial Bank ( 10C% New York
Pathfinder REIT, Inc. (1 10C% New York
Whispering Oaks Development Corp. 10C% New York
100% New York

Pathfinder Risk Management Company Inc.
(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of Pathfinder Bank.

EXHIBIT 23: CONSENT OF BONADIO & CO., LLP

Pathfinder Bancorp, Ini
Oswego, New York

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statements on For-8 (No. 33:-178590) and Form-8 (No. 33:-53027) of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaviesur report, dated March 17, 20:
relating to the consolidated financial statementsch appears in this Form 10-K.

Bonadio & Co., LLP
Syracuse, New York
March 17, 201:

/s/ BONADIO & CO., LLP
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EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificaion of the Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Chief Executive Office
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
|, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exeewifficer, certify that
1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Forn-K of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitate a material fact necessary to make the statsrmade, in light of the circumstances under v
such statements were made, not misleading witreot$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the consolidated financial condition, resofi
operations and cash flows of the registrant aaraf,for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | asponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined in Exggh&t Rules 12-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and interne
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thgisgant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensurarihgtrial information relating to the registre
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkmto us by others within those entities, paricyl during the period in which this report is bejprepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financégdorting, or caused such internal control oweariicial reporting, to be designed under our sugienv; to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of consolidated financial statements for exaépurposes in accordance with generally acceptedumting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalsire controls and procedures and presentedsinggport our conclusions about the effectivendésbedisclosure controls and procedures, as oétiat
of the period covered by this report based on swalfuation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during the registrant's most recent figaarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quartethie case c
an annual report) that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorierhal control over financial reporting, to tregistrant's auditors and the audit committee ®
registrant's board of directors:

(@) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversely affect the registrant's ability toaret
process, summarize and report financial informatom
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéatin the registrant's internal control oveiaficial reporting

March 17, 201« [s/ Thomas W. Schneid
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic
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EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificaibn of the Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chief Financial Office
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Crie&ncial Officer, certify thal
1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Forn-K of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitate a material fact necessary to make thenseaits made, in light of the circumstances undéciv
such statements were made, not misleading witreot$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the consolidated financial condition, resofi
operations and cash flows of the registrant aaraf,for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | asponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined in Exggh&t Rules 12-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and interne
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thgisgant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensurarihgtrial information relating to the registre
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkmto us by others within those entities, paricyl during the period in which this report is bejprepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financégdorting, or caused such internal control oweariicial reporting, to be designed under our sugienv; to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of consolidated financial statements for exaépurposes in accordance with generally acceptedumting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalsire controls and procedures and presentedsinggport our conclusions about the effectivendésbedisclosure controls and procedures, as oétiat
of the period covered by this report based on swalfuation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during the registrant's most recent figaarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quartethie case c
an annual report) that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorierhal control over financial reporting, to tregistrant's auditors and the audit committee ®
registrant's board of directors:

(@) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversely affect the registrant's ability toaret
process, summarize and report financial informatom
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéatin the registrant's internal control oveiaficial reporting

March 17, 201« [s/ James A. Dow
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chef Executive and Chief Financial Officers

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z

ThomasW. Schneider, President and Chief Executive Offieed James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President andfGhimancial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. éthiCompany”), each certify in his capacity as dicef of the
Company that he has reviewed the Annual Repotiefompany on Form 10-K for the year ended Dece®he2013 and that to the best of his knowledge:

1.  the report fully complies with the requirementsSefctions 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 8#1@nd

2. theinformation contained in the report fairly pets, in all material respects, the consolidatedritial condition and results of operations ofGloenpany
The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Uthitates Code, as amended by Section 906 of ther8z-Oxley Act of 2002
March 17, 201« /sl Thomas W. Schneid

Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 17, 201« s/ James A. Dow
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15¢-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Office
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
|, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exeeifficer, certify that
1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Forn-K of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitate a material fact necessary to make the statsrmade, in light of the circumstances under v
such statements were made, not misleading witreot$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantaéments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the consolidated financial condition, resof
operations and cash flows of the registrant aaraf,for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | asponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined in Exgghéit Rules 12-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and interne
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thgisgant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensurenthggrial information relating to the registre
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkmto us by others within those entities, paricyl during the period in which this report is bejprepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financégdorting, or caused such internal control owearficial reporting, to be designed under our sugienv; to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of consolidated financial statements for exaépurposes in accordance with generally acceptedumting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalisire controls and procedures and presentedsinggport our conclusions about the effectivendéshedisclosure controls and procedures, as oétiat
of the period covered by this report based on swelfuation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigsanternal control over financial reporting tlecurred during the registrant's most recent figaarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quartettie case ¢
an annual report) that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorierhal control over financial reporting, to tregistrant's auditors and the audit committee ®
registrant's board of directors:

(@) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversely affect the registrant's ability toaret
process, summarize and report financial informatom
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéain the registrant's internal control oveiaficial reporting

March 17, 201 /sl Thomas W. Schneid
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15¢-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Office
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chie&ncial Officer, certify thal
1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Forn-K of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitae a material fact necessary to make thenseaits made, in light of the circumstances undéciv
such statements were made, not misleading witreot$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantaéments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the consolidated financial condition, resof
operations and cash flows of the registrant aaraf,for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | asponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined in Exgghéit Rules 12-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and interne
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thgisgant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensurenthggrial information relating to the registre
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkmto us by others within those entities, paricyl during the period in which this report is bejprepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financégdorting, or caused such internal control owearficial reporting, to be designed under our sugienv; to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of consolidated financial statements for exaépurposes in accordance with generally acceptedumting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalisire controls and procedures and presentedsinggport our conclusions about the effectivendéshedisclosure controls and procedures, as oétiat
of the period covered by this report based on swelfuation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigsanternal control over financial reporting tlecurred during the registrant's most recent figaarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quartettie case ¢
an annual report) that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorierhal control over financial reporting, to tregistrant's auditors and the audit committee ®
registrant's board of directors:

(@) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversely affect the registrant's ability toaret
process, summarize and report financial informatom
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéain the registrant's internal control oveiaficial reporting

March 17, 201 s/ James A. Dow
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chef Executive and Chief Financial Officers
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exec@ifieer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President @hief Financial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorpel (the "Company"), each certify in his capaciyaa officer of th
Company that he has reviewed the Annual RepotiefXompany on Form 10-K for the year ended Dece®he2013 and that to the best of his knowledge:

1.  the report fully complies with the requirementsSefctions 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 8#1@nd

2. theinformation contained in the report fairly pets, in all material respects, the consolidatedritial condition and results of operations ofGloenpany
The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Uthitates Code, as amended by Section 906 of ther8z-Oxley Act of 2002
March 17, 201« /s/ Thomas W. Schneid

Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 17, 201« /sl James A. Dow
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




